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Manager’s Report

Market Review

Going into Q3 2024, Asia Pacific ex-Japan
equities and Asia credits had a strong rally,
supported by the long-anticipated start of
US interest rate cutting cycle, along with a
clear shift of policy stance in China. Shares in
China and Hong Kong achieved strong gains
following a raft of stimulus measures by the
Chinese policymakers, while Korean equities
ended the quarter in negative territory due
to the selloffs in technology sector. Asia
credits outperformed its global peers. With
US treasury yields fell substantially over
the quarter, Asian investment grade bonds
outperformed their high yield counterparts.

The ending quarter of 2024 saw volatility
rising as investors worried about potential
tariffs following Donald Trump's re-election
as US President in November. Most Asian
markets were weighed down by the risk
of heightened tensions over trade and
technology. Korean equities had a notable
decline due to political uncertainty. On the
other hand, Taiwan, Singapore and New
Zealand were the only markets to end the
quarter in positive territory. Volatility also fed
into Asian fixed income markets, primarily
driven by geopolitical tensions, central bank
decisions, and fluctuating inflation rates. The
US 10-year Treasury yield closed higher, from
3.78% to 4.57%, indicating market uncertainty
regarding the Fed's future actions. Against
such backdrop, Asia credits declined over the
quarter, with high yield bonds outperforming
their investment-grade counterparts.
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Manager’s Report

Market Review (Continued)

Stepping into 2025, Asian equities and fixed
income achieved positive return, despite the
rising volatility in the quarter. Shares in China
were sharply high after government stimulus
measures supporting for the country’'s
troubled property sector and advances
in artificial intelligence. Taiwan equities
experienced declines amid concerns over a
potential slowdown in artificial intelligence
investments by large US companies. Asian
fixed income market over the quarter was
marked by the raised concerns in the US.
Overall, the US 10-year Treasury yield ended
the quarter at 4.21%, 36 basis points lower.
On the credit front, Asia credits ended in
positive territory as gains from lower US
Treasury yields helped offset the impact of
wider credit spreads. In the second quarter
of the year, the momentum in Asian equities
continued. Despite some sharp falls at the
start of the quarter when President Trump
unveiled new “Liberation Day” tariffs, most
markets subsequently recovered amid the
temporary suspension of tariffs while trade
talks took place. Top performing markets
included Korea, Taiwan, and Hong Kong,
which benefited from eased trade fears and
improved sentiment towards technology
stocks and artificial intelligence. In terms
of fixed income market, recession fears
peaked around the “Liberation Day” tariff
announcement but later faded as a more
conciliatory approach was taken to tariffs.
There was a shift in emphasis away from
monetary policy, as central banks neared the
end of their rate cutting cycles, and towards
fiscal policy and what this would mean for
debt sustainability. On the credit front, Asia
credits performed with remarkable resilience,
supported by a robust technical backdrop
of high all-in-yields and relatively low net
issuance.
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Manager’s Report

Outlook

Uncertainty over tariffs persists, with limited
clarity around both final rates and potential
carve-outs. President Trump’s extension
of the trade agreement deadline from 9
July to 1 August has done little to ease
tensions, as it has been accompanied by
increasingly aggressive rhetoric toward
key trading partners. Notably, market
reactions to renewed tariff threats from
Trump have become more muted over time,
suggesting that investors increasingly treat
such announcements as opening bids in
a broader negotiation process. While this
interpretation has largely proven correct to
date, it does introduce the risk that markets
may ultimately underestimate his willingness
to implement significantly higher tariffs than
currently expected. Our base case remains an
effective tariff rate of 12%, but the balance of
risks remains skewed to the upside. Despite
these uncertainties, we continue to see a
low probability of a near-term US recession.
Consumption remains resilient, supported by
low energy prices - driven by expectations
of rising global oil supply - and a stable
labour market, which together provide a solid
buffer against external shocks. Within Asia-
Pacific, positive breakthrough over US-China
trade deal, coupled with improving forward
earnings growth in the region, can provide
a foundation for potential growth in Asian
markets. Attractive valuations and a weaker
US dollar also provide a supportive backdrop.
Recent positive earnings momentum from
Chinese internet companies and a revival in
HK IPO activity reinforced our constructive
view on offshore Chinese equities. To
counterbalance the risk that we are taking
in the portfolio, we prefer to have diversified
positions, including catastrophe bonds and
EM local government bonds.
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Manager’s Report

Outlook (Continued)

Within Asian equities, we believe there is
potential for equity flows to be supportive
in the region, as a weak US dollar and an
unwinding of “US exceptionalism” could lead
to a re-allocation to Asian equities. The easing
currency pressures also open the door for
local central banks to ease monetary policy to
address softening domestic activity. Sentiment
towards China will likely remain supportive
by Al breakthroughs, but the market will
need to see fundamental improvements in
the broader economy before sectors outside
of the thematic areas can re-rate. In Kores,
the improved political landscape, corporate
governance reform and attractive valuations
suggest more upside potential. Across the
rest of the region, we still prefer markets such
as Singapore, Hong Kong, India and Australia
for dividend investing that offers potential
for improved capital management and
shareholder returns.
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Manager’s Report

Outlook (Continued)

In terms of fixed income, recent macro
data highlighted potential headwinds for
the economy, and the ongoing uncertainty
in trade policy kept the Fed from adjusting
rate urgently. In this context, we prefer
domestically oriented markets such as India,
Australia and Japan, which are expected to
show resilience amid global volatility. In China,
we continue to favour sectors and companies
that are more insulated from global trade or
benefit from localization and self-sufficiency
trends such as selected internet platforms,
technology and consumer names. Should
China local rates continue to fall, Chinese
onshore buying of USD-denominated China
credits may resume in force, which will be
supportive of technicals. Overall, our portfolio
remains anchored in high-quality carry while
seeking interesting idiosyncratic stories within
high yield. We favour segments such as
Australia, Japan and South Korea Financials
in Investment Grade, India Renewables and
Macau Gaming in High Yield.
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Manager’s Report

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund size was
HK$14,360,374,021 represented by units as

KBARS

BE_Z_HEFA=+H > EE£E5E
14,360,374,02187¢ > RITHREUT :

below:

Units 128
HKD Class A Accumulation 788,199.17 BITART RIMAER 788,199.17
HKD Class A Distribution 54,622,796.74 BITARFIWESE 54,622,796.74
HKD Class C Accumulation 162,558.36 BITCERRHE 162,558.36
HKD Class C Distribution 991,866.66 ABITCRFIREMER 991,866.66
HKD Class X Accumulation 67.62 BITXERIRRRE 67.62
HKD Class X Distribution 9,330.76 ABTXEREHE 9,330.76
RMB Class M Accumulation 109,107.77 AERMERRRMHER 109,107.77
RMB Class M Distribution 359,339.31 ARHMEREERER 359,339.31
USD Class A Accumulation 2,617,655.22 ETALRRRBE 2,617,655.22
USD Class A Distribution 70,627,380.63 ETALKRIKEHE 70,627,380.63
USD Class C Accumulation 4,491,624.09 ETCERERBE 4,491,624.09
USD Class C Distribution 2,038,679.64 ETCEFRERE 2,038,679.64
USD Class I Accumulation 26,678.00 ESMESIES k] 26,678.00
USD Class I Distribution 257,021.22 ETIRFIKEMRER 257,021.22
USD Class X Accumulation 68.14 ETXERIRTRR 68.14
USD Class X Distribution 51,663.72 EXERWEMRE 51,663.72
AUD Hedged Class A Distribution ~ 34,998,319.93 BRI RAL IR ER 34,998,319.93
AUD Hedged Class C Distribution 203,805.77 BRITXTRCEFIR SR ER 203,805.77
RMB Hedged Class A Distribution  24,309,740.38 ARTIHALBIRBHER 24,309,740.38
RMB Hedged Class C Distribution 1,090.04 AR ACEFIREMER 1,090.04
RMB Hedged Class M Accumulation 1,564,216.62 ARMITAMER RN 1,564,216.62
RMB Hedged Class M Distribution 9,420.05 ARTIEHAMERIR EHER 9,420.05
GBP Hedged Class A Accumulation 55,479.56 HEWHALRI RPN 55,479.56
GBP Hedged Class A Distribution ~ 2,585,278.75 EEXTHALRIREME 2,585,278.75
MEET NS ERGEEE 6



Manager’s Report

The prices of the units were:
NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

HKD Class A Accumulation

HKD Class A Distribution

HKD Class C Accumulation

HKD Class C Distribution

HKD Class X Accumulation

HKD Class X Distribution

RMB Class M Accumulation

RMB Class M Distribution

USD Class A Accumulation

USD Class A Distribution

USD Class C Accumulation

USD Class C Distribution

USD Class I Accumulation

USD Class I Distribution

USD Class X Accumulation

USD Class X Distribution

AUD Hedged Class A Distribution
AUD Hedged Class C Distribution
RMB Hedged Class A Distribution
RMB Hedged Class C Distribution

HK$174.3807
HK$83.3719
HK$192.9455
HK$92.2794
HK$174.0309
HK$125.1704
RMB102.0221
RMB99.2885
US$17.2982
US$8.2707
US$17.1177
US$8.8197
US$18.3849
US$11.0938
US$17.2502
US$12.4172
AU$7.4638
AU$7.9724
RMB76.5664
RMB81.0695

RMB Hedged Class M Accumulation RMB134.4780

RMB Hedged Class M Distribution
GBP Hedged Class A Accumulation

GBP Hedged Class A Distribution

RMB99.9525
GBP11.5576
GBP7.7843

Schroder Investment Management

(Hong Kong) Limited
28th October 2025
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174.38073#7T
83.3719387T
192.945537T
92.279487T
174.0309387T
125.1704387T
102.0221 AR
99.2885 AR
17.2982%7%
8.2707%7T
17.1177%7T
8.8197%7T
18.3849% 7T
11.0938%7T
17.2502%7%
124172%7T
7.4638387T
7.9724385%
76.5664 A RT
81.0695 AR
134.4780 AR
99.9525 AR
11.5576 815
7.78435%
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Trustee’s Report

We hereby confirm that, in our opinion,
the Manager has, in all material respects,
managed the Schroder Asian Asset Income
Fund, a sub-fund of Schroder Umbrella
Fund II, in accordance with the provisions
of the Trust Deed dated 8th October 2010,
as amended (the “Trust Deed”), for the year
ended 30th June 2025.

HSBC Institutional Trust Services
(Asia) Limited
28th October 2025
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Independent Auditor’s

Report

To the Unitholders of

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund

(A Sub-Fund of Schroder Umbrella Fund II)

Report on the audit of financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements
of Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund (“the
Fund”), a sub-fund of Schroder Umbrella Fund
II, set out on pages 16 to 127, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 30
June 2025, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in net
assets attributable to unitholders and the
statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of
the Fund as at 30 June 2025 and of its financial
transactions and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Fund
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code") and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s

Report

To the Unitholders of

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund

(A Sub-Fund of Schroder Umbrella Fund II)
(Continued)

Information other than the financial
statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Fund
are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Y =
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Independent Auditor’s

Report

To the Unitholders of

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund

(A Sub-Fund of Schroder Umbrella Fund II)
(Continued)

Responsibilities of the Manager and the
Trustee of the Fund for the financial
statements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Fund are
responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and for such internal control as the Manager
and the Trustee of the Fund determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the
Manager and the Trustee of the Fund are
responsible for assessing the Fund's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Manager and the
Trustee of the Fund either intend to liquidate
the Fund or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Manager and the Trustee
of the Fund are required to ensure that the
financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Trust Deed dated 8 October
2010, as amended (the “Trust Deed”) and the
relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix E
of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds
(“the SFC Code") issued by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission.

Y =
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Independent Auditor’s

Report

To the Unitholders of

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund

(A Sub-Fund of Schroder Umbrella Fund II)
(Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements. In
addition, we are required to assess whether
the financial statements of the Fund have
been properly prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant
disclosure provisions of Appendix E of the SFC
Code.
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Independent Auditor’s

Report

To the Unitholders of

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund

(A Sub-Fund of Schroder Umbrella Fund II)
(Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal
control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the
Manager and the Trustee of the Fund.
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Independent Auditor’s

Report

To the Unitholders of

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund

(A Sub-Fund of Schroder Umbrella Fund II)
(Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the
Manager's and the Trustee’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the
Trustee of the Fund regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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BT RUNG LR AR
(HFRPRELIHTFER)
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Independent Auditor’s

Report

To the Unitholders of

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund

(A Sub-Fund of Schroder Umbrella Fund II)
(Continued)

Report on matters under the relevant
provisions of the Trust Deed and the
relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix
E of the SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements
have been properly prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant
disclosure provisions of Appendix E of the SFC
Code.

The engagement partner on the audit
resulting in this independent auditor’s report
is YIU, Tsz Yeung, Arion (practicing certificate
number: P06098).

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 28th October 2025
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Statement of Financial Position
V2 Wk S ES

As at 30th June 2025

BE—E D ENA=FH

2025 2024
HK$ HK$
Note “ETRE —EINE
AR BT BT
ASSETS &=
Cash and bank deposits
MERIRITFER 9(@a) 248,661,020 261,704,239
Deposit with brokers 4377 3(g) 40,506,000 7,104,734
Margin deposits fRIEsE 3(9). 6 158,404,162 485,468,373
Amounts receivable on disposal of investments
[RZ LT S 4 BRI 131,272,869 71,473,573
Amounts receivable on subscription of units
Bz AR ERFRI 22,262,526 10,677,130
Dividends receivable F7YZA%F!) 17,030,026 19,265,900
Interest receivable on bank and margin deposits
RIFR R AREEF R 9(@a) 11,175 29,884
Interest receivable on debt securities
R RS IESFIE 9(h) 71,987,409 87,724,901
Other receivables and prepayments
L7 ISGRR BB PR R I5T 6,314 8,532
Financial derivative instruments 3(b), 3(g).
EMTETR 9(l) 135,452,630 57,156,319
Investments 3(b), 5,
B 9(b), 9(h),
9(i), 9(m) 14,097,836,345 15,883,773,150
Total assets HF=Z2E 14,923,430,476 16,884,386,735
SRS SREES 16



Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
42 IRRIRE ()

As at 30th June 2025

BE—E D ENA=FH

2025 2024
HK$ HK$
Note _E_REF ZZTTE
AR BT BT
LIABILITIES fAf&
Amounts payable on purchase of investments

Rz A48 RN 135,062,381 89,188,413
Amounts payable on redemption of units

Bz IE[EA ZRFRIRN 70,874,084 37,770,706
Distributions payable {3 &# 8(b) 70,413,656 68,985,312
Cash collateral liabilities IR 1H f A f= 3(9) 15,150,500 7,026,660
Other payables 9(c), 9(d),

=R IVANENIY 9(g) 64,915,552 20,321,563
Financial derivative instruments 3(b), 3(q),

SROTETH Il 160,425,310 37,373,981
Deferred tax liability #B3EFRSHT f2 = 10(c) 46,214,972 53,430,378
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to

unitholders) B fAE FRDELMHTIFE NREF) 563,056,455 314,097,013
Net assets attributable to unitholders

DELNITITFENRR 11 14,360,374,021  16,570,289,722

For and on behalf of X% For and on behalf of &

Schroder Investment Management
(Hong Kong) Limited
MPERRERE (58) BIRAT

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
CENEFERS (I BIRAE

The notes on pages 30 to 127 are an integral part of these financial statements.
BEAE-B_TERZERDEAMSRERZ 3% -
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
EEKERER

For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECREAA=FHIFEE

2025 2024
HK$ HK$
Note —ECRE —E_OE
AR BT BT
INCOME g%
Dividends B&#! 9(m) 307,489,414 332,917,304
Interest on bank and margin deposits
EFERRRIEEFIE 9(a) 15,337,767 18,429,985
Interest on debt securities f&53IFEF 2 9(h) 390,283,586 390,803,823
Interest on collateral £ % 2 278,143 378,954
Net realised losses on investments and financial
derivative instruments
KRAREMITETAEMNBETILE TR (7,001,410)  (557,745,230)
Net change in unrealised appreciation/depreciation
in value of investments and financial
derivative instruments
RARSMITE TENRTIIEE ZE 383,857,819 1,830,050,841
Net exchange gains/(losses) ;L /&M% (S17) 8,645,510 (16,550,658)
Other income Efthl# 191,146 246,521
Total net income E/5Uz 1,099,081,975 1,998,531,540
EXPENSES %1
Management fee EI22: 7 183,771,392 213,978,753
Trustee fee AL 7 9,030,223 10,971,048
Safe custody and bank charges K& 2K R1T22 A 9(f) 2,637,321 2,850,922
Auditor's remuneration B t/ElE 188,510 188,511
Legal and other professional fees ;&2 K&l E 359,857 448,170
Transaction handling fees 325 F4:%% 9(c) 323,830 413,686
Transaction cost 225 2 9(j) 9,170,235 12,997,452
Interest expense F B3 9(e) 287,516 938,239
Net registrar's cost At 25 A 9(d) 29,408,518 34,243,156
Other operating expenses Hfth&ZE %A 9(9) 2,784,204 2,778,596
Total operating expenses B&E 5 237,961,606 279,808,533
MEET NS ERGEEE 18



Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

EEMERRE (4)

For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

2025 2024
HK$ HK$
Note —ECRE —E_OE
AR BT BT
Operating profit Eizi&F) 861,120,369  1,718,723,007
Finance cost M153pk4s
Distributions to unitholders B&FIREG A THFE A 8(b) (891,156,773)  (870,114,299)
(Loss)/Profit after distribution and before tax
& RFI B RFHORINAT 2 (SR)  #F (30,036,404) 848,608,708
Withholding tax Fif0F{IR 10(d) (27,458,533) (27,585,872)
Capital gain tax ZEF=1gEFRINHL 10(c) (6,074,814) (24,563,200)
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets
attributable to unitholders
DEANTIFENEA=Z (FL) /180 (63,569,751) 796,459,636

The notes on pages 30 to 127 are an integral part of these financial statements.

BTE-B T ERZEERDBEMSRERZ 85 ©
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

niicts 193%%’5)\‘%@“15"’“1371?&%

For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CETRFEANA=FHIFFE

2025 2024
HK$ HK$
Note —ECRE ZZTTE
AR BT Bt
Balance at the beginning of the year 415 {& 16,570,289,722  20,274,230,849
Issue of units &7 &N 11 2,102,282,691 1,247,620,729
Redemption of units EE15ER 11 (4,248,628,641) || (5,748,021,492)
Net redemption J%E[E] (2,146,345,950) (4,500,400,763)
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets attributable to
unitholders AELAMEFE N EEF=Z (RL), /1810 (63,569,751) 796,459,636
Balance at the end of the year &5 (& 14,360,374,021  16,570,289,722
2025 2024
Units Units
Note “ETHF TTPuE
AR N &R
HKD Class A Accumulation &7TAZERI RFURE
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FEHBRITHETEE 946,239.94 1,102,020.44
Units issued Z1T{REN 93,868.05 22,345.08
Units redeemed TE&[E1{5 51 (251,908.82) (178,125.58)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FALBRITREHE 11 788,199.17 946,239.94
HKD Class A Distribution Tt AZSIM R 5%
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FYERTHEEE 61,215,991.48  81,307,265.53
Units issued Z1TIHEN 8,895,438.68 4,386,360.96
Units redeemed ME[E1{AET (15,488,633.42) (24,477,635.01)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FARBRITREEHE 11 54,622,796.74  61,215,991.48

mEETNEEREES
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders
(Continued) .
SELLTIIFE N REFEERRER (4)

For the Year ended 30th June 2025
TETAFENA=FHIEFE

2025 2024
Units Units
Note “ERE —EINE
AR DR %R

HKD Class C Accumulation 7T CZ5I 25
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year

FHERITHEEE 165,141.02 217,874.27
Units redeemed &1T143 &1 (2,582.66) (52,733.25)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRERTNTEHE 11 162,558.36 165,141.02
HKD Class C Distribution #TCFIRE 13
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year

FHERITHTEHE 567,523.26 568,194.10
Units issued &Z1T{7 8T 429,819.95 55.04
Units redeemed JE[E5ER (5,476.55) (725.88)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRBRITHGHE 11 991,866.66 567,523.26
HKD Class X Accumulation #ETXZ3I 2T &
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year

FYERITHETEE 67.62 67.62
Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRBRITHGHE 11 67.62 67.62
HKD Class X Distribution 7T X351 258
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year

FHEBRITHTEHE 12,944.89 13,150.64
Units issued Z1T{7%E1 3,304.37 6.14
Units redeemed &[5 50 (6,918.50) (211.89)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FEERTHEGHE 1 9,330.76 12,944.89
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

(Continued) .

SELLTIIFE N REFEERRER (4)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025

ZECRFEANA=1HIEFE

2025 2024
Units Units
Note —E"RE TETNE
AR 28 k]
RMB Class M Accumulation ARHMZE5IZ2FRHEH
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FMERTHEEE - -
Units issued Z1T{H%E1 112,632.34 -
Units redeemed JE[E15ER (3,524.57) -
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FRBRITNGHE 11 109,107.77 -
RMB Class M Distribution ARTMZEZIKE 58
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FYERITHETEE - -
Units issued &1TIHEN 362,255.09 -
Units redeemed JEEHAER (2,915.78) -
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FARBRITNEEE 11 359,339.31 -
USD Class A Accumulation ETAZERI RFRGE
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FENERITHEEE 3,250,739.44 4,391,353.01
Units issued Z1T{AE1 314,345.51 107,522.58
Units redeemed TE[E1{% 50 (947,429.73) (1,248,136.15)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FERBRITNEHE 11 2,617,655.22 3,250,739.44
USD Class A Distribution ETcAZZI 255
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FHERITHEHE 82,762,247.32 107,034,971.57
Units issued 171381 9,160,746.34 4,738,153.06
Units redeemed J&[E5ER (21,295,613.03) (29,010,877.31)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FRBRITHGHE 11 70,627,380.63  82,762,247.32
SRS SREES 22



Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

(Continued)

AELTITE NFATEERR (4)

For the Year ended 30th June 2025
TETAFENA=FHIEFE

2025 2024
Units Units
Note ZETRE k= o 1:F 3
AR HEn HEn
USD Class C Accumulation 35t CRI 204 E
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FNERITHEEE 5,180,840.29 7,117,121.90
Units issued &Z1T{7 %1 126,316.04 406,758.14
Units redeemed T&[E1{% 50 (815,532.24) (2,343,039.75)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FEARBRITRTEHE 1 4,491,624.09 5,180,840.29
USD Class C Distribution 35t CEFIME 155
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FHERITHTEHE 2,515,588.08 1,923,523.65
Units issued 171381 1,155,886.13 1,631,410.05

Units redeemed TE[E15ER

Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRERTIHGHE

USD Class I Accumulation SE5tIZE5I 205 EH

Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FMERTHEEE

Units issued Z1T1A81

Units redeemed T&EI{A 2R

Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRERTNGHE

USD Class I Distribution S7tIZE5IU 55

Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FEHMERITHETHE

Units redeemed Z1T{4 %

Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRERTNGHE

11

11

11

(1,632,794.57)

(1,039,345.62)

2,038,679.64 2,515,588.08

21,234.00 30,089.00
33,296.00 2,145.00

(27,852.00) (11,000.00)
26,678.00 21,234.00

259,011.45 439,052.30
(1,990.23) (180,040.85)

257,021.22 259,011.45
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

(Continued) .

SELLTIIFE N REFEERRER (4)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
ZECRFEANA=1HIEFE

2025 2024
Units Units
Note “ERE ZETpE
s DR %R
USD Class X Accumulation 35t X5) R0 E
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FMERTHTHE 68.14 68.14
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FRERTIHGHE 11 68.14 68.14
USD Class X Distribution S=7TXERIUKE 5%
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FHERTHETEE 58,400.84 98,687.05
Units issued &7 &R 4,007.62 3,168.24
Units redeemed E[E15 T (10,744.74) (43,454.45)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FRERTNGHE 1 51,663.72 58,400.84
AUD Hedged Class A Distribution
RTTI AR SR ER
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FYERITHETEE 40,750,690.87  48,306,102.53
Units issued &1T5EN 3,477,249.27 3,680,137.59
Units redeemed E[EI5ET (9,229,620.21)  (11,235,549.25)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FERBRITNEEHE 1 34,998,319.93  40,750,690.87
MEETNESRGEES 24



Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

(Continued) .

SELLTIIFE N REFEERRER (4)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025

ZECRFEANA=1HIEFE

2025 2024
Units Units
Note “ERE —EINE
AR HER K

AUD Hedged Class C Distribution

b s il S ES A
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year

FYERTHEEE 338,433.17 268,605.92
Units issued &Z1T{3 8T - 161,501.70
Units redeemed J&[E{5ER (134,627.40) (91,674.45)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRBRITHGHE 11 203,805.77 338,433.17
RMB Hedged Class A Distribution

ARDIHASHIL S5
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year

FYERITHETEE 29,807,488.68  40,145,187.48
Units issued &{THEN 1,561,422.60 1,554,780.21
Units redeemed J&[E{5ER (7,059,170.90) (11,892,479.01)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRBRITHGHE 11 24,309,740.38  29,807,488.68
RMB Hedged Class C Distribution

ARDRMCERIU SR ER
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year

FYERITHEEE 876,101.83 -
Units issued &Z{THET 47.56 876,101.83
Units redeemed JEEHAER (875,059.35) -
Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRBRITHGHE 11 1,090.04 876,101.83
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders
(Continued) .
SELLTIIFE N REFEERRER (4)

For the Year ended 30th June 2025
TETAFENA=FHIEFE

2025 2024
Units Units
Note “ERE —EINE
AR HER K
RMB Hedged Class M Accumulation
ARTXAHAMER RIRRE
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FHERITHEEHE 1,213,468.14 1,161,774.45
Units issued &Z{THEN 1,318,205.68 362,244.41
Units redeemed J&[E{5ER (967,457.20) (310,550.72)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FRBRITHGHE 11 1,564,216.62 1,213,468.14
RMB Hedged Class M Distribution
ARDI MBI S8
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year
FYERITHETEE - -
Units issued &Z1T{A 8T 10,756.33 -
Units redeemed JEE1AER (1,336.28) -
Number of units in issue at the end of the year
FRBRITHGHE 11 9,420.05 -
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders
(Continued) .
SELLTIIFE N REFEERRER (4)

For the Year ended 30th June 2025
TETAFENA=FHIEFE

2025 2024
Units Units
Note “ERE —EINE
AR HER K

GBP Hedged Class A Accumulation

BEEENS AR RIURE
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year

FHERITHEEHE 84,241.04 82,891.91
Units issued 171781 - 2,277.59
Units redeemed J&[E5ER (28,761.48) (928.46)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRBRITHGHE 11 55,479.56 84,241.04
GBP Hedged Class A Distribution

FEEEIRARRIR ST
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the year

FYERTHEEE 2,550,969.76 3,220,106.04
Units issued &{THEN 915,086.48 508,377.43
Units redeemed J&[E5ER (880,777.49)  (1,177,513.71)
Number of units in issue at the end of the year

FRBRITHGHE 11 2,585,278.75 2,550,969.76

The notes on pages 30 to 127 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
MERER

For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRENA=FHILEE

2025 2024
HK$ HK$
Note “E-RHE “EuE
AR BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities
FEVSESZNERE
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to unitholders
DELHEFE NEEFTZ (RL) /181N (63,569,751) 796,459,636
Adjustments for: JE%E :
- Dividends B&F (307,489,414) (332,917,304)
- Interest on bank and margin deposits FFRURFEEF & (15,337,767) (18,429,985)
- Interest on debt securities R53IEHF S (390,283,586) (390,803,823)
- Interest on collateral E#FZF 2 (278,143) (378,954)
- Interest expense FJEZ H 287,516 938,239
- Capital gains tax ZF=EENH 6,074,814 24,563,200
- Withholding tax F$0#3 27,458,533 27,585,872
- Distributions to unitholders BFIDRAMDTIZEA 891,156,773 870,114,299
- Net exchange (gains)/losses ;L5 % (Ugzs) /53 (8,645,510) 16,550,658
Operating profit before working capital changes
BIEATHTRIZEE R 139,373,465 993,681,838
Net decrease in investments and financial derivative
instruments A KRERMITE TR ZBLRE 1,830,691,823 3,572,623,570
Net (increase)/decrease in margin deposits - restricted
SIRBMRIEEZ GE), WL EE (21,903,253) 137,778,211
Increase in deposit with brokers
ZL0FZIEm (33,401,266) (7,104,734)
Increase/(decrease) in cash collateral liabilities
EIRRRAGRZIEM, CR) 8,123,840 (13,897,062)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts payable on purchase of
investments RZ{HAMHE AN 180, ORiL) 45,873,968 (95,163,001)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables
HAR Rz 80, CrizL) 44,593,989 (5,574,635)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts receivable on disposal of
investments RZYIHH AN (3EIN) R (59,799,296) 182,125,019
Decrease in other receivables and prepayments
=K VAl e S TUNETR T 2,218 256,162
Cash generated from operations @ EFFF=4E 2 ME 1,953,555,488  4,764,725,368
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Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
MERER ()

For the Year ended 30th June 2025

SE RN ALEE

2025 2024
HK$ HK$
Note “EhRE TETNE
AR BT BT
Dividends received BEUKAZF 309,725,288 347,314,647
Taxation paid BEf3HI (40,748,753) (38,423,729)
Interest on bank and margin deposits received
BRERRRIEEHE 15,356,476 18,436,182
Interest on debt securities received BRESIEAHF 2 406,021,078 416,490,597
Interest on collateral received BWIEIFRFE 278,143 378,954
Interest paid 372 (287,516) (938,239)
Net cash generated from operating activities
SFEWSFRFEEZIE 2,643,900,204 5,507,983,780
Cash flows from financing activities Fi:&;EzhZz M HE
Distributions paid to unitholders ST HEIFE A2 IRF (889,728,429)  (884,623,783)
Proceeds from subscription of units IATHAERFRSTRIN 2,090,697,295 1,282,106,107
Payments on redemption of units TEEIAERSE {3 7RI (4,215,525,263)  (5,813,906,602)
Net cash used in financing activities
RPESFRIZ R Z & S8 (3,014,556,397)  (5,416,424,278)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
MERMEENM2% (FL), /18N (370,656,193) 91,559,502
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
FENIMERIMEENY 623,350,610 548,341,766
Net exchange gains/(losses) ;L 5% RE / (S17) 8,645,510 (16,550,658)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
FELMERMEENY 261,339,927 623,350,610
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:
MERMEENIRGD
Cash and bank deposits &K RITER 9(a) 248,661,020 261,704,239
Margin deposits - unrestricted fRIESE — RZ R 6 12,678,907 361,646,371
261,339,927 623,350,610

The notes on pages 30 to 127 are an integral part of these financial statements.

B=+E-B - HEZERNERAMSIRERZ 8%

29

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund



Notes to the Financial
Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund (the
“Fund”) is a sub-fund of Schroder Umbrella
Fund II. Schroder Umbrella Fund 1II is an
umbrella unit trust which is governed by
its Trust Deed dated 8th October 2010,
as amended (the “Trust Deed"), between
Schroder Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited (the “Manager”) and HSBC
Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
(the “Trustee”). The Fund is authorised by
the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong (“SFC") under Section 104(1)
of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance and is required to comply
with the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual
Funds established by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the
“UT Code”). The Fund was approved for
sales in Mainland China under Mutual
Recognition of Funds (“MRF”) scheme on
24th May 2017, by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission.

The Fund's objective is to provide income
and capital growth over the medium to
longer term by investing primarily in Asian
equities and Asian fixed income securities.

The Fund will seek to achieve the
investment objective primarily (i.e. at
least 70% of its net asset value) through
investment in a portfolio of equity
and equity related securities of Asian
(including countries in Asia-Pacific)
companies which offer sustainable
dividend payments, including real estate
investment trusts (“REITs”), and bonds,
and other fixed or floating rate securities
of investment grade or below investment
grade (at the time of or subsequent to
acquisition), issued by governments,
government agencies, supranational and

ItSSRBR 2 AR
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TREPBESNZFESE - P EEEEEI
RIRE—MHETERAEE (F8) ARA
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> AfA—Z—2F+A/\BNEREY
(R11]) IR BIEREES - 78S
HERBBIESFSRAEESHEZRARRIE
BEIESKIAREGIFE10401) il > HZ
EBUFRPRESBRERRRIZHE
ERREBREETUNE - FEEZEREF
EESFEEEEZRAAE 201512 S(&
BEHINESEETTAE)  F-T—tFhH
A +HBAZPEIE SIS TR RETER
ERAFHE

ARSHERRIBETRATTHNREAD
TMEEGEIES - MR R KRR
HRARIEE °

FEETE BEDESFHE~ERNT70%) &
BAF-BEFREFSERERFNTN AT
HIBRAFIRANE KIS - BFEEM~REA

& (“REITs") MR > URBHITMNE AT
BUFH ~ BERNERABRITHEHESFH
HMEEWEHEF RIS (ZFIESEW AR
HMAEFISER AR RARSISFIRAE LRI
THIES) » BUABIRE BT o ZESRFLD
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HIR ~ BaREEITBBB-/Baa3 (HAEFR
) LT3 > SBRERFEERERITR
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

companies in Asia (including countries in
Asia-Pacific). The Fund is not subject to any
limitation on the portion of its net asset
value that may be invested in any country
in Asia (including countries in Asia-Pacific)
or sector. The Fund may invest below 50%
of its net asset value in bonds and debt
securities which are below investment
grade (i.e. rated below BBB-/Baa3 (or
its equivalent by any internationally
recognised credit rating agency, such as
Standard & Poor's, Moody's or Fitch, or
rated AA- or below by any mainland China
domestic credit rating agency; whenever
different ratings are assigned by different
credit rating agencies, the lowest credit
ratings assigned to the security will be
adopted by the Fund) or unrated debt
securities at time of acquisition. For this
purpose, if the relevant security does not
itself have a credit rating, then reference
can be made to the credit rating of the
issuer of the security. If both the security
and the relevant issuer are not rated,
then the security will be classified as
unrated. The Fund may invest up to 20%
of its net asset value in debt instruments
with loss-absorption features such as
contingent convertible bonds, Additional
Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital notes, capital
security bonds, senior non-preferred
debts and total loss-absorbing capacity
bonds. The Fund may, if the Manager
considers fit, seek exposure of not more
than 20% of its net asset value to other
asset classes including but not limited
to non-Asian securities, commodities
(including energy, metals and agricultural
commodities) indirectly through exchange
traded funds (“ETFs”) and/or similar
instruments.

ItSSRBR 2 AR
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a

~

The material accounting policies applied
in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Statement of compliance and basis of
preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The financial
statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets and
financial liabilities (including financial
derivative instruments) held at fair value
through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires the Trustee and the Manager
to exercise their judgment in the process
of applying the Fund'’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements are disclosed
in note 4. Certain comparative figures
have been reclassified to conform to the
current year's presentation.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2.

(a)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Statement of compliance and basis of
preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 30th
June 2025

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year
ended 30th June 2025 and which have
not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include
the following which may be relevant to
the Fund.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

2. EFESITHE (8)

(a) WSR2 EERARRHIELE (42)

BE_E_REA=+HILEEENGE

2

HARERZIETTZ ~ T EN IS Al Aer £

BEZEVSRERTIABEH > FBSIHIIA
SEMASIESEE_S _AF,BA=1H
I FERREMB T IZEUSIRERFREA
ZITREETT AN - ZEREBIETIIT
BESAEEHEXE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
F FEIRAZ 2 IE7E
ZIHABEIERL

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange

rates - Lack of exchangeability

BRI ENE 2N SZET INCLE LI - ok L

1stJanuary 2025
T RE-

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments and HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: disclosures - Amendments to the classification and

measurement of financial instruments

(BERMSRE

Annual improvements to HKFRSs - Volume 11

EEMSREENFENHE — 51148

HKFRS 18, Presentation and disclosure in financial statements

BEEMSREENE18S » MSRELITHRRHKE

The Trustee is in the process of making an
assessment on what the impact of these
developments are expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on
the financial statements.

ENEIS - 2HTA) R(EBUSREENETS
—EETR - WE)HET — BXEMT RN LRITEBHE]T

1st January 2026
v

1st January 2026
e

‘IstJanuary 2027
-y 2

IR ANIEFEIHME Eit & RTEE R A HAE)
FEIEEZ®Mm » 125 » HEBIANRNZE
TR ANV SIRREREFERFI
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESIHEER (8)

(Continued)

(a) MSHRZBIEFARRRIEE (48)

(a) Statement of compliance and basis of

preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period
of the Fund. None of these developments
have had a material effect on how the
Fund’s result and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

The Fund has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting
period.

SHHERTH

FAZIHRE > FEBRITMASMAE—RT
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Investments

Classification
(i) Assets

The Fund classifies its investments based
on both the Fund's business model for
managing those financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. The portfolio of financial
assets is managed and performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis. The
Fund is primarily focuses on fair value
information and uses that information
to assess the assets' performance and to
make decisions. The Fund has not taken
the option to irrevocably designate any
equity securities as fair value through
other comprehensive income. The
contractual cash flows of the Fund’'s debt
securities are solely principal and interest,
however, these securities are neither held
for the purpose of collecting contractual
cash flows nor held both for collecting
contractual cash flows and for sale. The
collection of contractual cash flows is only
incidental to achieving the Fund's business
objective. Consequently, all investments
are measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

2. EFESITHE (8)

(b) &

ES

(i ==

FEEFEZHEESRE A SR
REMACFHNANNEREFT RO LHR
& o EMAFHERBAANEREEEIEN
HNESH - ZEEMETFARNMERN
HABAARNERTITE RS ELIR
TE o BEEQERNERN > FrIHEHEMR
EENEIESFIEENRAANEBIHME
AT o ZEEHESZIESFHSIIUER
REFEEEMFE > ARMZFIESFHIEFF
WS E RS RS EN S LI TR
FMENHERR - WEYIMERNAER
FEEWSEXBETHIMHIE o FHIt > Fr
BERBIRAANEBIREITE ©

35

Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund



ItSSRBR 2 AR

Notes to the Financial
Statements

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESIHEER (8)

(Continued)

(b) $&3 (48)

(b) Investments (Continued)

Classification (Continued) 23 (8
(ii) Liabilities (i) fafk

Derivative contracts that have a negative
fair value are presented as liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

As such, the Fund classifies all of its
investment portfolio as financial assets
or liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss.

Recognition, derecognition and
measurement

Purchases and sales of investments are
accounted for on the trade date basis.
Investments are initially recognised at
fair value, excluding transaction costs
which are expensed as incurred, and
are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Realised and unrealised gains
and losses on investments are included
in the statement of comprehensive
income in the year in which they arise.
Investments are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or the Fund
has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Financial liability
is derecognised when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Investments (Continued)

Recognition, derecognition and
measurement (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, all
financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the statement
of comprehensive income within net
change in unrealised appreciation/
depreciation in value of investments and
financial derivative instruments in the
period in which they arise.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of
financial assets and liabilities traded
in active markets are based on quoted
market prices at the close of trading on
the reporting date.

Investments that are listed or traded on
an exchange are fair valued based on
quoted last traded prices.

Investments which are not listed on an
exchange or are thinly traded are valued
by using quotes from brokers.

Investments in unit trusts or unlisted
funds are valued at their net asset value
per unit as provided by the respective
administrators of such funds.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

(d

=)

(Continued)
Financial derivative instruments

Derivatives are recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Fair values
are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models
and option pricing models, as appropriate.
All derivatives are carried as assets when
fair value is positive and as liabilities when
fair value is negative.

Subsequent changes in the fair value of
any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that
has been designed so that voting or
similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the
entity, such as when any voting rights
relate to administrative tasks only and
the relevant activities are directed by
means of contractual arrangements. A
structured entity often has some or all
of the following features or attributes;
(a) restricted activities, (b) a narrow and
well-defined objective, such as to provide
investment opportunities for investors by
passing on risks and rewards associated
with the assets of the structured entity
to investors, (c) insufficient equity to
permit the structured entity to finance its
activities without subordinated financial
support and (d) financing in the form of
multiple contractually linked instruments
to investors that create concentrations of
credit or other risks (tranches).
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Structured entities (Continued)

The Fund considers all of its investments
in other funds (“Investee Funds”) to be
investments in unconsolidated structured
entities. The Fund invests in Investee
Funds whose objective is to achieve long
term capital growth. The Investee Funds
are managed by related and unrelated
asset managers who apply various
investment strategies to accomplish their
respective investment objectives. The
Investee Funds finance their operations
by issuing redeemable shares which are
puttable at the holder’s option and entitles
the holder to a proportional stake in the
respective fund’'s net assets. The Fund
holds redeemable shares in each of its
Investee Funds.

The change in fair value of each Investee
Fund is included in the statement of
comprehensive income in “net change
in unrealised appreciation/depreciation
in value of investments and financial
derivative instruments”.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

(e

~

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Income and expenses

Dividend income on equity securities is
recorded on the ex-dividend date with the
corresponding foreign withholding taxes
recorded as an expense.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportionate basis using the effective
interest method. Interest income on bank
and margin deposits, interest income on
collateral and interest income on debt
securities are separately disclosed in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Other income and expenses are
accounted for on an accruals basis.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in
which the Fund operates (the “functional
currency”). The performance of the Fund is
measured and reported to the unitholders
in Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$"). The Manager
considers HK$ as the currency that most
faithfully represents the economic effects
of the underlying transactions, events
and conditions. The financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Fund's
functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2.

U]

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign
currency assets and liabilities are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rate prevailing at the
year end date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from translation are included in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
relating to financial assets and liabilities
other than investments and financial
derivative instruments are presented in
the statement of comprehensive income
within “net exchange gains/(losses)".

Foreign exchange gains and losses
relating to the financial assets and
liabilities carried at fair value through
profit or loss are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income
within “net realised losses on investments
and financial derivative instruments” and
“net change in unrealised appreciation/
depreciation in value of investments and
financial derivative instruments”.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(9

~

(Continued)
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Fund or
the counterparty.

(h) Amounts receivable/payable on

disposal/purchase of investments

Amounts receivable/payable on disposal/
purchase of investments represent
receivables for investments sold and
payables for investment purchased that
have been contracted for but not yet
settled or delivered on the statement of
financial position date respectively.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

2.

0]

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. At each reporting date,
the Fund shall measure the loss allowance
on amounts due from counterparties at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If,
at the reporting date, the credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Fund shall measure the
loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses.

Significant financial difficulties of the
counterparties, probability that the
counterparties will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default in
payments are all considered indicators
that a loss allowance may be required. If
the credit risk increases to the point that
it is considered to be credit impaired,
interest income will be calculated based
on the gross carrying amount adjusted for
the loss allowance. A significant increase
in credit risk is defined by management
as any contractual payment which is more
than 30 days past due. Any contractual
payment which is more than 90 days past
due is considered credit impaired.
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0

(k

M

=

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Distributions payable

Proposed distributions to unitholders
are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when they are
appropriately authorised by the Manager
and no longer at the discretion of the
Fund. The distribution on the redeemable
units is recognised as a finance cost in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, bank and demand deposits, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less
and bank overdrafts, if any.

(m)Margin accounts

Margin accounts represent margin
deposits held in respect of futures
contracts.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

(n)

(o)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deposit with brokers/Cash collateral
liabilities

Based on agreements entered between
brokers and the Fund, one party will have
an obligation to pay cash collateral for
the return of the portfolio of derivative
attributable to the counterparty if the
return of the portfolio of derivative equals
or exceeds a predetermined threshold
at any valuation day. The movement of
derivative is marked to market daily, which
determines whether the Fund receives
from or pays cash collateral to the broker
on a daily basis.

Taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises of
current income tax and deferred income
tax. Tax expense is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the
countries where the Fund operates and
generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BT ()
(Continued)

(o) Taxation (Continued) (o) FI (4%)
Deferred income tax BIEFRTSHL
Deferred income tax is recognised, BIEFRIRHF A A CUEMIAR =M A GBI
using the liability method, on temporary BES5BEMAGREMSIRRNIKEENZT
differences arising between the tax bases MEENENUES « BEFMSHRAEM
of assets and liabilities and their carrying SAGRAFIE MM LR EEMAE » HE
amounts in the financial statements. BXIEIEFMSH = SIS EIEFT SR T
However, deferred tax liabilities are not REERTHSERNRE (BAF) mE
recognised if they arise from the initial TE °

recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement of
financial position date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are BIEFTS IR R (N T REK A BE R = £ M IRH
recognised only to the extent that it is A USRI s A E BT M E R RYIER FHAIA ©

probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

mEETNEEREES 46



Notes to the Financial
Statements

2.

(o)

()

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Redeemable units

Redeemable units are classified as
financial liabilities and are issued or
redeemed at the holder’s option at prices
based on the Fund's net asset value per
unit as at the close of business on the
relevant dealing day. The Fund's net asset
value per unit is calculated by dividing the
net assets attributable to the unitholders
with the total number of outstanding
units.
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Statements

3.

(@)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Strategy in using financial instruments

The Fund's objective is to provide income
and capital growth over the medium to
longer term by investing primarily in Asian
equities and Asian fixed income securities.

The Fund will actively allocate between
Asian equities, Asian fixed income
securities, other asset classes and cash
and money market instruments to achieve
the Fund's objectives. The Fund's expected
asset allocation ranges for each asset
class is expected to be the following:

Asian equities: 30 -70%
Asian fixed income: 20 -70%
Other asset classes: 0-20%
Cash and money market

instruments: 0-30%

The Fund is exposed to market price risk,
interest rate risk, credit and counterparty
risk, currency risk and liquidity risk arising
from the financial instruments held.

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate
as a result of changes in market prices,
whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual
instrument or factors affecting all
instruments in the market.

All investments present a risk of loss of
capital. The Fund’s market price risk is
managed through diversification of the
investment portfolio. The Fund’s overall
market positions are monitored on a
regular basis by the Manager.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSKEER
(a) ZRER T AR

FEENEMETIEEIRAFINREN
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Notes to the Financial ST AR
Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSREEE (8)
(Continued)
(b) Market price risk (Continued) (b) THIHMIERE (47)
As at 30th June 2025 and 2024, the overall BE_SE_AFKR-_E-_MNE,B=1+H"
market exposures were as follows: FEESHNEETIZNEEABOT !
2025 2024
ZECRF k= 14
% of % of
Fair value net assets Fair value net assets
RAME HARE RAME HARE
Epaisd BAL
HK$ HK$
Assets &fE
Held for trading 5 {EX B :
Equities BzE 5,466,078,931 38.06% 7,026,971,293 42.42%
Investment funds I AEE 2,720,392,966 18.94%  2,115,107,660 12.76%
Debt securities fR53IEH 5,911,364,448 41.17%  6,741,694,197 40.68%
Futures #A%% 38,191,346 0.27% 28,616,790 0.17%
Foreign exchange forward contracts
mHINCELY 69,211,284 0.48% 28,539,529 0.17%
Options i 28,050,000 0.20% - -
14,233,288,975 99.12% 15,940,929,469 96.20%
Liabilities faf%
Futures A% (4,953,315) (0.04%) (9,271,946) (0.06%)
Foreign exchange forward contracts
mHSNCEL (155,471,995) (1.08%) (28,102,035) (0.17%)
(160,425,310) (1.12%) (37,373,981) (0.23%)
14,072,863,665 98.00% 15,903,555,488 95.97%
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Market price risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the market
exposures of the Fund as at 30th June
2025 and 2024:

Held for trading (Note) I8 {EXZH GER) :

Equities I§ZE
Australia JEH
China &

Hong Kong &7
India ENE
Indonesia ENfE
Japan BZ&
Malaysia 53R #5IL
New Zealand #75=
Philippines JEf2E
Singapore Fi03E
South Korea m&%
Taiwan &%
Thailand =&
United States [

Investment funds EES
Hong Kong &#&
Luxembourg AZE
Singapore Nk
United Kingdom Z&[E
United States ==

Note: The market exposures of the listed
equities and investment funds are
based on the country of trade, the
market exposures of the unlisted
investment funds are based on
the place of incorporation, and
the market exposure of the debt
securities are based on the place
of domicile.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSERE (4)

(b) THIHMIERE (47)
TRAPF S -_RER T _WEA=

+HAESHNHIZXEEE
2025 2024
—EhHEF —ZmE

% of net assets

HEAFERAL SFEFERSL

% of net assets

3.65% 7.01%
0.72% 0.92%
11.19% 8.49%
6.54% 6.96%
0.59% 0.72%
- 1.47%
0.35% -
0.29% 0.56%
0.06% 0.13%
4.32% 3.12%
3.66% 3.78%
6.27% 8.40%
0.21% 0.50%
0.21% 0.36%
38.06% 42.42%
5.09% 4.53%
7.70% 6.18%
1.01% -
3.04% -
2.10% 2.05%
18.94% 12.76%

LHRER EHRERSHHIZNG
ABEREELEMERRITE > 3F
L HRARENTHIZXLEIERRE
BBt RS > SSIESHIHIIR
FAIBNZRER (Pt & -
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Market price risk (Continued)

Held for trading (Note) (Continued):
BHEERZZA G£F) (&) ©
Debt securities f&53iE 3
Australia B
Bermuda BRZA .
British Virgin Islands EE4#/RRES

Cayman Islands Fr22%

Chile 571

China &

Hong Kong &#
India ENE
Indonesia ENfE

Isle of Man £&
Japan B
Luxembourg F#REE
Macau %|]
Malaysia 537"
Mauritius 2 5KHt
Mongolia &
Netherlands fa7=
New Zealand #75=
Philippines JF2 &=
Singapore N3
South Korea ma&%
Sﬁain sl
Thailand Z=E
United Kingdom Z&[E
United States E[E

Note:

The market exposures of the listed
equities and investment funds are
based on the country of trade, the
market exposures of the unlisted
investment funds are based on
the place of incorporation, and
the market exposure of the debt
securities are based on the place
of domicile.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

IS5 R ETE (48)

(b) TN (48)

2025 2024
“ECHEF —ECHE

% of net assets % of net assets
HREAFEESLE SFEFERSL

1.50% 2.99%
0.18% -
0.70% 0.72%
0.41% 0.75%
- 0.04%
3.82% 5.14%
7.70% 8.91%
1.97% 2.74%
3.21% 2.76%
0.22% -
3.17% 1.73%
0.04% 0.04%
1.31% 1.57%
0.22% 0.32%
1.22% 1.50%
0.12% -
1.16% 0.78%
0.43% 0.46%
0.45% 0.75%
0.24% 1.72%
2.14% 3.27%
- 0.09%
0.87% 0.64%
3.42% 2.91%
6.89% 0.85%
41.17% 40.68%

AR LHRER ETRAESNHIZNG

AERREELEREERRITE > JF
LR ARSI NLEIDZRE
M2 8 0 SIS AhiaN
RN BRI ARt E o
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Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Market price risk (Continued)

Held for trading (Note) (Continued):
HEERSH GER) (%) :

Futures %%

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSKEER (8)

(b) THEHNIEME (42)

2025
“ETRE
% of net assets

2024
T E
% of net assets

HEAFERAL SFEFERSL

Australia B - 0.00%
Germany & (0.01%) 0.04%
Hong Kong &# 0.03% 0.07%
Japan B - 0.00%
Singapore A0 - (0.01%)
South Korea @ 0.12% 0.02 %
United States £ 0.09% (0.01%)
0.23% 0.11%

Foreign exchange forward contracts iZ#INC &4
AUD vs USD (forwards date: 21/07/2025) 0.11% -
CNH vs USD (forwards date: 21/07/2025) 0.01% -
EUR vs USD (forwards date: 21/07/2025) 0.00% -
GBP vs USD (forwards date: 21/07/2025) 0.01% -
JPY vs USD (forwards date: 16/07/2025) 0.04% -
KRW vs USD (forwards date: 16/07/2025) 0.05% -
PHP vs USD (forwards date: 16/07/2025) 0.03% -
SGD vs USD (forwards date: 16/07/2025) 0.15% -
SGD vs USD (forwards date: 11/09/2025) 0.00% -
THB vs USD (forwards date: 16/07/2025) 0.02% -
TWD vs USD (forwards date: 16/07/2025) 0.03% -
USD vs AUD (forwards date: 21/07/2025) (0.00%) -
USD vs AUD (forwards date: 05/08/2025) (0.00%) -
USD vs CNH (forwards date: 16/07/2025) (0.05%) -
USD vs CNH (forwards date: 21/07/2025) (0.00%) -
USD vs CNH (forwards date: 25/09/2025) (0.00%) -
USD vs CNH (forwards date: 15/12/2025) (0.00%) -
USD vs EUR (forwards date: 21/07/2025) (0.02%) -
USD vs GBP (forwards date: 21/07/2025) (0.00%) -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSREEE (4)
(Continued)
(b) Market price risk (Continued) (b) THIHMIERE (47)
2025 2024
—E-RF —E-mE

% of net assets % of net assets

HEAFERAL SFEFERSL

Held for trading (Note) (Continued):

FEERZA CGE8) (8) :

Foreign exchange forward contracts (Continued)

IHRIMCEL (4R)

USD vs JPY (forwards date: 16/07/2025) (0.06%) -
USD vs KRW (forwards date: 16/07/2025) (0.14%) -
USD vs PHP (forwards date: 16/07/2025) 0.02% -
USD vs SGD (forwards date: 16/07/2025) (0.53%) -
USD vs SGD (forwards date: 11/09/2025) (0.02%) -
USD vs THB (forwards date: 16/07/2025) (0.08%) -
USD vs TWD (forwards date: 16/07/2025) (0.17%) -
AUD vs USD (forwards date: 19/07/2024) - 0.05%
USD vs CNH (forwards date: 19/07/2024) - 0.00%
USD vs GBP (forwards date: 19/07/2024) - 0.00%
USD vs JPY (forwards date: 24/07/2024) - 0.08%
USD vs TWD (forwards date: 24/07/2024) - 0.03%
CNH vs USD (forwards date: 19/07/2024) - (0.09%)
GBP vs USD (forwards date: 19/07/2024) - (0.01%)
IDR vs USD (forwards date: 24/07/2024) - (0.01%)
PHP vs USD (forwards date: 24/07/2024) - (0.03%)

USD vs AUD (forwards date: 19/07/2024) -

( )
USD vs INR (forwards date: 24/07/2024) - (0.01%)
USD vs SGD (forwards date: 24/07/2024) - (0.00%)
USD vs THB (forwards date: 24/07/2024) - (0.00%)
(0.60%) 0.00%

Options HAtX
Hong Kong &# 0.20% -
Total &it 98.00% 95.97%
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3.

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Market price risk (Continued)

As at 30th June 2025 and 2024, the Fund
had no investments with market value
exceeding 10% of its net assets.

The table below summarises the impact
on the Fund's net assets attributable
to unitholders as a result of increases/
(decreases) of the key index to which
the Fund’'s underlying investments are
exposed. The analysis is based on the
assumption that the index had increased/
(decreased) by the respective percentage
with all other variables held constant and
the fair value of the Fund's investments
moved according to the historical
correlation with the index. Market price
risk for debt securities is disclosed in note
3(c) under interest rate risk.
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3. MSRSER (4)

(b) THEAMIBME (48)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSKSEE (4)
(Continued)
(b) Market price risk (Continued) (b) THIHMIERE (45)
30th June 2025 30th June 2024
ZZCRFAA=HH “ZMFAA=HH
Impact on Impact on
net assets net assets
attributable to attributable to
Changein unitholders Change in unitholders
Benchmark benchmark Al benchmark Py

components components by EHFEA  components by [LETEEZDN
BRI BXIERNER ORAFNRN BXERNTE RN

Portfolio investment HK$ HK$
BRARAG % BT % BT
Asian Equities MSCI AC

i Asia Pacific ex Japan 120% 573,545,817 6.7% 410,870,535
Japanese Equities

[=p:NES Topix index 8.0% - 8.5% 19,022,451
Investment funds MSCI AC

REEE Pacific Ex Japan NR 120% 161,256,167 6.7% 92,618,051
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(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Market price risk (Continued)

The Manager has used its view of what
would be a “reasonable possible shift” in
each key market to estimate the change
for use in the market sensitivity analysis
above.

Disclosures above are shown in absolute
terms, changes and impacts could be
positive or negative. Changes in market
index % are revised annually depending
on the Manager’s current view of market
volatility and other relevant factors.

The Fund's investments in Investee Funds
are subject to the terms and conditions
of the respective Investee Funds' offering
documents and are susceptible to market
price risk arising from uncertainties about
future values of those Investee Funds. The
right of the Fund to request redemption
of its investments in the Investee Funds is
on daily basis.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSERE (4)

(b) THEAMIBME (48)

ZEADREANS-—TETHN"GET
"R EERMGIT LT HHRED AL
Ej_]o

LR BTN BIETIT » BRIk B
EWE AL - e RE B D LEHRES
EA LSRN HIREREME XE R L#
TRESEHIELT ©

FESEERRRAESPHIRE » BEME
RABEHREX AP IIBRERASR S
FRAR > AR BRI S RERIRARER
EMEBXNRHE M~ ENTZNEX
FFfi - AR SR T8 A BRBREHEERE
ZRABTHHIREF

mEETNEEREES

56



Notes to the Financial
Statements

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Market price risk (Continued)

The exposure to investments in Investee
Funds at fair value by strategy employed
is disclosed in the following table. These
investments are included in “investments”
in the statement of financial position.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSERE (4)

(b) THEAMIBME (48)

EERZRAEZSPHRANNLEE » HAQ
SREIZFI AR RBRTE TRPIRE - LF
BAEVSIKIRERPFIA KA —T °

2025
“ETRE
Number of
Investee % of net
Type of investment Funds assets
funds BERA Fairvalue (%% (E
REESMHE HezHE RAME [Epais
HK$
BT
Multi asset fund
b 1 601,854,942 4.19%
Fixed income fund
Bl N EES 5 1,428,883,103 9.95%
Equities fund
REES 2 689,654,921 4.80%
2,720,392,966 18.94%

The Fund’s maximum exposure to loss
from its interests in Investee Funds equal
to the total fair value of its investments in
Investee Funds.

Once the Fund has disposed of its shares
in an Investee Fund, the Fund ceases to
be exposed to any risk from that Investee
Fund.

Number of
Investee
Funds
BERA
BEE7HE

2024
=S 1=
% of net
assets
Fairvalue &&= E
ARME BAtt
HK$
BT
750,602,578 4.53%
345,147,896 2.08%
1,019,357,186 6.15%
2,115,107,660 12.76%

FEETFHRRAZSPINGEFAEN Z &K
PRERTHRATHRIRAEENARMNE -

—BARESHEATERRE

AR EPHRG

FETRHTEEIGEBZRRA %%E’JEH
XIBE o
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Market price risk (Continued)

(0

The Fund’s holding in a third party
Investee Fund, as a percentage of the
Investee Fund's total net asset value, will
vary from time to time dependent on the
volume of subscriptions and redemptions
at the Investee Fund level. It is possible
that the Fund may, at any point in time,
hold a majority of an Investee Fund’s total
units in issue.

During the year ended 30th June 2025, the
total net gains incurred on investments
in Investee Funds were HK$288,598,066
(2024: total net gain of HK$81,994,344). As
at 30th June 2025 and 2024, there were
no capital commitment obligations and
no amounts due to Investee Funds for
unsettled purchases.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value
of a financial instrument and future cash
flow will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates.

At 30th June 2025, the Fund had bank
balances of HK$248,661,020 (2024:
HK$261,704,239) and the margin deposits
with interest bearing of HK$135,139,162
(2024: HK$347,405,254). No sensitivity
analysis is prepared as the bank balances
and margin deposits are short-term
in nature, and are therefore exposed
to minimal interest rate risk on these
balances.
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3.

(0

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2025, the debt securities
held by the Fund amounted
to HK$5,911,364,448 (2024:
HK$6,741,694,197) and fixed income
funds amounted to HK$1,428,883,103
(2024: HK$345,147,896). Should interest
rates have lowered/risen by 50 basis
points (2024: 75 basis points) with all
other variables remaining constant,
the increase/decrease in net assets
attributable to unitholders for the
year would amount to approximately
HK$156,270,301 (2024: HK$216,472,394),
arising from the increase/decrease in
market values of the debt securities and
the fixed income funds.

The Manager has used its view of what
would be a “reasonable possible shift” in
the market interest rates to estimate the
change for use in the interest rate risk
sensitivity analysis above.

Disclosures above are shown in absolute
terms, changes and impacts could be
positive or negative. Changes in basis
points are revised annually depending
on the Manager’s current view of market
interest rate sensitivity and other relevant
factors.

The table below summarises the Fund’'s
exposure to interest rate risk categorised
by maturity dates. The investments
classified within 1-5 years and over 5 years
categories comprise floating rate bonds
and fixed rate resettable bonds, which
have a repricing date that occur before
the maturity date.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSERE (4)

(c) FIERE (%)

FEZRENAB=1H > xESFRE
HSBIEHEZMNM{ENS5,911,364,4488 7T (Z
TP : 6,741,694,197B7T) RIEEKF
BEEWEZESZNEN1,428,883,103%
7t (ZZ P94 : 345,147,896 7T) © e
METRE,/ EAFT+ES(ZTE-ME
t+HER) (MEMTHRERERE) » &
FEDPRAMTFENEEZENEM
WA 29156,270,301 BT (ZE M4 :
216,472,3947875T) » FERBRETHRSBIUE
HEREEREREESTINES ZNEN
EF T o

ZEADRBEANHHHEN"GEER"E
TER AL A R R BURRE 2 TR AR
TEf o

LR BTN BIHETIT 0 RN KRR
EHE AL - ERRNEEDLRBEZBEANY
R i7 R R R Bt A KR R B9 AR MR 1
HIEIT o

TR A P R AR Z R XS H L BIHA
B2 o %HF D LT 1-5SFMEL SFERZER
BEFMHRGEFMEENEATEERS ;
BREFNENENBIAEEREAZAT
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRLEER (4)

(c) FIZERE (%)

Non-interest

Upto 1year 1-5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
DF—E —FERE RENE EIERS BE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
b B A B A
As at 30th June 2025
HE-TCIEASHA
Assets &
Cash and bank deposits
NERFTER 248,661,020 - - - 248,661,020
Margin deposits fRif& 135,139,162 - - 23,265,000 158,404,162
Other assets Eft1%™ - - - 283,076,319 283,076,319
Financial derivative instruments
SRITETR - - - 135,452,630 135,452,630
Investments &% 1,420,693,395 1,182,565,574 3,308,105,479 8,186,471,897  14,097,836,345
Total assets &= 28 1,804,493,577 1,182,565,574 3,308,105,479 8,628,265,846  14,923430,476
Liabilities &
Cash collateral liabilities
NEEHRAR - - - 15,150,500 15,150,500
Other liabilities E A - - - 341,265,673 341,265,673
Financial derivative instruments
SRITETR - - - 160,425,310 160,425,310
Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to unitholders)
fifEE (FRRLHTREA
AAF) - - - 516,841,483 516,841,483
Total interest sensitivity gap
BRESEERNEE 1804493577 1,182,565574  3,308,105,479
HEETNESERGES 60
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSKSEE (4)
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FUZERPE (47)
Non-interest
Upto 1year 1-5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
DF—E —FERE RENE EIERS BE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
b B A B A
As at 30th June 2024
HE-T-MmEAZHA
Assets &
Cash and bank deposits
NERRTER 261,704,239 - - - 261,704,239
Margin deposits fRif& 347,405,254 - - 138,063,119 485,468,373
Other assets Bt~ - - - 196,284,654 196,284,654
Financial derivative instruments
SRITETR - - - 57,156,319 57,156,319
Investments &% 476,414,770 2,315,843,564 3,949,435,863 9,142,078,953  15,883,773,150
Total assets &= 28 1,085,524,263 2,315,843 564 3,949,435,863 9,533,583,045  16,884,386,735
Liabilities &
Cash collateral liabilities
NEEHRAR - - - 7,026,660 7,026,660
Other liabilities E A - - - 216,265,994 216,265,994
Financial derivative instruments
SRITETR - - - 37,373,981 37,373,981

Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to unitholders)
fifEE (FRRLHTREA
RAEF) - - - 260,666,635 260,666,635

Total interest sensitivity gap
BHERRENEE 1085524263 2315843564  3,949,435,3863
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Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3. MSRSERE (4)

(d) Credit and counterparty risk (d) EHEMZBFFERIE

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or
counterparty will be unable or unwilling
to meet a commitment that it has entered
into with the Fund.

The Fund's financial assets which are
potentially subject to concentrations
of credit risk consist principally of
bank deposits and assets held with the
custodians.

The Fund limits its exposure to credit
risk by transacting the majority of its
investments and contractual commitment
activities with broker-dealers, banks and
regulated exchanges with high credit
ratings and that the Fund considers to be
well established.

All transactions in investments are settled/
paid for upon delivery using approved
and reputable brokers. The risk of default
is considered minimal as delivery of
investments sold is only made once the
broker has received payment. Payment is
made on a purchase once the investments
have been received by the broker. The
trade will fail if either party fails to meet
its obligation.

The table below summarises the assets
placed with banks and custodian at 30th
June 2025 and 2024:

FEENMABRITIMER BN FLERFE
ETRHR IS AEEREE

BRRES ARSI EPEE NN ERE
FEENEIREAFENRADERRT
it N o

o~

FEENRAKREGLHEE » KBITIHAS
BEEDTRNERITERAT  FHESEE
NARERERE ~ ERTHRFHIMSH
W75 » NMRBIEE X o

FIER 19 ENEL T RNIE
HOR - BFELLBRRERRAEXE
RINE > FRLUEAREER o T ARIRED
BRI TFELWEEXZRATMBERM -
BEA—STERTHRE > XBRERK

THRERF - E-_AER_T_WESA=
+BEERTRITRITE ANES

mEETNEEREES
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Credit and counterparty risk
(Continued)

30th June 2025
—EREA=+H

Custodian & A

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
- Investments #&&
— Cash (Note) iﬂ%(ﬁ%}

Deposit with brokers 24377

BNP Paribas, London Branch
Morgan Stanley and Co Intl Ltd

Banks $B1T
UBS AG, London Branch

30th June 2024
—E-mEAA=1+H

Custodian B A

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
- Investments &%
— Cash (Note) i)l'lbﬁ CGER)

Deposit with brokers 242775k

Morgan Stanley and Co Intl Ltd
Banks fR1T
UBS AG, London Branch

Note: Balance represented cash balances
and investments held with the Custodian
on behalf of the Fund in the name of the
Trustee and placed at The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,
Hong Kong Branch with a credit rating of
P-1(2024: P-1).

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSERE (4)

(d) EHEMZSHFRE ()

Source of

HK$  Creditrating  credit rating

BT ERTER  (EEITERKIR
14,097,836,345 P-1  Moody's f2ig
248,661,020 P-1  Moody's 2
12,481,500 P-1  Moody's 12
28,024,500 P-1  Moody's 2l
158,404,162 P-1  Moody's 2l
Source of

HK$  Creditrating  credit rating

BT ERITR  EETRKR
15,883,773,150 P-1  Moody's 12
261,704,239 P-1  Moody's 2l
7,104,734 P-1  Moody's f2ig1
485,468,373 P-1  Moody's 2

AR EFRRAEAREESFAEMER
FThe Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Branch >
Egi¥9}zi‘gp-1 (ZZEZWE : P-1) » WIS
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Statements
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSKEEE (4)
(Continued)
(d) Credit and counterparty risk (d) {SHEMZFIFFMPE (4%)
(Continued)
As at year end, the counterparties of TEARFOZEMITETENRZXNFU
the outstanding financial derivative LR

instruments are listed as follows:

30th June 2025
—ERFSRA=TH

Counterparties 3253 F

Foreign exchange forward contracts iZ#INC &4

Bank of America N.A., London Branch

Barclays Bank PLC

BNP Paribas SA, Paris Branch

Goldman Sachs Intl, London Branch

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., London Branch

Morgan Stanley and Co Intl, London Branch

Royal Bank of Canada

Standard Chartered Bank, London Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,
Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,
Singapore Branch

UBS AG, London Branch

Futures Hi%5
UBS AG, London Branch
Options

UBS AG, London Branch

Credit rating
ERTA

P-1
P-1
P-1
P-1
P-1
P-1
P-1
P-1

P-1

P-1
P-1

P-1

P-1

Source of
credit rating
EEPRIR

Moody's #8id
Moody's 23
Moody's 123
Moody's 1&g
Moody's 23
Moody's 183
Moody’s #2ig
Moody's #2i

Moody's #2ig

Moody's 183
Moody's #2ig

Moody's 23t

Moody's 123

mEETNEEREES
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSREER (4)
(Continued)
(d) Credit and counterparty risk (d) ISEMZBITFRPE (4%)
(Continued)
30th June 2024
—E_MERAZ+H
Counterparties ZZ B3 F
Source of
Credit rating credit rating
Foreign exchange forward contracts iZHiSMNC AL BRI = ETRRIR
BNP Paribas SA, Paris Branch P-1 Moody's 2l
Goldman Sachs Intl, London Branch P-1 Moody's 23
Morgan Stanley and Co Intl, London Branch P-1 Moody's #2id
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong Branch P-1 Moody's 1238
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited, Singapore Branch P-1 Moody's #2i#
UBS AG, London Branch P-1 Moody's #2i#
Futures HA53
UBS AG, London Branch P-1 Moody's 123
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSREEE (4)

(Continued)

(d) Credit and counterparty risk (d) {SHEMZFIFFMPE (4%)

(Continued)

The Fund holds debt securities and is
therefore exposed to risk that the issuers
may not be able to repay the principal
amount at maturity and interest. This risk
is mitigated as the debt securities held
by the Fund have maintained an average
portfolio credit quality of B, B2 or above

TESFAENGESIIHFSHEASTRATIM
RETEHHARGEERFEZ X o AR
FILEXPE » ZESFENERSIEST S =
AEANB=ZTHEHFFHAEGERRE
FEEITR B ~ B2a A EARZER TR A
A-1+~ F1+ ~ P E(Z 22 KETR
AB -~ B2 L) ©

by long-term rating category, and A-1+,
F1+, P-1 or above by short-term rating
category at 30 June 2025 (2024: B, B2 or
above by long-term rating category).
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Credit and counterparty risk

(Continued)

The table below summarises the credit
rating of the debt securities of the Fund
by S&P’s, Moody's or Fitch at 30th June
2025 and 2024:

Portfolio by long-term rating category
BRIERTREAN DRI AR S

A+*/A1F*
A*/A2**
A-*/A3**
BBB+*/Baal**
BBB*/Baa2**
BBB-*/Baa3**
BB+*/Bal**
BB*/Ba2**
BB-*/Ba3**
B+*/B1**
B*/B2**

NR

Portfolio by short-term rating category
BRAEHE T RSN DA RAS

AT+ /F1+%/P-1 %
NR

* Determined by Standard & Poor's
Ratings Services or Fitch Ratings

** Determined by Moody's Investors
Services

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRLERE (4)

(d) EHEMZSHFRE (4)

TRERF_E_HRER_E_NEA=
+THEAEESREZRSIESFRAAIRED
IR~ BB EERRHNETER -

2025 2024
“EhRE —EE
% of net assets % of net assets

SERFERNLE SEESEESLTL

0.99% 2.03%
0.90% 1.00%
4.54% 4.75%
2.56% 7.80%
8.69% 8.33%
5.75% 7.52%
1.73% 1.91%
1.08% 2.78%
3.21% 2.64%
0.75% 1.11%
0.36% 0.08%
0.72% 0.73%
6.36% -
3.53% -
41.17% 40.68%

* AR B RITR RS AT R E TR
i

** HBEREERS ARBE
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Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSREEE (4)

(Continued)

(d) Credit and counterparty risk (d) {SHEMRZFIFFMBE (4%)

(Continued)

Where credits are rated by one of the
international ratings agencies, the
Manager does not re-construct their
own credit ratings but use the rating
agency as a reference point for their
analysis with the credit analysts focusing
on assessing the directional trend of the
credit. The Manager does not specifically
comment on the external ratings unless
the Manager disagrees materially with the
external agency’s view.

Where a credit is unrated, the Manager
constructs a proxy/shadow rating. The
Manager’s in-house credit research
and rating methodology is particularly
important for unrated credits to ensure
that the credit risk taken is being
adequately compensated for versus
similar-rated issuers in and outside
of Asia. The Manager does not have a
defined rating policy in this regard - it
depends on the analyst's judgment.

Importantly, the analysts must cover
and monitor any credits that the Fund's
portfolios invest in whether they are
rated or not. This means that all unrated
debt securities must undergo the same
rigorous bottom-up credit analysis
process to determine a recommendation
and credit opinion for the issuer and
this forms the basis of the Manager’'s
evaluation of credits for investment.

S TR E—EFRTRADTEE - KEAF
EEM B SHERTER » BERINITSH
WENBEA—PEE I FITEAEEERN
ERDH - RIERBEAIFEFREINIHIG
BIM R > BNEIRARISIMERITR S RIIT
e

WS RARTR » REASBITEI—
MR FITR - FEARNFNERBPE
TN FENRITENERRFHIER
LB RIEE RS R 7T BIHME 5 K LUTR
RRITARIEMUSMNIHK  FTXFSHE > 2
BARSE - BREMTNEER — &BT
DAIMEIHIT o

BEZNE > AU NBSNSERES
HRABESREARTMIIANTS - XEBR
B FTARRITRESIES - K NEE R
FRNE T LENERD I EPBENE
WHRITANRERR » XML TEREARN
THERIR A, o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Credit and counterparty risk
(Continued)

The Fund measures credit risk and
expected credit losses using probability of
default, exposure at default and loss given
default. Management considers both
historical analysis and forward looking
information in determining any expected
credit loss. As at 30th June 2025 and
2024, the amounts receivable on disposal
of investments, amounts receivable on
subscription of units, dividends receivable,
interest receivable on debt securities,
interest receivable on bank and margin
deposits, other receivables, margin
deposits, deposit with brokers and cash
and bank deposits can be realised within
one month. Management considers the
probability of default to be insignificant as
the counterparties have a strong capacity
to meet their contractual obligations
in the near term. As a result, no loss
allowance has been recognised based
on 12-month expected credit losses as
any such impairment would be wholly
insignificant to the Fund.

There were no significant concentrations
in the debt securities portfolio of credit
risk to any individual issuer or group of
issuers at 30 June 2025 and 2024, as the
debt securities held are subject to the
requirements of maximum holding of 10%
of net asset value for any single issuer
except for those issued by Government
and other public securities.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of

financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3.

T3 RBEEIR (4%)

(d) EHEMZSHFRE (8)

(e)

FESFAEAHE « FLIXLABMELY
BIRYIRER - I BER N FEAEE SR
ERRZFEIEEHE DA SRR
EEEATHESRSH B#E"T_AFkK
—E_MFERAZ+TH > RRHERER
T~ RZWCGAT 3 ERFRI ~ RURARF) ~ B7 WS {53
SIESFE ~ MERKRMEEFE « Hith
R R R AR ~ RIEE: ~ ME R ERTT
FRAF—TARNER - BEERINA > BT
RENFIIRRNENT FREANTEL
HE > FIELIBERTK - BETFIL > HE
AT ANTESERSRBINRRES
3\]E1ﬂ1tt%)ﬁi1ﬁiq‘$§$¥1$ﬁﬁ§#$§

FoE-AER-ZZF_WEAA=FTH &
BEERHAENGSIEFESHITUEME—%
IR RITIHERARRERETNLE
Fo AAREERFFAENGRSIESAZ S
—RITNMRSASEIHAATERNZ
+ (B REM AR PR ZITHI GRS IES
5h) BORRE o

TR RBE

CHARIESHT BN ERINF LR
TR ENRAERIRIE o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(e) Currency risk (Continued)

The Fund has assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other
than HK$, the Fund’'s functional and
presentation currency. The Fund is
therefore exposed to currency risk, as
the value of the assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies will
fluctuate due to changes in exchange
rates.

As the HK$ is pegged to the United Stated
dollar (“USD"), the table below summarises
the Fund’'s monetary exposures to
different major currencies other than USD
as at 30th June 2025 and 2024:

Australian dollar ;&

British pound g

Euro BT

Indian rupee ENESEE
Indonesian rupiah ENfEJ&
Japanese yen H

Malaysian Ringgit Z3RETLE
Korean won §57T

Philippine Peso JEREINER
New Zealand dollar #iF8=7c
Renminbi AR

Singapore dollar N3t
Taiwan dollar fi&™

Thai baht Z%

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRLER (4)

(e) SCHRPE (£8%)

FEESFAEHIELET (B2 RFPIRE

M) IHNBIE~ R f
AN EZE

MFIMRITNES R
CETHMRMARE > B8
TRMAEELZ R

HFBTSEEY > TREABEZZZ
AFER-ENEAA=Z1+H » mEERE
TSN EMEE SR 2 SR X RO

2025
“TTHF
Monetary

1E

28
HK$ equivalents

i

1,343,783,098
221,016,347
20,417,164
(18,594,388)
1,168,069
4,341,991
11,186
49,916,048
(54,563)
32,913
1,941,378,476
47,104,879
3,237,185
261,874

2024
“ZTTE
Monetary

1

228
HK$ equivalents
BITEE

1,618,885,613
208,200,337
32,091,452
(541,469,745)
219,250,958
(196,079,170)

60,437,810
219,894,028
32,151
2,715,495,079
(989,041,927)
(764,815,758)
(212,750,187)

mEETNEEREES
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(e) Currency risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the impact
on net assets attributable to unitholders
as a result of increases/decreases of key
exchange rates on the exposures tabled
above, to which the Fund is exposed.
The analysis is based on the assumption
that the exchange rates had increased/
decreased by the respective percentage
with all other variables held constant.

Estimated

reasonable

possible

change %

AT %

+-

Australian dollar 7t 1%
British pound % 1%
Euro X7t 3%
Indian rupee EIERALL 3%
Indonesian rupiah ENEE 2%
Japanese yen B 3%
Malaysian Ringgit 3RATLE 4%
Korean won &7t 1%
Philippine Peso J2ERZ 1%
New Zealand dollar $iFE=7t 1%
Renminbi AR 1%

Singapore dollar $iI7T
Taiwan dollar 57
Thai baht %

The Manager has used its view of what
would be a “reasonable possible shift” in
exchange rates to estimate the change
for use in currency risk sensitivity analysis
above.

1%
3%
1%

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3.

(e)

TS5 KBS EIE (47)
SRS (48)
TERERMERESEXRES REE2IH
MLELEA  THRNEREEDRANITITFE
ANRR PRI o DIRTHRIERINHIC
RHENBENEEH T MEMZHR
FIRRE ©
2025 2024
S 113 Estimated 13
Monetary reasonable Monetary
b possible 1
HKS equivalents change%  HKS equivalents
BrgE  HAERE BrEE
+/- +/- +-
13,437,831 3% 48,566,568
2,210,163 4% 8,328,013
612,515 4% 1,283,658
557,832 3% 16,244,092
23,361 2% 4,385,019
130,260 4% 7,843,167
447 - -
499,160 6% 3,626,269
546 2% 4,397,881
329 4% 1,286
19,413,785 4% 108,619,803
471,049 2% 19,780,839
97,116 2% 15,296,315
2619 5% 10,637,509

ZEATRBEENWCRN GETRHIER
it Bt 2 KB BRE DA PR RIS o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Disclosures above are shown in absolute
terms, changes and impacts could be
positive or negative. Changes in exchange
rate % are revised annually depending on
the Manager’'s current view of exchange
rates volatility and other relevant factors.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will
encounter difficulty in settling its liabilities,
including a redemption request.

The Fund is exposed to daily cash
redemptions of redeemable units. The
Fund invests the majority of its assets in
investments that are traded in an active
market and are considered to be readily
realisable.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3.

TS MISEE (4R)

(e) SCHRMBE (80

U]

LitIRETA M BIHETIT » EEh KRB
EHE AL o LRV EIREZEAIT
R EMAEXRRHM A S FEE -

OB R

FuBE R HE L MELURIE S 57 (B 4ENEES
) IR

FEEEHIERRFERDG HUERI
£ o FEESHEF KD RAFIEERNS
EES: » FILABERIHERT L
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U]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Fund also invests in financial
derivative instruments and debt securities
that are traded over the counter. As
a result, the Fund may not be able to
liguidate quickly its investments in
these instruments at an amount close
to their fair value to meet its liquidity
requirements due to adverse market
conditions leading to limited liquidity. It is
the intent of the Manager to monitor the
Fund's liquidity position on a daily basis.

The Manager is entitled to limit the
number of units to be redeemed on any
one dealing day to 10% of the units in
issue (with redemption requests reduced
pro rata) and any excess redemption
requests are then carried forward to the
next dealing day. The Manager or the
Trustee may at any time suspend the right
of unitholders to redeem units and will
at the same time cease to issue units in
certain circumstances as mentioned in the
Explanatory Memorandum.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

U]

TS MISEE (4R)

B RS (48)

FEETRATERMITETARGSIESHFT
TIPS o Bt 0 AEERRMBEELIRREHE
ARNERRTINERAZ™ > LUREER
HAEHBR ; FAMNHHRET > 7FAT5E
SRERNRDES - FEAGAHYGERA
BEERRMEATRR

2B ANBENREIER—1R 5 B BEHH
#He > HETHAESZERTHISHZER
Z+ o ERXERT > [REIFIZLEBISEHE > Fr
BEITFIZRF BBREG I KA ARG
TEEIAER > TARAEMEEI R TR LT —32
2 BRIEARRREIED - FEBASHZHEA
AIREE SRR B AR 2 5B T PRI
EHAERA R ITHER -
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3.

U]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Fund'’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the year end date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts in the table

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSER (4)

() FEMERE (48)

are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances, as the

impact of discounting is not significant.

At 30th June 2025
HE—ZF-RFAA=1TH

TROMEESNERAE - RELB LA
BB ERIHA B E R B D A XHARA
A o FRFIEMEAERTINMER © B
FRIMEMAK > F+=1BREEBRE
EMAETEERE -

Over 3 months
but within 1 year

Up to 1 month 1-3 months @id31 A
LF—B —1BE=1TA EREI1F
HK$ HK$ HK$
Bt BT BT
Amounts payable on purchase of
investments FZ{F AR ZRFRIN 135,062,381 - -
Amounts payable on redemption of
units RZ{FTRENA BRFRIT 70,874,084 - -
Distributions payable FZ{A%F! 70,413,656 - -
Cash collateral liabilities
MEIEP @A 15,150,500 - -
Other payables E R {70 64,915,552 - -
Financial derivative instruments
ERTTETH 152,468,927 7,937,955 18,428
Net assets attributable to unitholders
DERLEHEIFE NFAF 14,360,374,021 - -
Total financial liabilities
BERfAERE 14,869,259,121 7,937,955 18,428
MEET NS ERGEEE 74



Notes to the Financial
Statements

3.

U]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2024
gE—F-MmFE;A=1+H

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRLEER (4)

(f) B (4)

Over 3 months
but within 1 year

Up to 1 month 1-3 months @3t Aa
LF—B  —BAE=1TA BREE1F
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Amounts payable on purchase of
investments RZ{FIAN$E = FRIN 89,188,413 - -
Amounts payable on redemption of
units B3 IEEHMAZRFRIT 37,770,706 - -
Distributions payable RZ{7A&F!] 68,985,312 - -
Cash collateral liabilities
MEIRIR R 7,026,660 - -
Other payables EfthRZ {37RI0 20,321,563 - -
Financial derivative instruments
ERITETR 35,774,685 1,599,296 -
Net assets attributable to unitholders
DECAHETIFTE R 16,570,289,722 - -
Total financial liabilities
BERnGRE 16,829,357,061 1,599,296 -

Units are redeemed on demand at the
unitholders’ option. However, the Trustee
and the Manager do not envisage that the
contractual maturity disclosed in the table
above will be representative of the actual
cash outflows, as the unitholders typically
retain their units for the medium to long
term. As at 30th June 2025, 1 unitholder
(2024: 2 unitholders) held more than 10%
of the Fund'’s units.

BEEMTREIDRIBHIITE ABNLE - 24
M > REAMZEARTEAU LS Z AR
WEBEARGRAERE - BNRTHFEA—RK
FEEEOIFRRKARE -BE_T "R
FRA=Z+H > —IREFEA (CEO
FRUBTFBEAN FESTEAZTHE
B
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSREER (8)
(Continued)
(f) Liquidity risk (Continued) () TOBEME (£2)
The following table illustrates the TRIRUFEZ TSI RABEESRFE
expected liquidity of assets held: BN
At 30th June 2025

BE_FE_RF/A=1H

Over 3 months
but within 1 year

Up to 1 month 1-3 months @id3 A

LbF—E —PNEE=ZTMA BRBE1E

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

Total financial assets B &RIAFE 14,709,976,508 67,728,713 145,725,255

At 30th June 2024
BE_T_MFAA=+H

Over 3 months
but within 1 year

Up to 1 month 1-3 months B3 A
LbF—1TE  —BE=MA BREIEFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT BT
Total financial assets B &RIA~E 16,747,150,027 13,414,706 123,822,002
(g) Offsetting and amounts subject to (9) SIEEMESFTEFT MU R ELIETR

master netting arrangements and
similar agreements

As at 30th June 2025 and 2024 the BE_E_HER-_E-_NESA=+H"
Fund was subject to master netting BEeMTE T RS RABES SR aTsEE
arrangements for the derivative assets ZHEFRAE - AE SIS HRIIS SN2 M
and liabilities of the Fund held with these LYWERFTE TR CIEERS o

counterparties. The margin balance
maintained by the Fund is for the purpose
of providing collateral on derivative
positions.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(g) Offsetting and amounts subject to

master netting arrangements and
similar agreements (Continued)

The following table presents the Fund’s
financial assets and liabilities subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements.
The table is presented by type of financial
instrument.

Financial assets subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements:

As at 30th June 2025
BE_F-HEAA=1AH

Financial derivative instruments &RIFTE TR
- Futures #i%3
- Foreign exchange forward contracts
ImHASNC &L
- Options HA#Y
Margin deposits {FiE&
Deposit with brokers 4377

As at 30th June 2024
BE—_F-NESA=1A

Financial derivative instruments £RIfT4ET R
- Futures #A%%
- Foreign exchange forward contracts
ZENCEL
Margin deposits fRIE&
Deposit with brokers &3 77K

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSER (4)

(9) ZHEHMBFTEEH LR LB ()

TRIW T BRI HMREIHITH S8
SE DI L LD IN R TR ZE =M A
52 o TRILVEZEFMITANFEMEY -

SZHRHF R B TR S IR RS B I INFI S
XA RBIERIF =

A
Gross amounts of
recognised financial
assets
INFTERRF 2 S8
HK$
BT

38,191,346

69,211,284
28,050,000
158,404,162
40,506,000

B
Gross amounts of
recognised financial
liabilities set-off in the
statement of financial
osition

p
FUSIKRREPRIRH

BIIARIER A Rz S8
HK$
BT

334,362,792

28,616,790

28,539,529
485,468,373
7,104,734

549,729,426
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C=A-B
Net amounts of financial
assets presented
in the statement of

D
Related amounts not set-off
in the statement of financial position

FUSKRIRRPHRIEHIER T

ItSSRBR 2 AR

financial position D (i) D (ii) E=C-D
FIA SRR ERPZIEHE Financial instruments Cash collateral Net amount
BRI SRR = 2 R EN SRTH Einiie RN
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
38,191,346 4,953,315 - 33,238,031
69,211,284 33,783,235 11,011,012 24,417,037
28,050,000 - - 28,050,000
158,404,162 - - 158,404,162
40,506,000 - 24,731,000 15,775,000
334,362,792 38,736,550 35,742,012 259,884,230
28,616,790 9,271,946 - 19,344,844
28,539,529 12,207,026 2,765,829 13,566,674
485,468,373 - - 485,468,373
7,104,734 - 7,104,734 -
549,729,426 21,478,972 9,870,563 518,379,891
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(g) Offsetting and amounts subject to

master netting arrangements and
similar agreements (Continued)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements:

At 30th June 2025
BE—ZT-RFAA=1+H

Financial derivative instruments £Ri$TET &
- Futures HA%%
- Foreign exchange forward contracts
IHRSNC B
Cash collateral liabilities IR T A {5

At 30th June 2024
BE—F_MESA=TAH

Financial derivative instruments £RifT4ETH
- Futures #A%%
- Foreign exchange forward contracts
mHASNC &Y
Cash collateral liabilities {5 5%i5£93s 1A

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSER (4)

(9) ZEHEMBFMEF MR LR (8)

ZRHFREITH S R E I AL
THINLIREI /RO f:

A
Gross amounts of
recognised financial
liabilities
INE &R S BN
HK$
BT

4,953,315

155,471,995
15,150,500

B
Gross amounts of
recognised financial
assets set-off in the
statement of financial
position

FUSIKRREPRIRH

BUIART BRI A= Z S8
HK$
BT

175,575,810

9,271,946

28,102,035
7,026,660

44,400,641
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C=A-B D
Net amounts of financial Related amounts not set-off
liabilities presented in the statement of financial position
in the statement of FUSRRIRRPHKRIEHAEX ST
financial position D (i) D (ii) E=C-D

FA SRR ERPZIEH Financial instruments Cash collateral Net amount
HOIARIERR A B2 % En EMTH EIFE RN
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
4,953,315 4,953,315 - -
155,471,995 33,783,235 24,731,000 96,957,760
15,150,500 - 11,011,012 4,139,488
175,575,810 38,736,550 35,742,012 101,097,248
9,271,946 9,271,946 - -
28,102,035 12,207,026 7,104,734 8,790,275
7,026,660 - 2,765,829 4,260,831
44,400,641 21,478,972 9,870,563 13,051,106
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(9)

(h)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Offsetting and amounts subject to
master netting arrangements and
similar agreements (Continued)

Amounts in D(i) and D(ii) above relate to
amounts subject to set-off that do not
qualify for offsetting under (B) above. This
includes (i) amounts which are subject
to set-off against the asset (or liability)
disclosed in (A) which have not been offset
in the statement of financial position and
(i) any financial collateral (including cash
collateral), both received and pledged.

The Fund and its counterparty have
elected to settle all transactions on a
gross basis however, each party has the
option to settle all open contracts on a net
basis in the event of default of the other
party. Per the terms of the master netting
agreement, an event of default includes
the following:

- failure by a party to make payment
when due;

- bankruptcy.
Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and
liabilities traded in active markets (such as
trading securities) are based on quoted
market prices at the close of trading
on the year end date. The Fund utilises
the last traded market price as its fair
valuation inputs for both financial assets
and financial liabilities.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSER (4)

(9) ZEHEMBFMEF MR LR (8)

(h

L=

FLERDOFD(i)Z2E8 > HRAFE(B)ZE
Ko BIE ¢ () FUSKRRERPAIIRERN S
= (BHR) (AHRIDHNEIA ; ()EEE
WERE AR IR SRR m (ISR -

EERHERZWFHEERFRSGEELH
FrER% > AM—BHEP—FEN > 5—F
AR SHBEEEBMAERTEEH - 1R
BEEFTEEMINAIRR - FOEFEE

— BH—HRETFTEVARIR ;

— o
AffaL

FEESFERAEERTIRS WIEHRZ) 2
MSHFERAGRNARNE > HUFEET
MEBRAEZEENFGEE - ZEZURR
MEERINTHN I EMSE=NMS 5

fize
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSREEE (4)

(Continued)

(h) 2MET (48)

(h) Fair value estimation (Continued)

An active market is a market in which
transactions for the asset or liability
take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on
an ongoing basis.

A financial instrument is regarded as
quoted in an active market if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis.

The carrying value less impairment
provision of other receivables and
payables are assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the
Fund for similar financial instruments.

HKFRS 13 requires the Fund to classify fair
value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date (Level 1).

BRI ETITE BRI MR ERREM
MRAHFEMNNEER

ERTAZIRNEIANN BEEHAZZA -« X
28~ 2LA - TUAR - ENRSREE
Miak#H » BRNRAREFFRESLIBA
FRWHTZHHRS > MR AERTS
wiNMzERMIE -

ELA 7 WU RR B N A IRR 22 K T (R R B PR &
S5HAANERE - MIRBHERTS > U5
ABRNAANERFEEMEUSRI TR
FITHZMNRIFEERNENNEREM
ite

BBV SREENE 135" AANEITE"
REESREBEAANERTEITOEMMR
AN EEITTERFIERNBAENEE
o RANBERRDEWMT :

- F—EBR-HAREFRAGREERTT
FREIRMT CREFE) -

mEETNEEREES
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSREEE (4)

(Continued)
(h) 25 {EKT (4)

(h) Fair value estimation (Continued)

- Inputs other than quoted prices — BBRR - EEREEMERRE—R

included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly (Level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within
which the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety is determined
on the basis of the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this
purpose, the significance of an input
is assessed against the fair value
measurement in its entirety. If a fair value
measurement uses observable inputs that
require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, that measurement
is a level 3 measurement. Assessing the
significance of a particular input to the fair
value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to
the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes
‘observable’ requires significant judgment
by the Fund. The Fund considers
observable data to be market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively involved in the
relevant market.

RPWHE A GRHH RN USPOE
ETREIGALE ©

- BZRR-EBFHOLGERTIEETH
ME TR RAE

ERMTATRBAANETENAEERE
XWREEREAENEM > BEMGHE
FRI D AP —1EF - MEAARNEITER
FERTANEHABERERERTTNRE
AEHITHE > WIZtBNAAT=ZER
FINMBEERAEN FARANETTEREN
EXEX > REEZRSEHAEFRAGAER
BEXANERZHITHIER -

FEEFMINERAABHERZNHTH
i o BESFTE RV EHKIE AT IHE
&> EHAAHREN > FIERAILSRE
JEFAER  HERERFHXTHNIRIIR
R EE o
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Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3. MSRLER (4)

(h) Fair value estimation (Continued) (h) 2MEMGT (40
TRITRARSHE_E_RER_ZT_[Y
ERBZTENREREMITETAERAR
NELETITEZARNE :

The following table analyses within the fair
value hierarchy the Fund's investments
and financial derivative instruments (by
class) measured at fair value at 30th June
2025 and 2024:

At 30th June 2025
BE_E_RFAA=1+H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—BR FIER FZBR BE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ASSETS &/
Held for trading B 1EXZH
Equities fZZE 5,466,078,931 - - 5,466,078,931
Investment funds & REE 882,445,083 1,837,947,883 - 2,720,392,966
Debt securities 5531 5363,953,091 547,411,357 - 5911,364,448
Futures #A%53 38,191,346 - - 38,191,346
Foreign exchange forward contracts
THINC AL - 69,211,284 - 69,211,284
Options HiX - 28,050,000 - 28,050,000
Total 2f& 11,750,668,451 2,482,620,524 - 14,233,288,975
LIABILITIES fif5
Futures %% (4,953,315) - - (4,953,315)
Foreign exchange forward contracts
EEINCEL - (155,471,995) - (155,471,995)
Total B& (4,953,315)  (155,471,995) - (160,425,310)
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3.

(h) Fair value estimation (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.
(Continued)

At 30th June 2024
BE—ZT-MEA=+H
Level 1
F-BR
HK$
BT

ItSSRBR 2 AR

TSRS EIE (48)

(h) 25MEfIT (48)

Level 2 Level 3 Total
FIER B=BR BE
HK$ HK$ HK$

ASSETS &=

Held for trading B 1EXZH
Equities IRE

Investment funds IRAES
Debt securities f&53IE%
Futures Hi%%

Foreign exchange forward contracts
THINC AL

Total Zf&

LIABILITIES faf&

Futures #i%%
Foreign exchange forward contracts
mERSNCEL

Total Bf&

7,026,971,293 -
341,011,383 1,774,096,277

- 7,026,971,293

2,115,107,660

6,731,249,648 10,444,549 - 6,741,694,197
28,616,790 - - 28,616,790

- 28,539,529 - 28,539,529
14,127,849,114  1,813,080,355 - 15,940,929,469
(9,271,946) - - (9,271,946)

- (28,102,035) - (28,102,035)

(9,271,946)  (28,102,035) - (37,373,981)
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(h)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Investments whose values are based on
quoted market prices in active markets,
and therefore classified within level 1,
include active listed and quoted equity
securities, debt securities and investment
funds. The Fund does not adjust the
quoted price for these instruments.

Financial instruments that trade in
markets that are not considered to be
active but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or
alternative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs are classified within
level 2.

Investments classified within level 3 have
significant unobservable inputs, as they
trade infrequently. As of 30th June 2025
and 2024, the Fund did not hold any
investments classified in level 3.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRSER (4)

(h) 2MET (48)

HFRENERE T ERHIHNIRG - FEit
B%— ):A’#@,%}Eﬁitﬁiﬁxmﬁ# &
SHERBRERS - FESLARBRXET
BRERM ©

FIRERTIRBHNERRFEUTHIR
i ~ RLERNJEMIRN FIRIEN T NE
AE > WERFBDENE_ER

BRAWMDENE=ZER  HEEENFTN
BPAE > ENEXZREETE - BE-Z
“HERZEMEARA=+H > FEEH
TR ERE=ZRRAILHE o

mEETNEEREES
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MSKSEE (4)
(Continued)
(h) Fair value estimation (Continued) (h) 25MEMGIT (48
The following table shows the transfer of BE_Z-RFAA=THIEFE > TRE
investments between levels for the Fund RAEEESMFENRANZINERZENE
for the year ended 30th June 2025. KB
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B—BX BEBR B=BR
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Debt securities {=53iE% (131,623,962) 131,623,962 -
For the year ended 30th June 2024, there BE_T_NEAA=1THLEEE  x&ES
were no transfers between levels of AR ENZI NERZBIH T ©

investments held by the Fund.

The financial assets and liabilities included EVERRIRRAN SRR =R GE &AM
in the statement of financial position, SRICTE T ERIN) » YIRS AAN > &
other than investments and financial WEERNARNMENSIRLE o ZEEME
derivative instruments, are carried at FRAGHIFRAANBEAKBUARNE
amortised cost; their carrying values are WEE o

a reasonable approximation of fair value.
There are no other assets or liabilities not
measured at fair value but for which the
fair value is disclosed.
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0]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Capital risk management

The capital of the Fund is represented by
the net assets attributable to unitholders.
The amount of net assets attributable
to unitholders can change significantly
on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to
daily subscriptions and redemptions at
the discretion of unitholders. The Fund's
objective when managing capital is to
safeguard the Fund's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide
returns for unitholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain
a strong capital base to support the
investment activities of the Fund.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Fund's policy is to perform
the following:

- monitor the level of daily subscriptions
and redemptions relative to the liquid
assets; and

- redeem and issue units in accordance
with the trust deed of the Fund, which
includes the requirement of minimum
redemption amount of HK$5,000 for
HKD denominated accumulation and
distribution units of Class A, Class M,
Class C and Class X, RMB5,000 for
RMB denominated accumulation and
distribution units of Class A, Class M,
Class C and Class X and US$1000 (or
equivalent value in other currencies)
for accumulation and distribution
units of Class A, Class M, Class C and
Class X denominated in a currency
other than HKD or RMB.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3. MSRLER (4)

() FBXREER

FESHNERBUDRAHTRAEANFE
27T ° BHZAEAHTRAE NFET A
BREENT > AEESSHZINEMEEET
HRTRAEARE - FEEZUREEEH
FER-—MFREENENNEI » UEH
PEFTA MR HEIRMFER— BRI E
Bt > UFFE SRR IETD ©

AT HFFHRABELEN » AEEHERHR
7T

— BNERIANWAREE Z KT RE S
"5 R

— BEERETHFNBREBEAESHNEEE
4y EhaiEERERE SN RESE
795,00087T (UBTAKTHMER
B ZAZS ~ MZERIFICFIFIXSERE
£1580) > 5000 ABH (UARF R
MINMBIARWE ZAZESR ~ M2EFIFIC
FHRNFXEBIESDEN) 201,000ETHE
hirm 2z SESH CUBTHARTMUS
ERARTHMZAZES) « MEFIFICE
SUFIXRF BRI ERE) ©
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0

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Manager monitors capital on the basis
of the value of net assets attributable to
unitholders.

Financial instruments by category
Financial assets

Apart from investments and financial
derivative instruments as disclosed
in the statement of financial position,
all other financial assets as disclosed
in the statement of financial position,
including amounts receivable on disposal
of investments, amounts receivable on
subscription of units, dividends receivable,
interest receivable on debt securities,
interest receivable on bank deposits and
margin deposit, other receivables, margin
deposits, cash collateral and cash and
bank deposits are categorised as “financial
assets at amortised cost”.

Financial liabilities

Apart from financial derivative
instruments as disclosed in the statement
of financial position, all other financial
liabilities as disclosed in the statement
of financial position, including amounts
payable on purchase of investments,
amounts payable on redemption
of units, distributions payable, cash
collateral liabilities and other payables
are categorised as “financial liabilities at
amortised cost”.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

3.

(0]

()

TS RIS EE (4R)

BERLEE (4)

ZBABENRAHIFENRATE
REEZHA

BRENNDHEMIA
ERE

BT AU SRR ERPIREHIRA R E/DT
ETRZS  FRBEEVSKRAREPKEN
HtER TR » SENKHERERD -« &
WA R AR T ~ R WAR R ~ U 6R 55155
S~ R ERF ERFIEEFE « HMhE
WG ~ fRIESE - MEIRRGE 0 URRER
RITEFRII D LN ERIE = TUERE A" o

BRTEMSKRRRPINENE/ITETA
5h > FREEM SIKORIRER PR BRI E SR
f o BENAIAMR IR « R REE1E
BRI ~ RS REF) ~ RIS RN R H
{9 FRIEG 3 2K B R 61 (5 IR B S AR

"o
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. S|ASITBRNEERITHG TS LI

JUDGMENTS

Management makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates may not
equal the related actual results. Estimates
are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are outlined below.

Fair value of unlisted investments

As at 30th June 2025 and 2024, the
Fund held a number of debt securities,
investment funds and derivatives that
were valued by reference to broker
quotes. In determining the fair value
of such investments, the Trustee and
the Manager exercise judgments and
estimates on the sources of brokers and
the quantity and quality of broker quotes
used. Such broker quotes adopted to fair
value the investments may be indicative
and not executable or legally binding. As
such, broker quotes do not necessarily
indicate the price at which the security
could actually be traded as of 30th June
2025 and 2024. Actual transacted prices
may differ from the broker quotes
provided by the brokers. The Trustee and
the Manager consider that in the absence
of any other reliable market sources, the
broker quotes available to them reflect
the best estimate of fair value.

ESEERENRRMEHGEITRRIE - 21t
HFR—ESKFERTE—H - FitEITR
TR F IS 230 E M E R HAITIE
BIEXWRREMHELRENTER c ARNE
TiRET R RAEXER T RANAMNMEL G
it o PR F IV REEF RIS ANL
RaSREFSAGRNIKEEREHEKRRE
EhItHRIR

FEEHHRFENAANE

FECRER-E_MNENA=+H &
BEESRAZNGRSIESRITETR » EHNE
BEEZLRNMET c BEITZERANA
ANER > SFTEANRIBASIELHIE > H
WELENERFBRNRANIRNBESRE
EHfEIT - BFRAQAANENZERNT
EBEZH » BRAHRIT » TAZEEY
R o It » ELEWBN A —EERMIESTZ
TTAKRZEZNESA=1+HERESE
M o LR BN R 5 FELIREAVIR
ft o SRAMEFENINSG > BTFRZEAE
EMEBHNTIAZRERE > SHAMNESEA
FRAENALIRN ERMREN A RN EEIT ©
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INVOLVEMENT WITH
UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED
ENTITIES

The Fund has concluded that the listed
and unlisted open-ended investment
funds (“investment funds”) in which it
invests, but that it does not consolidate,
meet the definition of structured entities
because:

- the voting rights in the funds are
not dominant rights in deciding who
controls them because the rights
relate to administrative tasks only;

- each fund's activities are restricted by
its prospectus; and

- the funds have narrow and well-
defined objectives to provide
investment opportunities to investors.

The table below describes the types of
structured entities that the Fund does
not consolidate but in which it holds an
interest.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

BEREFLMNEER

FEESFHEL  HERFERAHN LS
MELTABRRKRAEE ("REEE") S
SEEEEEIEN  REWNT ¢

— ZFESHNRENAIPRERIZHZE
BEEMNESNH > BAXERFNETT
BIREX ;

— BESEMNIREBRITABRE ; Kk

- XZEESAFPHERKNER > A

NRFAERMRAENS ©

TREH T AESRGHEFENENED
MEEFLR -
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Notes to the Financial ST AR
Statements

5. INVOLVEMENT WITH 5. B5KREHEMMEEE ()
UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED
ENTITIES (Continued)

Type of structured entity Nature and purpose Interest held by the Fund
LZHMEE R 4 FEFIEE FEEFFEAIN
Investment funds To manage assets on behalf of  Investment in units issued
BEES third party investors and by the funds

generate fees for the ZEEERITHOIERRR

investment manager
RERB=ZAREEEEEH
MR RFIE (VB

These vehicles are financed
through the issue of units to

investors

ZEESBERITEMRREEN

REEIREELRE
The table below sets out interests held TREG THRESEFRSHEM ST EPF
by the Fund in unconsolidated structured BN c R AIRLRXMEMONIEE £5
entities. The maximum exposure to loss REHKE D o
is the carrying amount of the financial

assets held.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

5.

INVOLVEMENT WITH
UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED
ENTITIES (Continued)

ItSSRBR 2 AR

5. BE5REHGMNEER ()

Carrying amount

included in
“Investments”
A BRANE
Number of B RamyM
investee funds  Total net assets BB RbE ="
BERZEESHE HRFE SR KK =R
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 30th June 2025
BEZE-RF/B=1+H
Listed unit trusts A EEHE 4 116,624,074,574 1,012,324,118
Unlisted unit trusts JE LA ESHE 4 45/117,690,846 1,708,068,848
2,720,392,966
Carrying amount
included in
“Investments”
AR RRMNE
Number of BRI
investee funds  Total net assets SRR
BERAESHE FAFERBR HYMK &5
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 30th June 2024
BE-F-N;A=1+H
Listed unit trusts _EH{2EEHE 2 120,296,763,506 341,011,383
Unlisted unit trusts JE_EH12EEHE 3 36,273,971,032 1,774,096,277

During the year, the Fund did not provide
financial support to the unconsolidated

structured entities and has no intention of

2,115,107,660

FERN > sESHRORSHEWETHRHTS
S thERIRMV S EHEMTH -

providing financial or other support.

The Fund can sell units in the above listed FESATENINRZBLE Lt EHHTERR
investment funds on each trade day REE HTFEHESIM RS BKE LitIE EHHER

and redeem units in the above unlisted ERERES -
investment funds on each of their dealing

day.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

6. MARGIN ACCOUNTS 6. fRIEEFO

Margin accounts represent margin
deposits held in respect of open futures
contracts. As at 30th June 2025, the Fund
held margin deposits of HK$158,404,162
(2024: HK$485,468,373), of which
HK$145,725,255 (2024: HK$123,822,002) is
restricted.

MANAGEMENT FEE AND TRUSTEE FEE

Management fee and trustee fee
are charged by Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited and
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited respectively.

Management fee is currently charged at a
rate of 1.25% per annum for Class A, Class
M and Class X and 0.625% per annum for
Class C with an allowable maximum rate
of 7% per annum of the net asset value of
the Fund. No management fee is charged
to Class I.

Prior to 29th September 2023, the trustee
fee was charged at a rate of 0.07% per
annum of the net asset value of the Fund
subject to a minimum fee of HK$156,000
per annum, with an allowable maximum
rate of 0.50% per annum of net asset
value of the Fund. Effective from 29th
September 2023, the trustee fee is
charged at 0.0595% per annum of the
net asset value of the Fund subject to a
minimum fee of HK$156,000 per annum,
with an allowable maximum rate of 0.50%
per annum of net asset value of the Fund.

RSP OFEARFTEZEHENRZZRIE
S BE_E_RENBZ=TH sESF
158,404,162 RIS (ZT_WMEF :
485,468,373 7T) » HA1145,725,2558 7T
ANZREITFR (ZZ2 M4 © 123,822,002#
7T) °©

EEEARZRALER

P ERAERE (58) ARARKLCENN
SHEARSS (L) BIRAR DRI EIRER
REENEER °

M EBERD LG S A~ ENESER
DL > ARBIRMBRRXEFINEDZ—R
ZH CEFABRAZERANZH  UBEX
ESSE~ERDZEHIR - ESRETE
IRIZERINEIRER o

SF_EZ=FAAZ+NBZH > TFEA
BRASERERSATENENIZEST
+ » WREWENEE156,00087T » UEE
AEEETENEDZERAANR BZE
“—=FABRZ+NBiE  FESTWRNZIT
ABRASERESSATENEIZES
THNE > EREUEEHEE156,00087T
USEXRESA~ENERIZESEAMR -
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

7.

(a)

MANAGEMENT FEE AND TRUSTEE FEE
(Continued)

Management fee payable and trustee
fee payable as at year end amounted to
HK$14,245,290 (2024: HK$16,506,893)
and HK$723,443 (2024: HK$811,044)
respectively, which is included in other
payables in the statement of financial
position.

Total management fee and trustee fee for
the year amounted to HK$183,771,392
(2024: HK$213,978,753) and HK$9,030,223
(2024: HK$10,971,048) respectively.

These fees are accrued daily on each
valuation day and payable monthly in
arrears.

DISTRIBUTIONS
Accumulation units

The Manager shall not make any
distributions of income or net capital
gains realised on the sale of investments
in respect of the accumulation units.
Any income and net capital gains in
respect of the accumulation units shall be
accumulated and capitalised.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

EEBEARZFEALR (4)

HEEL  NIBEBEBRRITEAZRS A
14,245,290 7T(ZF -4 : 16,506,893
70) 1k 723,443 (B M4 : 811,044
7T)  ZRIE SR T M SRR KRR E MR
IR ©

ERNZEEBERSRAZAS A
183,771,392 75(—Z U4 : 213,978,753
#BIT) ’9,030,223 B (ZE_MF:
10,971,048387T) ©

BRTEMLERSARE  HTFERAR
e

RE

(a) EfHRE

S ATHH ERATE BIFAIREBIZE R
AREIRE o ERRVB IR EMN R RS
Yea N T AR FAFNARA R A o
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Notes to the Financial

Statements
8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. IRE (8%)
(b) Distribution units (b) WEARER

In respect of distribution units, the
Manager will declare and pay monthly
distributions on such date as may be
determined by the Manager. However,
the distribution rate is not guaranteed. In
the event that the income generated from
the Fund’'s investments attributable to
the relevant Class of the distribution units
during the relevant period is insufficient
to pay distributions as declared, the
Manager may in its discretion determine
such distributions be paid from capital.

The Manager will periodically review
distribution units and reserve the right to
make changes to the distribution policies
of the distribution units. Any change to
the frequency of distributions is subject to
one month’s prior notice to the relevant
unitholders. If the Manager does not
intend to retain the flexibility to pay
distributions out of the amount originally
invested or income attributable to the
prior year of the Fund, the change will be
subject to the SFC's prior approval and
one month’s prior notice to the relevant
unitholders.

HUEMENS - BEABTEHAENSA
ZEHRAERTIRERF o 28 > FEAN
TKEBEFREHRIE o RN XEREIAE
B ARG AR AR XS0 TR IR
HEARUZNEERIIKE » REATHIE
REMARRZLIRKE ©

2B ASEHLITIE M IHRENFES
WEMIFZIKEEE - EIKERKE
M AMBXRHBTFHEARL—TAEELE
2 o MRBATTEREXE S MFEFRIRHE
MO H A RN EPRAIRERRE
M REERIRIEESF A ERAR X
BPEFEARE— T BEEEA -
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued)
(b) Distribution units (Continued)

As at 30th June 2025, the distribution
payable is amounted to HK$70,413,656
(2024: HK$68,985,312). The following table
shows the distributions statement of the
Fund during the years ended 30th June
2025 and 2024:

Undistributed income at the beginning of the year

FERRD B

Profit before distribution and after tax for the year

FED A RANPRBIN S 2 5 F]
Distribution to unitholders (Note)
TREFHRERFEA CER)

Undistributed loss/(income) transferred to net assets

attributable to unitholders
BADELDETIRE NEEF 2R DB

ItSSRBR 2 AR

8. IRE (8%)
(b) YeE 178 (4%)

BE_ZT-AFAA=1TH  NERMHA
70,413,656 87T (ZF M4 : 68,985,312
B7T) c TREFBE_ST_AFKR-_T M
FARR=THILFENKSIER

2025 2024

i S —ZTE

HK$ HK$

BT BT

827,587,022 1,666,573,935
(891,156,773) (870,114,299)

(63,569,751) 796,459,636
63,569,751 (796,459,636)

Undistributed income carried forward at the end of the year

FEREFEAR DB
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Statements

8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. IRE (8%)
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) UXEAREA (£5)
Note: The following tables show the AR TREVEEZZTHERZZIM
distributions of the Fund during the years FRA=ZTHLEFEERRKEIER !
ended 30th June 2025 and 2024:
HKD Class A
BITAERRE
Distribution
No. of units perunit  Total distribution
entitled = amount
distributions RER BRER
Record date Payment date BIUMERES HK$ HK$
b kER ki | AR AR
N5-F_HE
2th July 2024 ZE-MELEZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZE-/E\BEA 60,130,748.96 0.489206 29,416,323.18
28th August 2024 ZEZMENEZHNE 10t September 2024 ZE-MEAATH 59,442,243.73 0492161 29,255,154.12
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+EH  8th October 2024 ZE-ME+E/\H 58,960,121.74 0499145 29,429,649.97
30th October 2024 “2_E+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z2_-[F+—F+_H 59,236,262.02 049259 29179,19031
27th November 2024 Z2-IE+—B_++H 9th December 2024 ~E-M&+-FAR 58,260,837.21 0484830 28,246,601.70
18th December 2024 “E_ME+"A+AR  3rdjanuary 2025 “E-5%5-FA=H 57,596,145.59 0480412 2766987950
2ndJanuary 2025 “5"RE-B+ZH  6thFebruary 2025 F-R%EZARA 56,835,606.10 0476397 2107631224
26th February 205 5" REZF+AH  10th March 2025 Z5-HE=F+H 56,418,127.58 0480126 27,087,809.92
26th March 2025 Z8-R£=B-17\H 8th April 2025 ZEZHEMBN\H 56,539,055.37 0474950 26,853,22435
23rd April 2025 ZF-7EMAZ1+=H 9%th May 205 “5 - RERBNH 55,839.992.29 0.456569 25,494,809.44
28th May 205 5 -1 E5R-+\H 9thJune 2025 51 EARENA 54,816,380.93 0472489 25,900,137.01
30th June 2025 Z5 =R & "A=1A 11thjuly 205 ~5 - REtB+-A 54,622,796.75 0486308 26,563,503.04
024 ZFZE
26th uly 203 ZEZ=EtBZ+7H 8th August 203 ZE-=%/\E/\A 80,189,797.40 0403613 32,365,644.70
30th August 203 5= =%/\B=1H 11th September 2023 5= =B +-A 76,944,206.11 0393753 30,297,011.99
27th September 203 ZEZ=EABZ+tH  13th October 2023 ZE-=%+A+=H 75,275,742.26 0.383259 28,850,105.70
25th October 203 ZEZ=F+B"+HH  7th November 203 Z5-=%+-FtH 73,532,850.86 0.374763 27557,391.79
29th November 2023 Z2-=F+-B_+AH 11th December 2023 5-=F+_F+-H 72,296,338.35 (.388378 28,078,307.30
27th December 2023 ZEZ=#+2FZ1+H 8thanuary 2024 ZS-ME-F\H 71,131,657.78 0.399258 28,399,883.42
24th January 2024 ZE-IE-F-+0A 5th February 2024 ~5$—ME_BRA 68,575,688.37 0392177 26,893,807.74
28th February 2024 ZSZMEZRZ+N\E  1thMarch 204 S-ME=F+-A 65,396,464.58 0402525 26,323, 711.91
27th March 2024 Z8-ME=B-+tH 11th April 2024 ~E-REMA+—H 64,187,78641 0410339 26,338,752.09
2Ath April 2024 Z5ZMEME ~+HTH 10th May 2024 Z5-MERA+H 63,251,293.70 0404113 25,560,670.05
29th May 2024 S -MERR A 11th June 2024 ZE_MEARB+—H 62,571,836.53 0414372 25,928,017.05
28th June 2024 ZE-MERBZ1\A 10th July 2024 —F-MELE+H 61,215991.48 0420713 25,754,363.42
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. iRE (4)
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) WXEA7EA (£5)
HKD Class C
AITCERBE
Distribution
No. of units perunit  Total distribution
entitled SHE amount
distributions KED BIRER
Record date Payment date BIUMENES HK$ HK$
423H il 2% ET E
W5-525%
2Ath July 2024 ZE-MELE=+IH 5th August 2024 ZE-MEN\BAA 567,523.26 0537822 305,22649
28th August 2024 ZE-MEN\EZ+)\H 10th September 2024 ~E-MENFTH 567,523.26 0.541446 307,283.20
25th September 2024 “FZMEABZ+EH  8th October 2024 ZF-ME+E/\H 569,689.28 0.549434 313,006.66
30th October 2024 ZE-ME+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z5-M#E+—F+-H 569,689.28 0.54259% 30911112
27th November 2024 Z2_IE+—B_++H 9th December 2024 ~E-ME+-FAH 569,689.28 (.534343 304,409.48
18th December 2024 “E_ME+"A+A\R  3rdjanuary 2025 “E-1%5-HA=H 569,689.28 052969 301,761.56
2ndJanuary 2025 “5"RE-B+ZH  6thFebruary 2025 E-R%EZAA 565,304.17 0525633 29714253
26th February 2025 “BZHEZBZ+RE  10th March 2025 52 5E=B 1A 565,30417 0530115 29967622
26th March 2025 Z8_1F=RA_+7~H 8th April 205 ZFZ R WA \H 565,304.18 0.524692 296,610.58
3rd April 2025 5 -7 EMA-+=H 9th May 205 ~5 =R ERBAH 991,802.30 0.504667 500,529.89
28th May 205 S -1 EHR-+\H 9th June 2025 _E_REREAA 991,802.30 0522627 518,342.66
30th June 2025 ZE_E&ERB=1H 11thJuly 205 Z5Z8FtB+-A 991,866.66 0.538266 533,388.10
2004 “E-E
26th July 203 ZFZ=FLAZ17H 8th August 203 ZF==%/\B/\R 568,202.52 0440532 250311.39
30th August 2023 5= =%/\B=1H 11th September 2023 ~§- =B +-A 568,206.04 0.430068 244,367.24
27th September 203 ZEZ=EABZ+tH  13th October 2023 ZE-=%+A+=H 568,214.50 0418839 237,990.39
25th October 023 ZFZ=F+5-+%H  7th November 203 Z¥_=F+-F+tH 568,218.01 0409783 232,846.08
29th November 2023 ZFZ=F+—HA=+AH 11th December 2023 Z5-=%+-A+-H 568,226.29 0424965 24147629
27th December 2023 ZEZ=%+ZFZ++tH 8thanuary 2024 “E-ME—-F\H 568,234.80 0437112 248 382,25
2th January 2024 ZEZME-AZFME  SthFebruary 2024 ZE-MEZAEA 568,238.42 0429599 24411466
28th February 2024 S-ME-RA=+N\B  1thMarch 204 “S-ME=F+-A 568,241.98 0.441240 250,731.09
27th March 2024 ZE-ME=A-++A 11th April 2024 ZE-EMA+-H 568,245.53 0.450056 255,742.31
2Ath April 2024 5 ZMEME Z+1H 10th May 2024 Z5-MERA+H 567,523.26 0443472 251,680.68
29th May 2024 S~ MERR—+1H 11th June 2024 ZE-M&ERA+—H 567,523.26 0.455047 258,249.76
28th June 2024 Z5-m&EA-+N\H 10th July 2024 —F-MELE+H 567,523.26 0462285 262,357.49
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued)

(b) Distribution units (Continued)

ItSSRBR 2 AR

8. k3 (8)

(b) WS8R (80

HKD Class X
AR

No. of units Distribution ~ Total distribution

entitled per unit amount

distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BREH
Record date Payment date BHRMERS HK$ HK$
Eheds] kSR 2 BT AT
005 "E25E
2th July 2024 ZFZMELBZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZF-mE\BER 11,645.94 0.734471 8,553.61
28th August 2024 ZE-MEN\B=+\H 10th September 2024 ~E—MENFTH 9,835.72 0.733908 7,267.69
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+EH  8th October 2024 ZE-ME+E/\B 982340 0.749392 7361.58
30th October 2024 ~E_ME+A=+A 12th November 2024 ~E_M&E+—A+2R 881511 0.739553 6,519.4
27th November 2024 ZFZE+—B=++H 9th December 2024 Z5-ME+-FAR 8,803.65 0727901 6,408.19
18th December 2024 ZE-ME+ZA+N\H  3rdJanuary 2025 “-HE-F=H 6,10049 0721269 4,400.09
2nd January 205 “5Z8%—B+ZH  6th February 2025 ZEZRFZARA 6,085.66 0.715241 435271
26th February 205 “S-REZF-+AH  10th March 2025 “5—HE=F+H 6,077.62 0.720837 438097
26th March 2025 -1 F=F_+/\A 8th April 205 —F - R EME/\B 6,069.42 0.713066 432790
23rd April 2025 ZEZREMAZ1+=H 9%th May 205 S -1 ERRNA 9,355.32 0.685469 6,412.78
28th May 205 “5-RERE-+)\H 9th June 2025 “E_RERENA 9,344.19 0.709371 6,628.50
30th June 2025~ =& RE=1A 11thJuly 205 ~F -5 &R +-A 933077 0730119 681257
04 ZE-mE
26th July 203 ZFZ=EtE-+A”H 8th August 203 ZE-=%\B/\A 1313445 060597 7.959.04
30th August 2023 Z5_=%/\A=1H 11th September 2023 ZE-=#AA+-H 13,117.76 0591163 775473
27th September 203 “SZ=FAB-+tH 13th October 203 ~5-=%+F+=H 1310093 0575408 7,538.38
25th October 2023 Z8-=£+A-+%A 7th November 203 ZE-=#+-AtH 13,073.99 0562652 735611
29th November 2023 ~5-=F+—B=+1H 11th December 2023 “$-=F+-R+-H 13,057.09 0.583093 761350
27th December 2023 ZEZ=%+-BZ+tA 8thjanuary 2024 ZE-ME-F/\R 13,040.68 0599428 781695
24th January 2024 ZE-ME-F =+ 1A 5th February 2024 Z5-ME_BHH 13,025.52 0588798 7,669.40
28th February 2024 ZS-MEZAZFN\B  11th March 2024 Z5-RE=F+-H 13,009.31 0604334 786197
27th March 2024 Z5-ME=A-++H 11th April 2024 ~5-REMB+—H 12,993.48 0616065 8,00483
24th April 2024 ZZZMEMB ~+9H 10th May 2024 Z5-MERATH 1297731 0606718 187357
29th May 2024 5= MERR+AH 11th June 2024 ZE_MEAA+—H 12,961.02 0622120 8,063.31
28th June 2024 ZE_MERE-1)\R 10th July 2024 ~5~-ELB+H 12,944.89 0631640 8,176.51
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. RS ()
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) WXEA7EA (£5)
RMB Class M
ARTMSERRER
No. of units Distribution  Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BREH
Record date Payment date B RMB RMB
Eheds] k&R K828 AET AT
005 "E25E
2ndJanuary 2005 “5ZRE-BZ+ZH  6thFebruary 2025 ZFZR%EZARA 7813128 0.372960 29,139.84
26th February 205 “5"REZF"+AH 10t March 2025 Z5—5E=F+H 140,034.21 0.585059 81,928.27
26th March 2025 ZE-1F=FA-+7\A 8th April 205 —F - R EMB\B 23345280 0.580265 135,464.49
23rd April 2025 ZFZREMAZ1=H 9%th May 205 S - R ERRNH 254,37031 0.559484 14231612
28th May 205 “5 -1 EHR—+)\H 9th June 2025 “E-HEAANR 32839429 0.565344 185,655.74
30th June 205~ =R & "A=1A 11thjuly 205 ~5 -8B +-A 359,339.31 0579150 208,111.36

101 Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund



Notes to the Financial
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Statements
8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. iRE (4)
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) UXEAREA (£5)
USD Class A
ETTAZERRER
No. of units Distribution ~ Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BIRER
Record date Payment date BHRMERS Uss Uss
Eheds] kSR 2 e e
005 "E25E
2th July 2024 ZFZMELBZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZF-mE\BER 81,199,345.75 0.048783 3,961,147.68
28th August 2024 E-ME\B=+\H 10th September 2024 ~E—MENA+H 79338119.14 0.049138 3,898,516.50
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+EH  8th October 2024 ZE-ME+E/\B 78329613.74 0049936 3911,467.59
30th October 2024 _2_mE+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z2—lF+—F+_H 80,409,177.92 0.049347 3,967,951.70
27th November 2024 ZSZE+—B=+tH 9th December 2024 Z5-ME+-AAR 79,880516.28 0048520 387580265
18th December 2024 ZE-ME+ZA+N\H  3rdJanuary 2025 “5-HE-F=H 78,736,363.55 0048140 3,790,368.54
2ndJanuary 2005 “FZRE-BZHZH  6thFebruary 2025 ZFZREZARA 71330,737.71 0.047629 3,683,185.71
26th February 205 “5"REZF"+AH 10t March 2025 Z5—HE=F+H 75,430,194.45 0.048100 362819235
26th March 2025 ZE-1F=RA-+7\A 8th April 205 —F - R EME\H 74,866,021.57 0047564 3,560,927.45
23rd April 2025 ZFZREMAZ1=H 9%th May 205 S - R E RN 73,766,436.21 0.045822 3380,125.64
28th May 205 —5 -1 EHR—+)\H 9th June 2025 ZE_1ERENA 72,423,068.88 0.046939 3,399,466.43
30th June 205~ =R &"A=1A 11thjuly 205 ~5 -8B +-A 70,627,380.55 0048243 3,407,276.72
2004 ZFZE
26th July 203 ZEZ=FtBZ+7H 8th August 203 ZE-=%/\E/\A 104,986,459.79 0040294 4,230,324.41
30th August 203 ZE-=%/\A=1H 11th September 2023 5= =B +-H 101,485,576.75 0.039076 3,965,65040
27th September 203 ZEZ=FAB=+tH 13th October 2023 ZF-=%+A+=H 99,161,008.23 0.038161 3,784,083.24
25th October 2023 ZE-=%£+A-+%A 7th November 203 ZE-=£+—-F+H 96,523,119.43 0.037309 3,601,181.06
29th November 2023 Z¥Z=F+—BZ+AH 11th December 2023 Z5_=F+_F+-H 93,213,843.58 0.038752 361222287
27th December 203 ZE-=%+-F_1++tR 8thanuary 2024 ~5—ME—F\R 92,032,022.13 0.039790 3,661,954.16
2A4th January 2024 ZE-ME-FZ+0A 5th February 2024 ~5—ME_BHA 90,690,398.25 0039064 3,542,729.72
28th February 2024 ZSZMEZRFZ+N\E  1thMarch 204 ZS-ME=F+-H 87,818,236.95 0.040046 3,516,769.12
27th March 2024 Z5-IE=A-++H 11th April 2024 Z5-EMA+—H 86,182,674.26 0.040843 3,519,958.9
2Ath April 2024 Z5ZMEME ~ -+ 10th May 2024 Z5-IERA+H 84,858,079.37 0040183 3,409,852.20
29th May 2024 S -MERR - +1H 11th June 2024 “E_MERB+—H 83,113,246.57 0.041293 343199529
28th June 2024 ZE5-MEB-1/\R 10th July 2024 ~S-MELR+H 82,762,247.32 0.041963 347295218
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. kS (&)
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) UXEAREA (£5)
USD Class C
ETCERBE
No. of units Distribution ~ Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BREH
Record date Payment date BHRMERS Uss Uss
Eheds] k&R 28 i e
005 "E25E
2th July 2024 ZFZMELBZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZF-mE\BER 2,758,307.96 0.051670 142501.77
28th August 2024 E-MEN\B=+\H 10th September 2024 ~E—MENA+H 2,566,47038 0.052082 133,666.91
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+EH  8th October 2024 E-ME+E/\H 2,270,808.41 0.052958 12025747
30th October 2024 _2_mE+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z2—lE+—F+_H 2,336,278.00 0.052369 122,348.54
27th November 2024 ~SZE+—B=+tH 9th December 2024 ~5-ME+-FAA 2,319,696.99 0.051520 119,510.79
18th December 2024 ZE-ME+ZA+N\H  3rdJanuary 2025 “5-HE-F=H 2,334,857.22 0.051138 119,399.93
2ndJanuary 2005 ZEZHE-BZHZH  ethFebruary 2025 ZFZREZARA 2,266,570.48 0.050630 114,756.46
26th February 205 “5~REZF"+AR 10t March 2025 Z5—5E=F+H 2,321,381.65 0.051166 118,77581
26th March 2025 51 £=A-+7\A 8th April 205 —F - R EMB A 2,340,882.19 0050624 118,504.82
23rd April 2025 ZFZREMAZ1=H 9th May 205 “S =R ERBNH 1,929,028.01 0.048797 94,130.78
28th May 205 ~5 -2 E5R-+/\H 9th June 2025 “E- R %EARNA 1,996,202.15 0.050023 99,856.02
30th June 2025 “E-FE/B=1H 11th July 205 “E-EELE+-H 203867956 0051445 10487987
2024 “5ZME
26th July 203 ZFZ=EtEZ+7H 8th August 203 ZE-=E/\B/\H 1,790,597.62 0042372 75871.20
30th August 2023 ZEZ=%/\A=1H 11th September 2023 5= =£/5+—-H 1,764,773.38 0.041120 72,567.48
27th September 203 ZEZ=FAB=+tH 13th October 2023 Z5-=%+A+=H 1,880,100.75 0.040179 7554057
25th October 2023 Z5-=%#+A-+%A 7th November 203 ZE-=%+-A++tH 1,893,765.39 0039304 74,432.55
29th November 2023 5= =F+—B=+1H 11th December 2023 “3-=£+-A+-H 1,888,485.84 0.040852 7714842
27th December 2023 ZE-=%+-F=+tR 8thanuary 2024 ~E_E—F)\R 1,858,439.95 0.041970 7199872
24th January 2024 ZE-IE-FZ+/\B 5th February 2024 ~5-ME_FEA 1,843127.19 0041227 75,986.60
28th February 2024 ZSZMEZRZ+ABE  1thMarch 204 ZS-ME=F+-H 1,678,141.50 0.042293 7097364
JthMarch 2024 ZSMEZRHER  11th April 2024 ZS-MEMA+-H 1,659,409.18 0,043159 7161844
24th April 2024 Z5~MEME —+HEAH 10th May 2024 ~E-RERRTH 2,116953.04 0042485 89,938.75
29th May 2024 S -MERR 1A 11th June 2024 “E_MERE+—H 2,902,274.61 0.043689 126,79748
28th June 2024 ~E-MERA=T\A 10th uly 2024 “BMELE+A 2,515,588.08 0044424 11175248
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. RS ()
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) WXEA7EA (£5)
USD Class I
E IR
No. of units Distribution ~ Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BREH
Record date Payment date BHRMERS Uss Uss
Eheds] k&R 28 i e
005 "E25E
2th July 2024 ZFZMELBZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZF-mE\BER 259,011.45 0.064568 16,723.85
28th August 2024 ZE-MEN\B=+\H 10th September 2024 ~E—MENFTH 259,011.45 0.065126 16,868.38
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+HH  8th October 2024 ZE-ME+E/\H 25901145 0.066256 17,161.06
30th October 2024 “2_mE+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z%_lE+—F+_H 258,384.87 0.065564 16,940.75
27th November 2024 ZF=E+—B=++H 9th December 2024 Z5-ME+-FAR 258,384,87 0064536 16,675.13
18th December 2024 ZE-ME+ZA+N\H  3rdJanuary 2025 Z5-HE-F=H 258,384.87 0.064084 16,558.34
2ndJanuary 2025 “FZRE-B+ZH  6thFebruary 2025 ZFZREZARA 257,701.06 0.063490 16,361.44
26th February 205 “S=REZF-+AH 10t March 2025 Z5—HE=F+H 257,701.06 0.064205 16,545.70
26th March 2025 -1 F=F_+/\A 8th April 205 —F - R EME/\B 257,701.03 0.063559 16,379.22
23rd April 2025 ZEZREMAZ+=H 9%th May 205 S ZRERRNA 257,021.16 0.061299 15,755.14
28th May 205 5~ ERE-+\H 9th June 2025 ZE-RERENA 257,021.15 0.062880 16,161.49
30th June 2025 Z8 =& "E=1A 11thJuly 205 ~F -5 EtE+-A 25702117 0.064710 16,631.84
04 ZE-ME
26th July 203 ZFZ=EtB-+A”H 8th August 203 ZE-=%\B/\A 439,052.30 0052577 23,084.05
30th August 203 ZE-=%\A=1H 11th September 203 ZS==%AF+-H 439,05230 0.051057 2241669
27th September 203 “SZ=FAB-++H 13th October 203 ~5-=%+F+=H 437,929.01 0.049917 21,860.10
25th October 2023 Z8-=£+A-+%A 7th November 203 ZE-=£+-A+tH 420,956.26 0.048856 20,566.24
29th November 2023 ZEZ=F+—FZ+AH 11th December 2023 ZF_=%+-F+-H 420,956.26 0.050815 2139089
27th December 2023 ZEZ=F+ZFZ+tH 8th january 204 ZE-ME-BN\H 41987435 0052234 2193172
24th January 2024 ZE-ME-BZ+/\B 5th February 2024 ~5—ME_BHH 409,156.34 0051337 21,004.86
28th February 2024 ZS-MEZAZ+RH  11th March 2024 Z5-RE=F+-H 260,301.59 0.052700 1371789
27th March 2024 Z5-ME=A-++H 11th April 2024 ~5-REMB+-H 25963253 0.053807 13,970.05
24th April 2024 Z5ZMEME ~+9H 10th May 2024 Z5-ERATH 259,632.53 005299 13,759.49
29th May 2024 5= MERR+AA 11th June 2024 ZE_MEAA+—H 259,632.53 0.054534 14,158.80
28th June 2024 ZE_MERE-1)\R 10th July 2024 ~5-ELB+H 259,011.45 0.055485 14.371.25
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. iRE (4)
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) UXEAREA (£5)
USD Class X
ETxEFRE
No. of units Distribution ~ Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BIRER
Record date Payment date BHRMERS Uss Uss
Eheds] kSR 2 e e
005 "E25E
2th July 2024 ZFZMELBZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZF-mE\BER 58,332.50 0.073241 427233
28th August 2024 ZE-MEN\B=+\H 10th September 2024 ~E—MENFTH 56,980.77 0073773 4,203.64
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+EH  8th October 2024 ZE-ME+E/\B 55,715.04 0.074972 417707
30th October 2024 “2_mE+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z2_lE+—F+_H 53,840.75 0.074087 3,988.90
27th November 2024 ZFZE+—B=++H 9th December 2024 Z5-ME+-FAR 5251249 0072845 382527
18th December 2024 ZE-ME+ZA+N\H  3rdJanuary 2025 “-HE-F=H 51,849.88 0072276 374750
2nd January 205 “5Z8%—B+ZH  6th February 2025 ZEZRFZARA 51,670.71 0071508 369487
26th February 205 “S-REZF-+AH  10th March 2025 “5—HE=F+H 5150373 0072214 37199
26th March 2025 -1 F=F_+/\A 8th April 205 —F - R EME/\B 50,753.26 0071410 3,624.29
23rd April 2025 ZEZREMAZ1+=H 9%th May 205 S -1 ERRNA 50,699.48 0.068794 348782
28th May 205 “5-RERE-+)\H 9th June 2025 “E_RERENA 51,750.88 0.070473 364704
30th June 2025~ =& RE=1A 11thJuly 205 ~F -5 &R +-A 51,663.68 0072430 3,742.00
024 ZEPE
26th July 203 ZFZ=EtE-+A”H 8th August 203 ZE-=%\B/\A 92,037.22 0.06049% 5.567.88
30th August 203 ZE-=%/\A=1H 11th September 203 5= =%AF+-H 81,84082 0.058666 480127
27th September 203 “SZ=FAB-+tH 13th October 203 ~5-=%+F+=H 82,18431 0.057293 4,70859
25th October 2023 Z8-=£+A-+%A 7th November 203 ZE-=#+-AtH 82,072.26 0056014 4597.20
29th November 2023 ~5-=F+—B=+1H 11th December 2023 “$-=F+-R+-H 7713533 0.058180 448173
27th December 2023 ZEZ=%+-BZ+tA 8thjanuary 2024 ZE-ME-F/\R 7704648 0.059739 4,602.68
24th January 2024 ZE-ME-F =+ 1A 5th February 2024 Z5-ME_BHH 68,331.17 0058648 400749
28th February 2024 ZS-MEZAZFN\B  11th March 2024 Z5-RE=F+-H 66,636.58 0.060123 400639
27th March 2024 Z5-ME=A-++H 11th April 2024 ~5-REMB+—H 66,552.85 0.061320 4,081.02
24th April 2024 ZZZMEMB ~+9H 10th May 2024 Z5-MERATH 61,685.88 0060329 372145
29th May 2024 5= MERR+AH 11th June 2024 ZE_MEAA+—H 58,531.10 0.061995 3628.64
28th June 2024 ZE_MERE-1)\R 10th July 2024 ~5~-ELB+H 58,400.84 0.063002 367937
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. iRE (4)
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) WXEA7EA (£5)
AUD Hedged Class A
BT P ARRR TG
No. of units Distribution  Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BREA
Record date Payment date BHRMERS AU$ AU$
Eheds] kSR 2 B B
005 "E25E
2Ath July 2024 ZEZMELEZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZF =% \BEA 39,673,501.29 0.036136 1,433,641.64
28th August 2024 E-ME\B=+\H 10th September 2024 ~E—MENA+H 38,655,972.49 0.036378 1,406,226.97
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+EH  8th October 2024 F-ME+E/\B 38,351,948.71 0.036963 1,417,603,08
30th October 2024 “2_mE+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z2—lF+—F+_H 37,889,908.07 0.036538 1,384,421.46
27th November 2024 ZFZE+—B=+tH 9th December 2024 Z5-ME+-AAR 38,007,094.35 0035938 136589896
18th December 2024 ZE-ME+ZA+N\H  3rdJanuary 2025 “5—HE-F=H 37,640,888.25 0.035685 134321510
2ndJanuary 2025 “FZRE-B+ZH  6thFebruary 2025 ZFZR%EZARA 37,075,039.59 0.035333 1,309,972.37
26th February 205 “5—REZF"+AH 10t March 2025 Z5—HE=F+H 36,388,134.23 0.035711 1,299,456.66
26th March 2025 ZE-1F=FA-+/\A 8th April 205 —F - EME\B 36,172,517.34 0.035331 1,278011.21
23rd April 2025 ZFZREMAZ1=H 9%th May 205 S - R ERRNH 35,682,281.18 0.033921 1,210,378.66
28th May 205 —5 -1 EHR—+)\H Oth June 2025 “E-HEAANR 36,223,745.94 0.034787 1,260,115.45
30th June 205~ =R &"A=1A 11thjuly 205 ~5ZREtB+-A 34,998,319.96 0.035767 1,251,784.91
2004 ZFZRE
26th July 203 ZEZ=FtBZ+7H 8th August 203 ZE-=%/\E/\A 48,376,619.40 0.028849 1,395,617.09
30th August 203 ZE==%/\A=1H 11th September 2023 5= =FAF+-H 47,261,119.04 0.027954 1321,131.32
27th September 203 ZEZ=FAB=+tH 13th October 2023 ZF-=%+A+=H 46,053,667.19 0.027300 1,257,265.11
25th October 2023 ZE-=%#+A-+%A 7th November 203 ZE-=#+-F+H 45,295,565.76 0.026679 1,208,440.40
29th November 2023 5= =%+—H-+AH 11th December 2023 ~5-=£+-A+-H 45,671,61835 0.027695 126487547
27th December 2023 ZEZ=E+ZBZ+tH 8thjanuary 2024 Z5-ME—-F/\H 44983,901.83 0028424 127862243
2A4th January 2024 ZE-E-FZ+0A 5th February 2024 “5—ME_ARA 43,664,770.81 0.027893 1,217,941.45
28th February 2024 ZSZMEZFZ+N\E  1thMarch 204 ZS-ME=F+-A 43375,177.04 0.028593 1,240,226 44
27th March 2024 Z5-IE=A-++H 11th April 2024 ZE-EMA+-H 42922,726.21 0.029162 1,251,712.54
2Ath April 2024 Z5~ MEME ~+TH 10th May 2024 Z$-IERA+H 4252951493 0.028691 1,220.214.31
29th May 2024 S ZMERR—+H 11th June 2024 “E_MERB+—H 42,065454.29 0.029478 1,240,005.46
28th June 2024 Z5-MEB-1/\R 10th July 2024 ~S-MELR+H 40,750,690.87 0.029956 1,20,721.70
HEETNESERGES 106



Notes to the Financial ST AR
Statements

8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. iRE (4)
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) UXEAREA (£5)
AUD Hedged Class C
TRTTI R CERIR
No. of units Distribution  Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BIRER
Record date Payment date BHRMERS AU$ AU$
Eheds] k&R 28 7 7
005 "E25E
2Ath July 2024 ZEZMELEZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZF =% \BEA 338433.17 0.038336 1297417
28th August 2024 ZE-MEN\B=+\H 10th September 2024 ~E—MENFTH 33843317 0.038621 1307063
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+EH  8th October 2024 ZE-ME+E/\H 33843317 0.039263 13,287.90
30th October 2024 _2_mE+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z2_lE+—F+_H 338433.17 0.038839 1314441
27th November 2024 ZFZE+—B=++H 9th December 2024 ZS-ME+-FAR 33843317 0038221 12,935.05
18th December 2024 ZE-ME+ZA+N\H  3rdJanuary 2025 “5-HE-F=H 309,115.16 0.037969 11,736.79
2ndJanuary 205 “5ZRE-B+ZH  6th February 2025 ZFZR%EZARA 309,115.16 0.037621 11,629.22
26th February 205 “S~RE-F-+AH  10th March 2025 Z5-HE=F+H 258,82637 0.038049 9,848.08
26th March 2025 -1 F=F_+/\A 8th April 205 —F - R EME/\B 239,743.04 0.037665 9,030.11
23rd April 2025 ZEZREMAZ+=H 9%th May 205 S ZRERRNA 203,805.76 0.036182 737410
28th May 205 “5-RERE-+\H 9th June 2025 ZE_RERENA 203,805.78 0037133 7,567.92
30th June 2025~ =R &E"E=1A 11thJuly 205 ~F -8 &R +-A 203,805.88 0.038204 7,786.20
2024 ZE-ME
26th July 203 ZFZ=EtE-+AH 8th August 203 ZE-=%\B/\A 268,605.92 0.030373 8,158.37
30th August 203 ZE-=%\A=1H 11th September 203 5= =%AF+-H 268,605.92 0.029452 791098
27th September 203 “SZ=FAB-++tH 13th October 203 ~5-=%+F+=H 394,165.24 0.028782 11,344.86
25th October 2023 Z8-=£+A-+%A 7th November 203 ZE-=%#+-AtH 430,107.62 0028150 12,107.53
29th November 2023 ZEZ=F+—FZ+AH 11th December 2023 ZF_=%+-F+-H 38393317 0.029243 11,2136
27th December 203 ZEZ=%+-BZ+tA 8thjanuary 2024 ZE-ME-F/\R 38393317 0.030029 11,529.13
24th January 2024 ZE-ME-FZ 1A 5th February 2024 Z5—ME_BHH 38393317 0.029485 11,320.27
28th February 2024 ZS-MEZAZFN\B  11th March 2024 Z5-RE=F+—H 38393317 0.030246 11,6124
27th March 2024 Z5-ME=A-++H 11th April 2024 ~5-REMB+-H 33843317 0.030864 10,445.40
24th April 2024 Z5ZMEME ~+9H 10th May 2024 Z5-ERATH 33843317 0030384 10,282.95
29th May 2024 5= MERR+NH 11th June 2024 ZE_MEAA+—H 33843317 0031238 10,571.98
28th June 2024 ZE_MERE-1\R 10th July 2024 ~5—ELB+H 33843317 0031764 10,749.99
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. iRE (4)
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) WXEA7EA (£5)
RMB Hedged Class A
AR ARG E
No. of units Distribution  Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BIRER
Record date Payment date BHRMERS RMB RMB
Eheds] kSR 2 AR AR
005 "E25E
2th July 2024 ZEZMELBZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZF =% \BEA 2831352573 0.290819 823411124
28th August 2024 E-ME\B=+\H 10th September 2024 ~E—MENA+H 27,673,769.28 0.293010 8,108,691.14
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+EH  8th October 2024 F-ME+E/\B 27,598,828.39 0.297336 8,206,125.24
30th October 2024 “2_mE+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z2—lF+—F+_H 27,309,055.27 0.293404 8,012,586.05
27th November 2024 ZFZE+—B=+tH 9th December 2024 Z5-ME+-AAR 27,126,361.70 0288616 7,829,102.01
18th December 2024 ZE-ME+ZA+N\H  3rdJanuary 2025 “5—HE-F=H 26,624,829.06 0.286634 7,631,581.25
2ndJanuary 2025 “FZRE-B+ZH  6thFebruary 2025 ZFZR%EZARA 26,066,113.41 0.284029 740353213
26th February 205 “5—REZF"+AH 10t March 2025 Z5—HE=F+H 25,565,151.10 0.286873 7,333,951.59
26th March 2025 ZE-1F=FA-+/\A 8th April 205 —F - EME\B 25,233,551.67 0.283678 7,158,203.47
23rd April 2025 ZFZREMAZ1=H 9%th May 205 S - R ERRNH 24,847,696.02 0.273192 6,788,191.77
28th May 205 —5 -1 EHR—+)\H Oth June 2025 “E-HEAANR 24,479,348.63 0.279563 6,843,520.14
30th June 205~ =R &"A=1A 11thjuly 205 ~5ZREtB+-A 24,309,740.39 0.287124 6,979,909.90
2004 ZFZRE
26th July 203 ZEZ=FtBZ+7H 8th August 203 ZE-=%/\E/\A 39,749,155.00 0.186702 7421,246.74
30th August 203 ZE==%/\A=1H 11th September 2023 5= =FAF+-H 38,492,675.24 0.180816 6,960,091.57
27th September 203 ZEZ=FAB=+tH 13th October 2023 ZF-=%+A+=H 36,392,800.27 0.176730 6,431,699.59
25th October 2023 ZE-=%#+A-+%A 7th November 203 ZE-=#+-F+H 35,740,121.88 0.201898 721585913
29th November 2023 Z¥Z=%+—BZ+AH 11th December 2023 Z5_=F+_F+-H 3481212110 0.209814 7,304,07038
27th December 2023 ZE-=%+-F=++tR 8thanuary 2024 “E—ME—-F\R 34,081,994.90 0.215551 7,346,408,08
2A4th January 2024 ZE-E-FZ+0A 5th February 2024 “5—ME_ARA 33,381,191.69 0211383 7,056,216.44
28th February 2024 ZSZMEZFZ+N\E  1thMarch 204 ZS-ME=F+-A 32,682617.77 0.216639 7,080,329.63
27th March 2024 Z5-IE=A-++H 11th April 2024 ZE-EMA+-H 32,208,603.40 0.220793 711143417
2Ath April 2024 Z5~ MEME ~+TH 10th May 2024 Z$-IERA+H 31,610,106.28 0217518 6,875,767.10
29th May 2024 S ZMERR—+H 11th June 2024 “E_MERB+—H 30,285,893.60 0.223649 6,773,400.82
28th June 2024 ZE-MERBZHN\R 10th July 2024 “E-MELE+A 2980748868 021177 677157586
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. kS (&)
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) UXEAREA (£5)
GBP Hedged Class A
BT P ARFIR TR
No. of units Distribution  Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BREA
Record date Payment date BHRMERS GBP GBP
Eheds] k&R 28 ] =t
005 "E25E
2th July 2024 ZEZMELBZ+IH 5th August 2024 ZF =% \BEA 2,433,896.38 0.044386 108,03092
28th August 2024 E-MEN\B=+\H 10th September 2024 ~E—MENA+H 2,331,802.89 0.044684 104,194.28
25th September 2024 “E-MEAB=+EH  8th October 2024 E-ME+E/\H 2,373,380.20 0.045389 107,725.35
30th October 2024 “2_mE+A=1H 12th November 2024 Z2_-lE+—F+_H 2,422,005.29 0.044869 108,672.96
27th November 2024 ~SZ&+—B=+tH 9th December 2024 ~5-ME+-FAA 2,539,099.01 0.044110 111,999.66
18th December 2024 ZE-ME+ZA+N\H  3rdJanuary 2025 “5-HE-F=H 2,599,621.92 0.043771 113,783.05
2ndJanuary 2005 ZEZHE-BHZH  ethFebruary 2025 ZFZR%EZARA 2,492,09049 0.043309 10792995
26th February 2005 "S- AE-AZHAR  10th March 2025 “5-1%=F+H 2,586,22455 0043741 11312405
26th March 2025 51 £=A-+7\A 8th April 205 S - REMB N 2,569,398.41 0043252 111,131.62
23rd April 2025 ZFZREMAZ1=H 9th May 205 “S-RERBNH 2,568,355.38 0.041572 106,771.67
28th May 205 ~5 -2 E5R-+/\H 9th June 2025 “E-R%EAANA 2,602,885.11 0.042605 110,895.92
30th June 2025 “E=FE/B=1H 11th July 205 ~E-EELE+-R 258527874 0043787 11320160
2024 “5ZME
26th July 203 ZEZ=EtEZ+7H 8th August 203 ZE-=E/\B/\H 323342641 0034833 112,629.94
30th August 2023 ZEZ=%/\A=1H 11th September 2023 5= =£n5+—H 315469323 0.033779 106,562.38
27th September 203 ZSZ=FAB=+tH 13th October 203 Z5-=%+A+=H 312573640 0.033000 103,14930
25th October 2023 ZE-=%F+B-+%AH 7th November 203 ZE-=#+-AtH 2,798,718.13 0032263 90,295.04
29th November 2023 5= =F+—B=+1H 11th December 2023 “3-=£+-A+-A 272067101 0.033505 91,156.08
27th December 2023 ZE-=%+"F=+tR 8thanuary 2024 “E_ME—-F)\R 2,692,757.31 0.034393 92,612.00
24th January 2024 ZE-E-FZ+MA 5th February 2024 ~5-EZBHH 2,593,431.02 0033770 87,580.17
28th February 2024 “SZMEZAZFN\B  1thMarch 2024 Z5-ME=F+-H 2,527,540.09 0.034624 8751355
JthMarch 2024 SMEZR+ER  11th April 2024 ZE-MEMA+-F 2,387,18428 0035321 43174
24th April 2024 ZFZMEME ~+4H 10th May 2024 ~5-RERRTH 2,301,011.14 0034754 79,969.34
29th May 2024 ZS-MERR 1A 11th June 2024 ZE_MEARF+—H 251759.73 0.037345 9401715
28th June 2024 ZE-MERE-1/\R 10th July 2024 ~S-MELR+H 2,550,969.76 0.037952 96,81440
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued)
(b) Distribution units (Continued)

RMB Hedged Class C

ItSSRBR 2 AR

8. k3 (8)

(b) WS8R (80

ARH3HCSERRER
No. of units Distribution ~ Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distributions ENTRET BIRER
Record date Payment date BHRMERS RMB RMB
%R kSR )i AR AR
005 -8C%%
24th uly 2024 ~E-MELBZHIA Sth August 2024 =M% \BEA 876,10483 0.292872 256,586.57
28th August 2024 ZE-MEN\BZHN\R  10th September 2024 ~E-MEfA+A 876,10891 0295286 258,702.70
25th September 2024 “E-MEAA"+EHA  8th October 2024 ~E-ME+R/\R 876,112.94 0.299811 26266830
30th October 2024 ~E-ME+A=+A 12th November 2024 ZE-M%+—B+-A 696,116.88 0.296054 206,088.19
27th November 2024 ZEZM%E+—A=++R 9th December 2024 “5-M&E+-AAR 696,120.89 0291359 202,821.09
18th December 2024 ZS-ME+ZA+N\R  3rdJanuary 2025 Z5-hE-A=H 696,124.84 0.289472 20150865
2nd January 205 “EZRE-BZHZH  6th February 205 “EZREZARA 696,128.89 0.287040 199,816.84
26th February 205 “EZREZA"HAA  10th March 2025 Z5ZRE=R+A 107355 0303011 32530
26th March 2025 ZE=FF=F+75A 8th April 2025 ~E-REME\R 107761 0.299784 32305
2rd April 2025 “E-REME-+=A 9th May 2025 ~E-REREAR 1,081.99 0288867 31255
28th May 2025 5~ RERRZHN\A 9thJune 205 ~E-RERBAA 1,086.00 0295811 3.5
30th june 205 ~E-REAA=1A 11thjuly 2005 ~E-RELA+-A 1,090.03 0304011 3138
2004 Z5-IE
27th September 203 “E-ZEAA"+A  13th October 2023 E_=%+A+=A 87607540 0176926 155,000.52
25th October 203 Z5Z=%+B_+EA  7th November 203 “5-=£+—-F+A 876,077.94 0.202233 17717187
29th November 2023 5= =%+—BZ+AA 11th December 2023 ~E-=£+-A+-A 876,080.85 0210309 184,247.69
27th December 2023 “E-=E+-F =+t R 8th January 2024 “F-ME—F)\R 876,083.84 0216181 189,392.68
2d4thJanuary 2024 ZE_ME-AZ WA SthFebruary 2024 ZE-ME_RRA 876,086.88 0212117 185,832.92
28th February 204 “E-ME_A=+\B  11thMarch 204 “E-ME=A+-A 876,080.86 0217538 190,582.84
27th March 2024 ZE- =R ++H 11th April 204 “E-MEMA+-A 87609282 0221823 194,337.54
24th April 2024 ~B-IERB ~+IA 10th May 2024 “E-IERA+A 876,095.84 0218654 191,561.86
29th May 2024 “S-TEER-+HA 11thJune 2024 ZE-ME~RA+-A 876,098.80 0224974 197,009.45
28th June 2024 “E-MERAZ+/\A 10th July 2024 “S-IE+A+A 876,101.83 0.228660 20032944
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8. DISTRIBUTIONS (Continued) 8. RS ()
(b) Distribution units (Continued) (b) WXEA7EA (£5)
RMB Hedged Class M
AR HFMERRER
No. of units Distribution  Total distribution
entitled per unit amount
distrbutions ~ EAEEEH BREH
Record date Payment date B RMB RMB
Eheds] k&R K828 AET AT
005 "E25E
2ndJanuary 2005 “5ZRE-BZ+ZH  6thFebruary 2025 ZFZR%EZARA 232697 0.370592 862.36
26th February 205 “5"REZF+AH  10th March 2025 Z5—HE=F+H 4,809.58 0.374384 1,800.63
26th March 2025 ZE-1F=FA_+7\A 8th April 205 —F - R EME\B 4809.58 0.370207 1,780.54
23rd April 2025 ZFZREMAZ1=H 9%th May 205 S - R ERRNH 56109 0.356554 2,00061
28th May 205 —5 - EHR—+)\H 9th June 2025 ZE_HERENA 6,389.11 0.36489% 233136
30th June 2025 Z5- R & "A=1A 11thjuly 205 ~5 -8B +-A 9,420,04 0374822 353084
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

9. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 9. ERARXREALZRS

AND CONNECTED PERSONS

In addition to the management fee
and trustee fee disclosed in note 7 and
uncommitted bank overdraft facilities
disclosed in note 14 to the financial
statements, the Fund had the following
transactions with its related parties,
the Manager, the Trustee and the
connected persons of the Manager or
the Trustee. Connected persons of the
Manager are those as defined in the
UT Code established by the SFC. All
transactions with related parties and
connected persons were entered into in
the ordinary course of business and on
normal commercial terms. To the best of
the knowledge of the Manager and the
Trustee, the Fund did not have any other
transactions with connected persons
except for those disclosed below.

(@) As at 30th June 2025, the Fund
placed bank deposits amounted
to HK$248,661,020 (2024:
HK$261,704,239) with The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong Branch, a
related company of the Trustee and
the Registrar. Bank interest income
amounted to HK$6,331,459 (2024:
HK$6,838,009) has been earned by the
Fund. As at 30th June 2025, the Fund
was entitled to receive bank interest
amounted to HK$11,175 (2024:
HK$29,884) from The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong Branch.

T
o

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund
placed investments amounting
to HK$14,097,836,345 (2024:
HK$15,883,773,150) with the Trustee
and the Registrar.

PRETUMSIRFTERE7 2 EEBBARTZIEAL
FRINRCER1AZIREIBEENBERTE > £&
S5HERAN - BEA REAREZEBEARRZ
RARXEALZRZUNT - REARZH
ARXEATRIRBEEBESRAHEES R
BZEHEBSFMAENOIERREEES T
(EEETU") FREX - FIBESHERA
REXENLZRG TG RFHT > HA
—MREB M S o SEIEARZIEARA
PRTIRFIIREEES » BEH TS HERAH
1TEMRS o

(@ BE-Z_HFARA=+H  EE2FR
S{E248,661,0208 T (ZEZHF :
261,704,239 7T) RITERTEZH
AREMAFEXIEZThe Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong Branch o Zx&#
BIREURITH SR SE6,331,459 87T
(ZZ Y4 : 6,838,00987T) « HEZ
E_HFHRAZ=+H > BENIWEEE
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, Hong Kong
BranchZiR1THI S 2B 11,1758 7T
(ZZ P4 © 29,884#7T) ©

(b) BE-ZT-_AFAA=+H  EEKZE
5{814,097,836,345#8 75 (ZZE_MU4F :
15,883,773,150%7T) FHRTF AT
A4k o
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9. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
AND CONNECTED PERSONS (Continued)

(c) During the year ended 30th June

(d

=

2025, transaction handling fees on
purchases and sales of investments,
amounting to HK$323,830 (2024:
HK$413,686) were charged by the
Trustee and the Registrar. As at 30th
June 2025, the amount HK$60,198
(2024: HK$14,483) was payable to
the Trustee and the Registrar, which
is included in other payables in the
statement of financial position.

During the year ended 30th June 2025,
the net registrar's cost amounting to
HK$29,408,518 (2024: HK$34,243,156)
was paid to the Manager and the
Manager paid the service fee to The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, Hong Kong
Branch, the service provider of
the Fund. As at 30th June 2025,
the amount HK$2,279,684 (2024:
HK$2,641,512) was payable to the
Manager which is included in other
payables in the statement of financial
position.

During the years ended 30th June
2025 and 2024, the Fund has not
incurred interest expense paid to the
connected person of the Trustee.

During the ended 30th June 2025,
the Fund has incurred safe custody
and bank charges amounting to
HK$2,637,321 (2024: HK$2,850,922)
paid to the connected person of the
Trustee.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

9. BERARXEALZRZS (8)

) BE_E_HFA=ZTHLEFE X

(e)

AR Z FEE 7323,8308 7T (Z
T4 @ 413,686 7T) o tEERX Y
FERABREML - EE_ZT—RHEN
A=1H > NIXEZIEENRZFEEHE
7960,1988 7t (ZEZIHE © 14,4838
7T) ) ZRTEEETMSRARANE
MRz {FFRIN o

BHE_ZHAHEAB=1THLEE
A5t 25 929,408,518 7T (_7_
£ 134,243,156787T) ° ILEASZAFE
BA > BZEBEAZNFAEENRSRE
{#£#& —The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, Hong
Kong Branch e @2 _Z " HF;RA=
THIEFE > EMLSRA72,279,68478
7o (ZZTINAE ¢ 2,641,512/87T) © b5k
AXAFEREA > ZRBESETUS
WORER AR EL R A5 FRT ©

BE_ES_ASR_EBE_NEA=1+
HIEFE » AESHESFEF S HE
BXAFSRAZREALT

BE_Z-REXRA=1THILEE
EEAKRETEAN2,637,321857T (=
T[4 : 2,850,922:87T) X4 T2
AZEREAT o
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9. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
AND CONNECTED PERSONS (Continued)

(g9) During the year ended 30th June 2025,

(h

0]

=

the Fund has incurred miscellaneous
service expenses amounting to
HK$2,527,471 (2024: HK$2,596,074)
paid to the connected person of the
Trustee. This amount is charged
as other operating expenses in the
statement of comprehensive income.
As at 30th June 2025, the amount
HK$225,301 (2024: HK$155,610) was
payable to the connected person of
the Trustee which is included in other
payables in the statement of financial
position.

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund
held investments in debt securities
issued by entities within HSBC
Holdings Plc, which are the
connected persons of the Trustee,
amounting to HK$112,515,751
(2024: HK$69,775,564). During the
year ended 30th June 2025, interest
on debt securities amounted to
HK$5,041,371 (2024: HK$5,751,134)
has been earned by the Fund from its
investment in the connected persons
of the Trustee. As at 30th June 2025,
the Fund was entitled to receive
interest on debt securities amounted
to HK$1,297,584 (2024: HK$656,401)
from its investments in the connected
persons of the Trustee.

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held
investments in unit trusts/mutual
funds which are managed by the

ItSSRBR 2 AR

9. BERARXEALZRZS (8)

(h)

) BE_ZE_AFENA=THILLEE > #
ARS8 #2,527,47187 (T2

£ 12,596,074 7T) AFZHEAZE
EAL o KRBT 2EKEIREST)
FEHMAERR - LBEAZTFIIZIEA
ZREANT - BEZZE-RESNA=T1
B Mgz IﬁHE A7 225,301 87T
(ZZZM4 : 155,61087T) » ZHHE
’@?é?ﬁﬂk,ﬁi‘%ma’ﬂﬁ@m{ﬁ'xlﬁ °

BE_E_RENA=1+H > FEEK
BFRINMAZREAZREALHSBC
Holdings PIcHIfS31ES5/9112,515,751
BT (ZZE I : 69,775,564 7T) ©
BEE-_AFENA=+HLEE &
B IWEURSIESFI 2 95,041,3718 7T
(ZZZM4 : 5,751,13487T) - BEZ
BoHREANA=+H FESMKEE

BFERHAZREATHNESIESFE
m 297,584 (ZZ U4 : 656,401
BIT) ©

BE_T_AFAA=+TH > FES
HHEBEARZELEAMBEERART
HMABEENMIERRHERA

Manager or other companies under 1,708,068,848 &t (Z T W :
the same group of the Manager, 1,774,096,277#7T) ©
amounting to HK$1,708,068,848
(2024: HK$1,774,096,277).
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9. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
AND CONNECTED PERSONS (Continued)

() During the years ended 30th June
2025 and 2024, the Fund has incurred
brokerage commission expense paid
to the connected persons of the
Trustee for its brokerage services.
Investment transactions with this
entity is set out below:

ItSSRBR 2 AR

9. BERARXEALZRZS (8)

() BEZZEFERIZEINFAA=ZT
BLEEE > EEXNELASHEATE
RAZBEXEAL - BXEERZIIH
mE:

Aggregate % of the Fund's
value of  total aggregate
purchases value of
and sales of transactions
investments  during the year Brokerage Average rate of
LA EE HEEREE commission commission
HEFERESE  KRERKSE paid Z/E
BASMEBRDE Bt BNEZLRE TEBLE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2025 “F"HEF 1,105,125,852 1.63% 8,922 0.00%
2024 —ZTZWEF 877,272,437 1.04% 17,300 0.00%

(k) During the year ended 30th June
2025, the Manager and its connected
persons subscribed 48 and redeemed
nil units of the Fund (2024: subscribed
and redeemed nil units). During the
years ended 30th June 2025 and 2024,
the Trustee and its connected persons
did not subscribe and redeem units of
the Fund.

k) BEZZZHEEAA=1THILEE £
BAREXEATIABAESHE481D
TERBEOAESHHSMHM(ZEME
FINBEEEMBEHEAT) - BEZ
SETRERZSENENB=1THIEE
B SHRAREXREATHLIAGHE
EIAEEHEN o
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

9. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
AND CONNECTED PERSONS (Continued)

9. BERARXEALZRZS (8)

() During the year ended 30th June () B2 T _HAEFEAB=Z=+HLEFE >

2025, the Fund entered into foreign
exchange forward contracts with
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, Hong
Kong Branch and The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited, Singapore Branch, which are
connected persons of the Trustee,
with realised losses amounting to
HK$84,857,225 and realised losses
amounting to HK$10,684,177
respectively (2024: realised losses
amounting to HK$193,607,523
and realised gains amounting to
HK$8,237,968 respectively).

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund
held outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts as financial assets
amounting to HK$18,647,341 (2024:
HK$9,834,514) and financial liabilities
amounting to HK$270,108 (2024:
HK$17,476,089) with The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. As at 30th
June 2025, the Fund held outstanding
foreign exchange forward contracts
as financial assets amounting to
HK$3,784,429 (2024: HK$370,555)
and financial liabilities amounting to
HK$18,463,778 (2024: HK$nil) with
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, Singapore
Branch.

TEETBEIRHEANXEAL > The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, Hong Kong
BranchThe Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation, Singapore
Branch > ITILZEASNC &4y » EZIMTS
#84,857,225 B KRBEEMSHN
10,684,177 857w (ZTZME . EEXWM
Si79193,607,523 B TR EL K E R
8,237,968 #7T) °

BE_Z_AFAAZ=+H xEES
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, Hong Kong
BranchX SHERAF~ZAAINCEL
£3M5918,647,34138x (CEZME ¢
9,834,514#7T) KER 1 HRAVZHISNC
BHREHN270,10887T (ZFMUEF ©
17,476,089 7T) - BREZZ"HEFN
B=+H > »&&E%£5The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited, Singapore BranchZZZ#&R:
RERERINCEAEE /3,784,429 7T
(ZE W4 : 370,55587T) Refhfk
BIZEASNC S 49 517918,463,778E 7T
(CZ2-WE TR °
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9. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

AND CONNECTED PERSONS (Continued)

(m)As at 30th June 2025, the Fund

held investment in the connected
persons of the Trustee amounting to
HK$43,980,840 (2024: HK$40,734,120).
During the year ended 30th June
2025, net gains of HK$20,846,010
(2024: net gains of HK$10,946,528)
was recognised from its investment
in HSBC Holdings Plc, the connected
person of the Trustee. During the
year ended 30th June 2025, dividend
income amounted to HK$3,060,346
(2024: HK$4,246,920) has been earned
by the Fund from its investment in
HSBC Holdings Plc, the connected
person of the Trustee.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

9.

ERARXEANLZRS (8)

MBE_ET-_AF,B=1+H> &£

ERESRAZXEATHNERS
EM943,980,8408 7 (ZE_WE :
40,734,120 7T) - BE_ZE_H %A
=t+HLEFE  ZESRRETIIEA
2 %% AEHSBC Holdings PICFRR1EH
U $920,846,0108 7T (Z B P94 ©
10,946,528 7t) c HE_T_HF-AB
Z+HHLEEE  ZESRRETIIEA
Z %% AL HSBC Holdings PIcFRFREX
BIRGF Uk 25 593,060,346 7T (Z 2
£ 1 4,246,92087T) ©
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10.

(a)

TAXATION

Hong Kong Tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits
tax has been made as the Fund was
authorised as a collective investment
scheme under Section 104 of the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance
and is therefore exempt from Hong Kong
profits tax under Section 26A (1A) of the
Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Mainland China Tax

The Fund invests in shares of companies
in mainland China listed on overseas
stock exchanges including the H-shares
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(“H-shares”). Under the mainland China
Corporate Income Tax Law, the Fund may
be liable to pay mainland China tax on
the capital gains realised in the trading
of H-shares. However, no provision was
made for taxation from such gains in the
financial statements as the Trustee and
the Manager believe that the Fund can
sustain a position for not filing a tax return
based on the existing tax regulations and
that the enforcement of mainland China
tax on capital gains is not probable.

ItSSRBR 2 AR

10. I

(a) BAEHIN
BT AESIRIEEBIISRAEEAFE104
SRINTAEFRR AT » RIBEBRSE

BISE26A(1A)% » ZNEDRMBHMNE BTG
B RILHTEBHIURE o

(b

-

FPERt LS

FEERABAFEBIMNESFZ S EHHHE
At AR (7 > HREEEEBRERS
P EEIHAR ("HAR") o RIBEFERM AR
BHE > AE P EZHRFASHAE
Wean B P EIRA I © 28T » B TFRIEA
RESEEARE > AR FRIEE AR
SABILEFLTHFEXRBR > BREFKT
BES ML AW EU AR I » BUE AT S5 3R %
HERULF W AT RS o
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10.

(@

TAXATION (Continued)
India Tax

The Schroder Asian Asset Income Fund
(“the Fund”) invests in securities listed
in India since 15 August 2019. Under
the provisions of the Indian Income Tax
Act, 1961 (“ITA") prevailing as on 30th
June 2025 and the interpretations there
from, a person (other than an individual
and a company) (including the Fund)
is not considered as resident in India
for the purposes of ITA, if control and
management of its affairs is situated
wholly outside India during the relevant
Indian tax year i.e. year ending 31st
March. The Trustee and the Manager
(the “Management”) consider that the
control and management of the Fund's
affairs is situated wholly outside India
during the Indian tax years ending 31st
March 2025 and 2024 and including the
period from 1st April 2025 to 30th June
2025 and therefore, the Fund should
not be considered as resident in India
for the purposes of ITA during the said
years and period. Accordingly, the Fund
is considered as a non-resident in India
for the purposes of ITA. The Fund has
obtained a tax ID (called Permanent
Account Number or PAN) issued by the
Indian Income Tax Department. Subject
to provisions of the India - Hong Kong tax
treaty, the Fund is liable to pay income
tax on its total income chargeable to
tax under the provisions of ITA and the
provisions of relevant Indian Finance
Acts. The Fund is also subject to other
compliances e.g. Filing of return of income
as per the provisions of the ITA.
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10. FHIA (47)
(c) ENERRIN

HMZEITNSERERES ("CEE) BZF
—NWENB+HABEREZETFENE EHBIE
H o RIBF-E-AFESA=ZTHERENE
FRfg®iE (—hR—8) ("ITA") MEXKRE
B8 AL (MCARLQERN) (B4
HE) AR WMAMITAMSNENERR » &1
FREHNEEEE ST A TEIEEXS
ZEE (AEE=A=1+—HLEE) =2%&
ENEIRIMNHTT - SRAMKEA (BER) A
N AESEHMEEEESHNTATEE
TR CRFERIZINME=ZA=+—HIEH
ENSEFERSER-_S-_AFENA—HE
CECRENB=1+HIEETEEMNTEE
WIMETT » At 0 AEESTF L EE R HERE
ARAWRAARITATMEMNENERER - At » &
BEEWAARITAMENIENERR - &%
BIREFHENEMSHIRIIMARSID Rk
AMEEPAN) o IRIBENE S B S ENIZ
X 0 ANESEITANS X R ENEHEX SRUER
SXMMBIER BN S BAFRER - xES
IR EMFNRS] » WIRIBITAR SR RIR
ik o
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Statements

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. FI5: (£%)

(¢) India Tax (Continued) (c) ENERIN (1)

As the Fund is a Foreign Portfolio Investor
which has made investment in securities
in accordance with the regulations made
under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992, investments made
by the Fund in listed securities in India
should be classified as capital assets
and any gains or losses arising from
transfer of such listed securities should
be chargeable to income tax under the
heading “Capital Gains”. The capital
gains arising from the transfer of listed
securities in India is classified into short-
term and long-term capital gains or losses
on the basis of the holding period of the
listed securities. Gains arising from the
transfer of a security listed in recognised
stock exchange in India, if held for more
than twelve months are classified as long
term capital gains; and if held for not
more than twelve months are classified
as short term capital gains. Prior to 1st
April 2018, long term capital gains arising
on transfer of listed equity shares, where
certain conditions (e.g. such transaction is
chargeable to securities transaction tax)
were fulfilled were generally exempt from
income tax in India. However, effective
1st April 2018 the ITA has been amended
and such long-term capital gains are
subject to income tax at the rate of 10%
(plus applicable surcharge and applicable
health and education cess). The ITA
allows grandfathering of gains accrued
until 31st January 2018. This benefit is
enabled by providing a cost step up for
the shares held on 31st January 2018 by
replacing the original cost of acquisition

HTAEENINERBAEREE » IR
BHFRZELRRE (—ANLZE) HAE
BRIES » AEESWENE EHIESNRERK
DEANREAFMRAFILXE FAESFF
ERE AR ERE N BRI THIE
RS FRISHT o RAEILENE EfIEsFFR =4
R AWERIERFA L HIES80EE > 5%
FFEEFIKEI A ARG H SR o BLFENEIA
AIEZFAL 5 PR IE EAiE S £ B9 IR e
MEFHBI+ 1A > WALAKPE
Wi IRFARBEABI =1 > Mo
KNERARRRE - F-F—/\FMA—AH
A1 > F¥git ER AR RER~ENKAR
Wit - ENEE TR (RS NI
FRBH) WERT » —RRBEHLENE
FRigHt - A > B-2—N\FEB—BEX
g ITABFEYT » BEKEARAI G IR R
10%E4hrRiS Tt (BiN_LiEFRRIMIINZEFE A
HERERHEEH) o ITARITERLERE
T N\E—A=+—HNRRW -
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(0

TAXATION (Continued)

India Tax (Continued)

with the lower of the market value of the
shares as on 31st January 2018 or the
sale consideration. Short term capital
gains arising on listed equity shares,
units of equity oriented mutual funds,
units of real estate investment trust and
units of infrastructure investment trusts
are subject to income tax at the rate
of 15% (plus applicable surcharge and
applicable health and education cess)
provided the transactions are subject to
securities transaction tax (“STT"). Short
term capital gains arising from transfer
of other securities are taxed at 30% (plus
applicable surcharge and applicable
health and education cess). Prior to
1st April 2020, an Indian company was
required to pay Dividend Distribution Tax
(DDT) at a rate of 15% (plus applicable
surcharge and applicable health and
education cess) on gross dividend amount
including DDT on any amount declared,
distributed or paid by way of dividends,
whether out of current or accumulated
profits and such dividend income was
exempt in the hands of the shareholders.
However, effective 1st April 2020 the ITA
has been amended and DDT has been
abolished. Dividends, which were hitherto
exempt from tax are now taxable in the
hands of the shareholder at the applicable
tax rate plus applicable surcharge and
applicable health and education cess.
For non-resident investors including
Foreign Portfolio Investors, dividend
income is subject to income tax at the
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10. FHIA (47)
(c) EMERIR (40)
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. FI5: (£%)

(¢) India Tax (Continued) () ENERIN (8R)

rate of 20% (plus applicable surcharge
and applicable health and education cess)
under the ITA. In case the Fund is eligible
to claim benefits under India-Hong Kong
tax treaty, then dividend income could
be taxable at a lower tax rate of 5%
(subject to certain conditions). Further,
the Finance Act 2021 has amended the
relevant provisions of the ITA to provide
that Indian investee company can deduct
taxes at sources at the rate of (a) 20%
(plus surcharge and health and education
cess), or (b) the rate provided under the
relevant tax treaty, whichever is lower,
on, amongst other, dividend payment
made to the Foreign Portfolio Investors
(“FPI"), if the FPI has furnished a tax
residency certificate. The capital gains
are calculated based on First in First Out
(FIFO) methodology. The capital gains are
calculated by reducing cost of acquisition
and expenses (e.g. brokerage) incurred
for the purpose of sale from the total sale
consideration; however, STT is not an
allowable expenditure to compute capital
gains. Short term losses can be off-set
against short term gains and long term
gains, whereas long term loss can be off-
set only against long term gains. Short
term and long term capital losses cannot
be off-set against dividend income. The
ITA permits a taxpayer to carry forward
residuary tax losses for a maximum
period of 8-years to be off-set in the same
manner.
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HEH) > F(b)BHRIEEXERDENEDN
FRFRE IR » LIRS ol > YhaE
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FPIEIREMRSEEIE) - BREAWBELET L
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NINBREE & B M= £ BT S (IEL
2B R) BAFTITE ; 28 > STTHEIE—IN
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

10.

(@

(d)

TAXATION (Continued)

India Tax (Continued)

Having considered independent
professional tax advice and recent market
developments, Management considers
that the Fund has an obligation to pay tax
on net realised gains derived from trading
in shares of companies listed in India.

During the year ended 30th June 2025,
the capital gains tax incurred from the
investment in Indian securities was
HK$6,074,814 (2024: HK$24,563,200). As at
30th June 2025, the deferred tax liability of
HK$46,214,972 (2024: HK$53,430,378) was
recognised in the statement of financial
position.

Withholding Tax

Withholding tax was charged on certain
dividend and interest income received
during the year.
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10.

(c)

(d)

BT (4%)
) ENERIIN (1)
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

11. NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE AND 1. BRITHIH B RS EALAHTIFEASHT

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
UNITHOLDERS PER UNIT

The Fund’'s net assets attributable
to unitholders is represented by the
units in the Fund, and shown as net
assets attributable to unitholders in
the statement of financial position.
Subscriptions and redemptions of
units during the year are shown in the
statement of changes in net assets
attributable to unitholders. In order to
achieve the investment objectives, the
Fund endeavors to make investment in
accordance with the investment policies
as outlined in note 3, whilst maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet redemption
requests. Such liquidity is augmented by
the holding of liquid investments.

In accordance with the provisions of the
Trust Deed and the Fund's Explanatory
Memorandum, investments are stated
at the last traded price on the valuation
day for the purpose of determining net
asset value per unit for subscriptions
and redemptions and for various fee
calculations.

Net assets attributable to unitholders
represent a financial liability in the
statement of financial position, carried
at the redemption amount that would
be payable at the year end date if the
unitholder exercised the right to redeem
the units in the Fund.

During the year ended 30th June
2025, the total issue of units and the
total redemption of units by the Fund
were amounted to HK$2,102,282,691
and HK$4,248,628,641 (2024:
HK$1,247,620,729 and HK$5,748,021,492).

B
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Notes to the Financial

Statements

1.

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE AND
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
UNITHOLDERS PER UNIT (Continued)

Number of units in issue as at 30th June
2025 and 2024: T2p8 :

HKD Class A Accumulation FB7tAZR EI5E

HKD Class A Distribution FTAZLFIUK B 1550

HKD Class C Accumulation #7cCEFIEFHER

HKD Class C Distribution T CERIUW S5

HKD Class X Accumulation 7t XZ3 25580

HKD Class X Distribution Bt XZERIUW 2455

RMB Class M Accumulation ARTMZER| RF5EN

RMB Class M Distribution A B M3 S5 ER

USD Class A Accumulation ETTAZER EFUAER

USD Class A Distribution ETTAZFIWEHER

USD Class C Accumulation T CERIRFUAER

USD Class C Distribution E7TCERIWBHER

USD Class I Accumulation E5tIZE5 R4 5

USD Class I Distribution E5tIZE3IULB45 80

USD Class X Accumulation E7TXZE5| EF1AER

USD Class X Distribution ETXZERIUREHER

AUD Hedged Class A Distribution J27t33 RAZE W E 15 5
AUD Hedged Class C Distribution JB7txt s CRFIW S A5
RMB Hedged Class A Distribution AR HAZZIKSHER
RMB Hedged Class C Distribution A RMxtHCEFIWEIRER
RMB Hedged Class M Accumulation ARMXHRMZERI BT ER
RMB Hedged Class M Distribution A R HaMEFIUE 55
GBP Hedged Class A Accumulation ZEEEXT HAZRRI RFAER
GBP Hedged Class A Distribution ZEEE3T AR S 1550

ItSSRBR 2 AR

2025
—E_RE
Units

K

788,199.17
54,622,796.74
162,558.36
991,866.66
67.62
9,330.76
109,107.77
359,339.31
2,617,655.22
70,627,380.63
4,491,624.09
2,038,679.64
26,678.00
257,021.22
68.14
51,663.72
34,998,319.93
203,805.77
24,309,740.38
1,090.04
1,564,216.62
9,420.05
55,479.56
2,585,278.75

1. BRI BB RS RAHTIHEASHH
BEF (8)

FETHEFRZENFEARB=1+HEXR

2024
—ZNE
Units

&R

946,239.94
61,215,991.48
165,141.02
567,523.26
67.62
12,944.89

3,250,739.44
82,762,247.32
5,180,840.29
2,515,588.08
21,234.00
259,011.45
68.14
58,400.84
40,750,690.87
338,433.17
29,807,488.68
876,101.83
1,213,468.14
84,241.04
2,550,969.76
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Notes to the Financial ST AR
Statements

11. NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE AND 11. BRITHEHBA RS RANTIFEASHE
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO BEFE (8)
UNITHOLDERS PER UNIT (Continued)
2025 2024

“ECRE ZECME
Net assets attributable to unitholders per unit
NERGIRTITE NFAESRTIT
HKD Class A Accumulation #TALRI 2FHAER HK$ #7T 174.3807 164.1664
HKD Class A Distribution SBTTAERU S5 5 HK$ BT 83.3719 83.7127
HKD Class C Accumulation Bt CEFIEFUAH HK$ 87T 192.9455 180.3334
HKD Class C Distribution &7t CERIM SR 5 HK$ BT 92.2794 91.9881
HKD Class X Accumulation BTX2E3 2FMAER HK$ 7T 174.0309 163.8404
HKD Class X Distribution BTTXE3IUR B34 HKS Bt 125.1704 125.6824
RMB Class M Accumulation ARMMZERIBFHAE RMB AR 102.0221 -
RMB Class M Distribution ARTMEZIREHER RMB AR 99.2885 -
USD Class A Accumulation ETTAKSIEIMAER US$ =7t 17.2982 16.3738
USD Class A Distribution ETTAZRIEHER US$ =t 8.2707 8.3498
USD Class C Accumulation E7tCERIZFMAER US$ %7t 17.1177 16.0861
USD Class C Distribution E7CERIERER US$ %5t 8.8197 8.8398
USD Class I Accumulation E7TIERI EFUAT US$ %7t 18.3849 17.1557
USD Class I Distribution T3S A5 US$ 7t 11.0938 11.0411
USD Class X Accumulation SETcX2E5I 1% US$ =7t 17.2502 16.3287
USD Class X Distribution E7tX LRI B US$ E7t 124172 12.5360
AUD Hedged Class A Distribution SR7c3 ALK S A5 AU$ Bt 7.4638 7.5373
AUD Hedged Class C Distribution SRt HCERIKSAER AU$ 87t 79724 7.9925
RMB Hedged Class A Distribution AR HARZIKEHE RMB AR 76.5664 77.6320
RMB Hedged Class C Distribution ARMIHHCERIREHT RMB AR 81.0695 78.1420
RMB Hedged Class M Accumulation ARMIHMERIRIRAH RMB AR 134.4780 130.8040
RMB Hedged Class M Distribution A R HMERIMEHE RMB AR 99.9525 -
GBP Hedged Class A Accumulation ZEEERTHALKRIRRAER GBP 3% 11.5576 11.0022
GBP Hedged Class A Distribution ZEEE3$ AR S {A4R GBP % 7.7843 7.8810
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

12.

13.

14.

15.

TRANSACTION COSTS

Transaction costs are costs incurred
to acquire/dispose financial assets or
liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. They include fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and
dealers.

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

During the years ended 30th June 2025
and 2024, the Manager and its connected
persons did not enter into any soft
commission arrangements with brokers
in relation to dealings in the assets of the
Fund.

UNCOMMITTED BANK OVERDRAFT
FACILITIES

The Fund had arranged revolving
uncommitted overdraft facilities with
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (“HSBC"). The
overdraft facility amount is the lesser of
US$25,000,000 or 3% of the net asset
value of the Fund. The overdraft balance
shall bear interest at 0.6% above HSBC's
best lending rate for USD and CNY; 2%
over HSBC's best lending rate for CAD,
GBP, EUR, SGD, JPY, NZD and AUD; 1.625%
below HSBC's best lending rate for HKD.
As at 30th June 2025 and 2024, there
was no outstanding payable under the
overdraft facility.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements of the Fund were

approved by the Trustee and the Manager
on 28th October 2025.
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Z&EEFThe Hongkong and Shanghai
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Investment Portfolio (Unaudited)
BRI AES (REHIT)

As at 30th June 2025

BE_E_HFEANF=1+H

Fair value % of
Country/Territory Investments Holdings ARNE net asset value
ER X RAE HEERE HK$ it BRFEES
LISTED EQUITIES
LR
AUSTRALIA S5 523,850,301 3.65
ANZ Banking Group Ltd 627,018 94,061,194 0.66
BHP Group Ltd 75,324 14,240,777 0.10
Brambles Ltd Ord Npv 52,087 6,275,657 0.04
Cochlear Limited 6,597 10,195,729 0.07
Coles Group Ltd Ord Npv 474,761 50,899,757 0.36
CSL Limited 22,356 27,542,687 0.19
National Australia Bank Ltd 29,989 6,072,395 0.04
Newmont Corp Chess Depositary Interests
(1 Cdi Reps 1 Com Shrs) 42,470 19,076,083 0.13
Resmed Inc Chess Depositary Interests
(10 Cdi Reps 1 Ord Shs) 114,433 23,165,356 0.16
Rio Tinto Limited Ord Npv 156,940 86,494,345 0.60
Stockland 123,357 3,401,509 0.02
Wesfarmers Ltd Ord Npv 189,752 82,731,144 0.58
Westpac Banking Corporation 87,784 15,291,331 0.11
Woodside Energy Group Ltd Ord Npv 694,301 84,402,337 0.59
CHINA H[E 104,189,294 0.72
Contemporary Amperex Technology Co Ltd
Szhk Ord CNY1 88,320 24,412,047 0.17
Midea Group Co Ltd 480,600 38,026,519 0.26
Sany Heavy Industry Co Ltd Ord CNY1 CC 818,700 16,104,782 0.11
Sieyuan Electric Co Ltd-A Ord CNY1 166,500 13,303,532 0.09
Zhejiang Sanhua Co Ltd-A Ord CNY1 Szhk 426,933 12,342,414 0.09
HONG KONG &# 1,606,427,977 11.19
AIA Group Ltd 522,800 36,805,120 0.26
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd Ord
USD.000003125 220,700 24,232,860 0.17
BOC Hong Kong Holdings Ltd Ord Npv 1,136,000 38,737,600 0.27
BYD Co Ltd 69,000 8,452,500 0.06
China Construction Bank H Shs Ord CNY1 31,653,000 250,691,760 1.75
China Mengniu Dairy Co Ltd 245,000 3,944,500 0.03
China Pacific Insurance Gr Co Ltd H Shs 2,600,000 69,810,000 0.49
China Petroleum and Chemical Corporation-H
Ord CNY1 3,818,000 15,691,980 0.11
China Resources Beer Holdings Ord Npv 89,500 2,237,500 0.02
China Resources Land Ltd HKDO.1 1,561,000 41,522,600 0.29
China Tower Corp Ltd Ord CNY1 3,842,000 43,107,240 0.30
CLP Holdings Limited 976,000 64,513,600 0.45
Fortune REIT Npv 22,511,000 108,503,020 0.76
Fuyao Glass Industry Group-H Shrs Ord CNY1 23,200 1,300,360 0.01
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Investment Portfolio (Unaudited) (Continued)

EERIGHRASE (RE®HIT) (82)
As at 30th June 2025
BE_E_HFEANF=1+H

Fair value % of
Country/Territory Investments Holdings ARNE net asset value
ER X RAE HEERE HK$ Bt HARRFEEDL
LISTED EQUITIES (Continued)
LHRRE (4)
HONG KONG (Continued)
& &)
Geely Automobile Holdings Ltd 296,000 4,724,160 0.03
H World Group Limited Ord HKD.00001 503,100 13,357,305 0.09
HK Electric Investments - Ss 25,209,177 144,448,584 1.01
HKT Trust & Hkt Ltd Ord HKD0.0005 3,942,060 46,200,943 0.32
Hong Kong and China Gas Co Ltd 5,551,000 36,581,090 0.25
Hong Kong Exchanges And Clearing Ltd Ord
HKD1 6,300 2,638,440 0.02
HSBC Holdings Plc 463,200 43,980,840 0.31
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China H
Shs Ord CNY1 27,990,000 174,097,800 1.21
Jiangsu Hengrui Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd Ord
CNY1 12,200 656,360 0.00
Kuaishou Technology Ord USD.0000053 211,000 13,356,300 0.09
Lenovo Group Ltd 978,000 9,212,760 0.06
Link REIT 2,271,300 95,167,470 0.66
Meituan Ord HKD.00001 48,730 6,105,869 0.04
Midea Group Co Ltd Ord CNY1 217,400 16,185,430 0.11
PICC Property and Casualty Company Limited
H Shares 4,616,000 70,163,200 0.49
Sands China Ltd Ord USD0.01 814,400 13,307,296 0.09
Shenzhou International Group Ord HKDO.1 374,100 20,874,780 0.15
Tencent Hldgs Ltd HKD0.0002 195,600 98,386,800 0.69
Tencent Music Ent - Class A Ord USD.000083 135,500 10,277,675 0.07
Trip.Com Group Ltd Ord USD0.00125 44,850 20,451,600 0.14
Tsingtao Brewery Co Ltd ‘H’ Shares 234,000 11,992,500 0.08
Xiaomi Corp Ord HKD0.0000025 144,800 8,680,760 0.06
Zhejiang Sanhua Intelligent Controls Co Ltd
Ord CNY1 80,500 2,024,575 0.01
Zijin Mining Group Co Ltd H Shares 1,696,000 34,004,800 0.24
INDIA ENE 938,821,436 6.54
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ord INR5 15,309 10,148,228 0.07
Bank of Baroda Limited 574,578 13,080,058 0.09
Bharat Electronics Ltd 700,017 27,007,914 0.19
Bharti Airtel Ltd Ord INR5 (Demat) (Nse) 194,914 35,853,994 0.25
Britannia Industries Ltd Ord INR1 48,090 25,755,487 0.18
Brookfield India Real Estate REIT Ord Npv 1,718,162 49,527,823 0.34
Cipla Ltd Ord INR2% 64,767 8,927,602 0.06
Coforge Ltd 54,501 9,600,796 0.07
Embassy Office Parks REIT 1,938,070 69,097,416 0.48
Godrej Properties Ltd Ord INRS 46,504 9,973,923 0.07
HCL Technologies Ltd 352,526 55,778,977 0.39
HDFC Bank Limited Ord INR1 288,210 52,801,897 0.37
Hero Motocorp Ltd 32,147 12,469,687 0.09
Hero Motocorp Ltd Ord INR2 78,922 30,609,179 0.21
India Grid Trust 10,780,604 148,690,626 1.04
Infosys Ltd Ord INR5 116,628 17,099,996 0.12
Interglobe Aviation Ltd 80,118 43,829,035 0.30
IRB Infrastructure 3,433,904 19,343,298 0.13
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Investment Portfolio (Unaudited) (Continued)
BERANAT (REHT) (87)

As at 30th June 2025

BE—E_RFENA=+H

Fair value % of
Country/Territory Investments Holdings ARNE net asset value
ER X RATE HEEE HK$ B G2AEFERNL
LISTED EQUITIES (Continued)
LHRRE (4)
INDIA (Continued)
ENEE (48)
Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd Ord INR5 62,950 18,341,909 0.13
Nexus Select Trust REIT 1,332,695 17,059,964 0.12
NHPC Ltd Ord INR10 1,467,264 11,524,738 0.08
NTPC Ltd Ord INR10 3,779,637 115,864,428 0.81
PB Fintech Ltd 43,185 7,201,228 0.05
Power Grid Corp of India Ltd Ord INR10 2,927,138 80,353,454 0.56
Powergrid Infra Invit Dm 3,181,486 26,387,062 0.18
SBI Life Insurance Co Ltd 60,615 10,199,559 0.07
Shriram Finance Ltd Ord INR2 189,999 12,293,158 0.09
INDONESIA EIf2 84,293,075 0.59
Bank Mandiri Persero Tbhk Pt Ord IDR250 25,944,900 61,219,417 0.43
Bank Rakyat Indonesia Persero TBK Ord
IDR50 2,197,400 3,973,728 0.03
Telkom Indonesia Persero TBK Ord IDR50 14,209,200 19,099,930 0.13
MALAYSIA Hs 50,053,170 0.35
Public Bank Bhd Ord MYR1 6,229,000 50,053,170 0.35
NEW ZEALAND #ifg= 41,721,464 0.29
Contact Energy Ltd 365,524 15,676,623 0.11
Spark New Zealand Ltd Ord Npv 2,249,165 26,044,841 0.18
PHILIPPINES JEf25 8,795,568 0.06
Ayala Land Inc 2,337,600 8,795,568 0.06
SINGAPORE 3 620,506,988 4.32
Capitaland Integrated Commercial Trust REIT
Ord Npv 6,322,150 84,555,933 0.59
DBS Group Holdings Ltd Ord Npv 492,470 136,314,606 0.95
Frasers Centrepoint Trust REIT Npv 7,183,074 100,940,336 0.70
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corp Ltd Ord
SGDO0.5 1,443,293 145,086,840 1.01
Singapore Telecommunications Ltd Ord Npv 2,373,000 55,870,255 0.39
United Overseas Bank Ltd 440,500 97,739,018 0.68
SOUTH KOREA Fg# 525,097,803 3.66
Hana Financial Holdings Ord Npv 301,308 151,246,748 1.05
Hanwha Aerospace Co Ltd Ord KRW5000 1,430 7,053,367 0.05
HD Hyundai Electric Co Ltd Ord KRW5000 8,766 25,850,802 0.18
Hyundai Rotem Company Ltd Ord KRW5000 7,415 8,474,973 0.06
Kia Corp Ord KRW5000 95,575 53,868,226 0.38
Samsung Biologics Co Ltd Ord KRW 2500 1,722 9,935,950 0.07
Samsung Electronics Co Ltd Ord KRW100 282,741 98,345,515 0.68
Samsung Fire and Marine Insurance Co Ltd 50,574 127,667,872 0.89
SK Hynix Inc Ord KRW5000 25,114 42,654,350 0.30
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Investment Portfolio (Unaudited) (Continued)

BERIRAES (REFHIT) ()
As at 30th June 2025
BE—E_RFENA=+H

Fair value % of
Country/Territory Investments Holdings ARNE net asset value
ER X RAE HEEE HK$ B G2AEFERNL
LISTED EQUITIES (Continued)
LHRRE (48)
TAIWAN &% 900,951,369 6.27
ASE Technology Holding Co Ltd Ord TWD10 2,227,000 88,271,519 0.61
Asustek Computer Inc 11,000 1,903,649 0.01
CTBC Financial Holding Co Ltd 8,129,000 95,461,208 0.67
Delta Electronics Inc 520,000 57,711,420 0.40
Hon Hai Precision Ind Co Ltd Ord TWD10 3,498,000 151,340,110 1.05
Mediatek Inc 566,000 190,123,066 1.32
President Chain Store Corporation 282,000 19,437,699 0.14
Quanta Computer Inc 296,000 21,834,459 0.15
Taiwan Semiconductor Mfg Co Ltd 922,000 262,630,494 1.83
Wiwynn Corp Ord TWD10 18,000 12,237,745 0.09
THAILAND %E 31,063,222 0.21
Bangkok Dusit Medical Services Pcl Ord THB1 3,679,300 18,479,828 0.13
Land and Houses Pcl Ord Nvdr THB1 15,237,100 12,583,394 0.08
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA %(E 30,307,264 0.21
ICICI Bank Limited Sponsored Adr (1 Adr
Represents 2 Ordinary Shares) 51,882 13,700,687 0.09
Makemytrip Ltd Ord Npv 14,357 11,047,094 0.08
Sea Ltd - Adr (1 Adr Reps 1 Ord Shrs) 4,428 5,559,483 0.04
LISTED INVESTMENT FUNDS
LhREES
HONG KONG &% 129,879,035 0.90
ABF Pan Asia Bond Index ETF 143,000 129,879,035 0.90
SINGAPORE #ilil 144,309,583 1.01
Nikko Asset Management Asia Ltd-Nikko
AMSGD Investment Grade Corporate Bond
ETF* 23,000,000 144,309,583 1.01
UNITED KINGDOM E 436,240,200 3.04
Blackrock Inc - iShares J.P. Morgan EM Local
Govt Bond UCITS ETF* 1,200,000 436,240,200 3.04
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA %(E 301,895,300 2.10
Blackrock Fund Advisors-iShares MSCI Taiwan
ETF 670,000 301,895,300 210
UNLISTED INVESTMENT FUNDS
FELhREEE
HONG KONG &i# 601,854,942 4.19
Schroder Umbrella Fund II - Schroder China
Asset Income Fund - USD Class I Acc 5,041,984 601,854,942 4.19
LUXEMBOURG M7 1,106,213,906 7.70
Schroder International Selection Fund
- Asian Equity Yield USD Class I Acc 763,203 387,759,621 2.70
Schroder Investment Management Europe SA
- Schroder Investment Fund - Flexible Cat
Bond 222,804 325,285,673 2.26
Schroder Investment Management Europe SA
- Schroder GAIA Cat Bond-I USD* 21,742 393,168,612 2.74
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BERANAT (REHT) (87)

As at 30th June 2025

BE—E_RFENA=+H

Fair value % of
Currency Investments Holdings ARMNE net asset value
i) RAE HEEE HK$ B G2AFEEDL
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES
LSS
AUSTRALIAN DOLLAR 5% 17,916,660 0.13
Scentre Group Trst 1 Ser Mtn (Reg) Var
10Sep2054 3,410,000 17,916,660 0.13
EURO Byt 49,886,955 0.35
Fortune Star Bvi Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 3.95%
020ct2026 3,500,000 31,283,628 0.22
Indonesia (Rep of) (Reg) 3.65% 10Sep2032 2,000,000 18,603,327 0.13
RENMINBI AR 52,006,008 0.36
Far East Horizon Ltd Ser Emtn 4.25%
14Feb2028 18,850,000 20,786,261 0.14
Huafa 2024 Co (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 13,000,000 14,548,345 0.10
Swire Propert Mtn Fin Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
3.1% 03Sep2027 15,000,000 16,671,402 0.12
SINGAPORE DOLLAR #ilnic 126,766,293 0.88
AIA Group Ltd Ser Emtn 3.58% 11)Jun2035 4,750,000 29,861,077 0.21
Barclays Plc Var Perp 31Dec2049 6,000,000 37,368,589 0.26
HSBC Holdings Plc Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp 31Dec2049 2,000,000 12,605,350 0.09
Huarong Finance 2017 Co (Reg) (Reg S) 3.8%
07Nov2025 5,000,000 30,736,049 0.21
Prudential Funding Asia Ser Emtn (Reg) 3.8%
22May2035 2,500,000 16,195,228 0.11
UNITED STATES DOLLAR 37T 5,489,515,450 38.22
AAC Technologies Holding (Reg) (Reg S)
2.625% 02Jun2026 8,000,000 61,500,637 0.43
AAC Technologies Holding (Reg) (Reg S) 3.75%
02Jun2031 4,500,000 32,518,464 0.23
AIA Group Ltd Ser Gmtn (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 4,000,000 30,834,564 0.22
AIA Group Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) 5.4%
30Sep2054 6,000,000 44,159,406 0.31
Alibaba Group Holding (Reg) 4% 06Dec2037 6,000,000 41,537,655 0.29
Alibaba Group Holding 2.7% 09Feb2041 2,900,000 15,889,822 0.11
Alibaba Group Holding 3.15% 09Feb2051 2,000,000 10,182,416 0.07
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd (Reg) 2.7%
09Feb2041 1,100,000 6,027,174 0.04
Alibaba Group Holding Ser Regs (Reg) 5.625%
26Nov2054 1,000,000 7,703,393 0.05
Alibaba Group Holding Ser Regs 5.25%
26May2035 3,000,000 23,830,645 0.16
Asahi Mutual Life Insura (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 10,498,000 78,319,774 0.54
Aust & NZ Banking Group Ser Regs (Reg S)
6.742% 08Dec2032 3,000,000 25,668,994 0.18
Aust & Nz Banking Group Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
30Sep2035 4,000,000 30,773,837 0.21
Bangkok Bank PCL Var 23Sep2036 2,500,000 17,480,301 0.12

MEET NS ERGEEE 132



Investment Portfolio (Unaudited) (Continued)
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BE—E_RFENA=+H

Fair value % of
Currency Investments Holdings ARMNE net asset value
i) RAE HEEE HK$ B GERFEEHL
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
LHESIES ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
7T (8)
Bangkok Bank PCL/HK Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
Perp 31Dec2049 6,000,000 46,978,576 0.33
Bank Negara Indonesia (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 13,200,000 99,038,079 0.69
Bank of East Asia Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 15Mar2027 1,100,000 8,733,715 0.06
Bank of East Asia Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 22Apr2032 1,700,000 13,152,832 0.09
BP Capital Markets Plc (Reg) Var Perp
31Dec2049 5,000,000 39,283,520 0.27
BP Capital Markets Plc Var Perp 31Dec2049 1,250,000 10,055,448 0.07
CA Magnum Holdings Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
5.375% 310ct2026 4,500,000 35,154,062 0.25
CAS Capital No1 Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 5,362,000 41,583,253 0.29
Champion MTN Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
2.95% 15Jun2030 3,000,000 19,827,487 0.14
Champion Path Holdings (Reg) (Reg S) 4.5%
27Jan2026 6,000,000 46,802,422 0.33
China Cinda 2020 I Mngmn Ser Emtn (Reg)
(Reg S) 5.75% 28May2029 2,679,000 21,779,906 0.15
China Cinda Fin 2014 Ii (Reg) (Reg S) 5.2%
05Dec2029 4,000,000 31,608,212 0.22
China Honggiao Group 7.05% 10Jan2028 1,949,000 15,643,158 0.11
China Honggiao Group Ltd 6.925% 29Nov2028 1,758,000 13,975,302 0.10
China Modern Dairy Holdings (Reg) (Reg S)
2.125% 14Jul2026 3,260,000 24,881,349 0.17
China Oil & Gas Group (Reg) (Reg S) 4.7%
30Jun2026 3,149,000 24,289,714 0.17
Clean Renewable Power Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.25% 25Mar2027 1,000,000 6,135,341 0.04
CN Ping An Insur Oversea Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 6.125% 16May2034 800,000 6,655,296 0.05
CNAC HK Finbridge Co Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 3%
22Sep2030 1,000,000 7,235,306 0.05
CNAC HK Finbridge Co Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 4.75%
19Jun2049 2,500,000 17,253,476 0.12
Commonwealth Bank Aust Ser Regs (Reg S)
4.316% 10Jan2048 4,000,000 25,332,704 0.18
Dah Sing Bank Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) Var
02Nov2031 1,767,000 13,429,049 0.09
Dai-Ichi Life Holdings Ser Regs Var Perp
31Dec2049 8,673,000 68,871,043 0.48
Diamond Ii Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) 7.95%
28Jul2026 5,134,000 40,664,536 0.28
Elect Global Inv Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 4.85% Perp
31Dec2049 4,667,000 23,723,060 0.17
Elect Global Inv Ltd Var Perp 31Dec2049 2,034,000 15,445,661 0.1
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BE—E_RFENA=+H

Fair value % of
Currency Investments Holdings ARMNE net asset value
i) RAE HEEE HK$ B GERFEEHL
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
LHESIES ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
7T (8)
ENN Clean Energy Ser Regs (Reg S) 3.375%
12May2026 2,586,000 20,016,944 0.14
Far East Horizon Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
5.875% 05Mar2028 5,224,000 40,869,607 0.28
Far East Horizon Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
6.625% 16Apr2027 5,797,000 46,218,512 0.32
Fec Finance Ltd (Reg S) Var Perp 31Dec2049 2,550,000 11,343,727 0.08
Fortune Star Bvi Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 5%
18May2026 2,000,000 15,432,197 0.11
Fortune Star Bvi Ltd 8.5% 19May2028 776,000 6,133,096 0.04
Fukoku Mutual Life Insur (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 9,018,000 73,754,164 0.51
FWD Group Holdings Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 7.635% 02Jul2031 5,500,000 47,444,079 0.33
FWD Group Holdings Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 8.4% 05Apr2029 4,500,000 36,274,006 0.25
FWD Group Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg S) Var Perp
29Dec2049 2,050,000 16,172,625 0.11
GC Treasury Centre Co Ser Regs (Reg S) 2.98%
18Mar2031 2,000,000 13,731,479 0.10
Globe Telecom Inc (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 5,000,000 38,717,750 0.27
GOHL Capital Ltd 4.25% 24Jan2027 4,000,000 30,918,434 0.22
Great Wall Intl V (Reg) (Reg S) 2.375%
18Aug2030 2,000,000 13,841,450 0.10
Greenko Dutch Bv Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
3.85% 29Mar2026 4,381,000 29,742,349 0.21
Haidilao International Holding (Reg) (Reg S)
2.15% 14Jan2026 7,200,000 55,719,564 0.39
Hana Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 2,000,000 15,298,433 0.11
Hanwha Life Insurance Var 24Jun2055 1,298,000 10,506,391 0.07
Health and Happiness H&H (Reg) 9.125%
24Jul2028 3,217,000 25,711,901 0.18
HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg S)
5.45% 220ct2026 250,000 1,957,692 0.01
HSBC Holdings Plc (Reg) Var 13Nov2034 5,000,000 43,913,332 0.31
HSBC Holdings Plc Ser * Var Perp 31Dec2049 2,500,000 19,748,265 0.14
HSBC Holdings Plc Var 03Nov2033 4,000,000 36,248,804 0.25
Huarong Finance 2017 Co Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 4.25% 07Nov2027 3,000,000 23,165,428 0.16
Huarong Finance II Ser Emtn (Reg) (Regs)
4.875% 22Nov2026 4,000,000 31,463,993 0.22
Hyundai Capital America Ser Regs Frn
27Mar2030 1,073,000 8,402,013 0.06
India Clean Energy Hldg Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.5% 18Apr2027 8,000,000 60,716,736 0.42
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Fair value % of
Currency Investments Holdings ARMNE net asset value
i) RAE HEEE HK$ B GERFEEHL
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
LHESIES ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
7T (8)
India Green Power Hold Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4% 22Feb2027 5,000,000 33,102,065 0.23
Iqgiyi Inc 6.5% Conv 15Mar2028 2,800,000 21,844,449 0.15
JSW Hydro Energy Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.125% 18May2031 6,500,000 33,377,133 0.23
Kasikornbank Pcl HK Ser Emtn (Reg S) Var
Perp 31Dec2049 5,500,000 41,652,153 0.29
Krakatau Posco Pt (Reg) (Reg S) 6.375%
11Jun2027 3,500,000 27,702,287 0.19
Krung Thai Bank/Cayman (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 5,000,000 38,663,213 0.27
Lenovo Group Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) 3.421%
02Nov2030 4,000,000 29,268,427 0.20
Lgenergysolution Ser Regs Frn 02Apr2030 3,431,000 26,953,766 0.19
Li & Fung Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) 4.5%
18Aug2025 2,608,000 20,455,142 0.14
Li & Fung Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) 5.25%
Perp 29Dec2049 1,093,000 4,102,036 0.03
LLPL Capital Pte Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
6.875% 04Feb2039 5,800,000 33,788,490 0.24
Macquarie Bank Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
03Mar2036 6,050,000 42,156,528 0.29
Macquarie Group Li Frn Perp 31Dec2049 4,000,000 31,572,731 0.22
MC Brazil Dwnstrm Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
7.25% 30Jun2031 894,000 5,012,519 0.04
Mega Advance Investments Ltd SER Regs
6.375 PCT 12/05/2041 1,492,000 12,781,571 0.09
Meiji Yasuda Life Insura Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
11Sep2054 12,500,000 96,731,429 0.67
Meituan Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 3.05%
280ct2030 2,600,000 18,837,440 0.13
Melco Resorts Finance Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
5.25% 26Apr2026 1,628,000 12,768,937 0.09
Melco Resorts Finance Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
5.375% 04Dec2029 5,650,000 41,643,072 0.29
Melco Resorts Finance Ser Regs (Regs) 5.75%
21Jul2028 1,500,000 11,533,612 0.08
Mgm China Holdings Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 5.875% 15May2026 1,500,000 11,789,919 0.08
Minejesa Capital Bv Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.625% 10Aug2030 5,000,000 30,629,772 0.21
Minor International Pcl (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 7,195,000 55,400,556 0.39
Mongolian Mining Corp Ser Regs 8.44%
03Apr2030 2,300,000 16,943,841 0.12
MTR Corp Ci Ltd Ser Emtn Var Perp 31Dec2049 3,562,000 28,282,826 0.20
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Fair value % of
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i) RAE HEEE HK$ B GERFEEHL
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
LHESIES ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
7T (8)
Muang Thai Life Assuranc (Reg) (Reg S) Var
27)an2037 5,776,000 44,438,803 0.31
Muthoot Finance Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) 7.125%
14Feb2028 3,600,000 28,792,093 0.20
Nan Fung Treasury III (Reg) (Reg S) 5% Perp
31Dec2049 2,829,000 15,349,484 0.11
Nanyang Commercial Bank (Reg) (Reg S) Var
06Aug2034 3,500,000 27,972,861 0.20
Network I2I Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 2,000,000 15,541,587 0.11
Nippon Life Insurance Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
13Sep2053 1,500,000 12,119,419 0.08
Periama Holdings Llc/De (Reg) (Reg S) 5.95%
19Apr2026 5,000,000 39,261,539 0.27
Pertamina Persero Ser (Regs) 6.45%
30May2044 12,000,000 96,800,203 0.67
Pertamina Persero Ser Regs 5.625%
20May2043 5,000,000 37,147,162 0.26
Pertamina Ser Regs 6.5Pct 27May2041 3,000,000 24,436,010 0.17
Perusahaan Listrik Negar 5.25% 15May2047 5,000,000 34,032,262 0.24
Perusahaan Listrik Negar Ser Regs (Reg S) 4%
30Jun2050 2,906,000 16,081,960 0.11
Perusahaan Listrik Negar Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 4.875% 17Jul2049 2,028,000 12,961,360 0.09
Perusahaan Penerbit Sbsn Ser Regs 5.65%
25Nov2054 4,000,000 30,908,245 0.21
Philippines (Rep of) (Reg) 5.5% 17Jan2048 1,000,000 7,652,109 0.05
Philippines (Rep of) (Reg) 5.95% 130ct2047 2,300,000 18,674,449 0.13
Prosus Nv Ser Regs (Reg S) 4.987% 19)an2052 6,500,000 39,364,435 0.27
Prosus Nv Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 3.68%
21Jan2030 6,000,000 44,417,985 0.31
Prosus Nv Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 3.832%
08Feb2051 4,500,000 22,727,928 0.16
Prudential Funding (Asia) Plc (Reg) (Reg S) Var
03Nov2033 9,000,000 66,153,657 0.46
PT Pertamina (Persero) Ser Regs (Reg S) 4.7%
30Jul2049 4,800,000 30,621,858 0.21
Rakuten Group Inc Ser Regs (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 2,500,000 19,300,304 0.13
Rakuten Group Inc Ser Regs (Reg) Var Perp
31Dec2049 1,418,000 10,914,212 0.08
Reliance Industries 6.25% 190ct2040 1,300,000 10,973,186 0.08
Reliance Industries Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
3.625% 12Jan2052 6,079,000 32,897,508 0.23
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LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
LRSS (8)
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
7T (8)
Reliance Industries Ltd Ser Regs 4.875%
10Feb2045 7,000,000 48,222,939 0.34
Renew Power Pvt Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
5.875% 05Mar2027 2,091,000 16,302,519 0.11
Renew Power Subsidiar Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.5% 14Jul2028 1,973,000 14,711,022 0.10
Resorts World/Rwlv Cap Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.625% 16Apr2029 2,500,000 17,399,878 0.12
Rlgh Finance Bermuda Ltd 6.75% 02Jul2035 3,223,000 25,534,580 0.18
Sands China Ltd Ser Wi (Reg) 3.1% 08Mar2029 1,250,000 9,031,023 0.06
Sands China Ltd Ser Wi (Reg) 3.8% 08Jan2026 3,035,000 23,716,300 0.17
Sands China Ltd Ser Wi (Reg) 4.375%
18Jun2030 2,000,000 15,017,270 0.10
Sands China Ltd Ser Wi (Reg) 5.4% 08Aug2028 6,500,000 51,437,384 0.36
Shinhan Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 5.75%
15Apr2034 8,500,000 68,467,090 0.48
Shinhan Financial Group Ser Regs (Reg)(Reg S)
Var Perp 31Dec2049 5,000,000 38,285,412 0.27
Shriram Finance Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) 6.15%
03Apr2028 8,774,000 69,117,723 0.48
SK Battery America Inc (Reg) (Reg S) 2.125%
26Jan2026 1,500,000 11,523,103 0.08
SK Hynix Inc Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 2.375%
19Jan2031 1,000,000 6,941,241 0.05
Standard Chartered Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 8% 30May2031 5,000,000 44,312,053 0.31
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg S)
6.296% 06Jul2034 4,980,000 41,640,906 0.29
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
11Jan2035 3,348,000 27,688,376 0.19
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 12Jan2033 500,000 3,565,023 0.03
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 18Feb2036 5,000,000 35,408,504 0.25
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs Var Perp
31Dec2049 3,000,000 23,998,769 0.17
Star Energy Co Issue Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.85% 140ct2038 3,052,000 22,797,401 0.16
Star Energy Geothermal Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
6.75% 24Apr2033 2,000,000 10,953,663 0.08
Studio City Finance Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
6.5% 15Jan2028 5,800,000 44,964,882 0.31
Studio City Finance Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Regs)
5% 15)an2029 3,000,000 21,625,753 0.15
Sumitomo Life Insur Ser Regs (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 12,700,000 98,226,592 0.68
Tencent Holdings Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Regs)
3.925% 19Jan2038 5,500,000 38,394,901 0.27
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Fair value % of
Currency Investments Holdings ARMNE net asset value
i) RAE HEEE HK$ B GERFEEHL
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
LHESIES ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
7T (8)
Tencent Music Ent Grp (Reg) 2% 03Sep2030 3,000,000 20,834,920 0.15
Thai Oil Pcl (Regs) 4.875% 23Jan2043 1,467,000 9,393,773 0.07
Tongyanglifeinsuranceco Var 07May2035 5,000,000 40,376,710 0.28
Treasury Bill 0% 04Sep2025 18,000,000 140,216,088 0.98
Treasury Bill 21Aug2025 15,000,000 117,031,313 0.81
Treasury Bill 28Nov2025 12,000,000 92,582,492 0.64
US Treasury Bill 0% 10Jul2025 30,000,000 235,253,549 1.64
US Treasury Bills 0% 230ct2025 24,500,000 189,780,829 1.32
Varanasi Aura Nh-2 Toll Ser Regs 5.9%
28Feb2034 1,445,000 11,628,266 0.08
Weibo Corp (Reg) 3.375% 08Jul2030 6,500,000 47,650,104 0.33
Wens Foodstuff Group (Reg) (Reg S) 2.349%
290ct2025 3,200,000 24,868,423 0.17
Westpac Banking Corp (Reg) Var Perp
29Dec2049 8,000,000 62,285,228 0.43
Westpac Banking Corp Ser Gmtn (Reg) 5.618%
20Nov2035 5,954,000 47,071,401 0.33
Woori Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 12,370,000 98,809,995 0.69
Wynn Macau Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 5.5%
010ct2027 1,000,000 7,836,098 0.05
Wynn Macau Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 5.5%
15Jan2026 9,000,000 70,724,960 0.49
Yan Gang Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 1.9% 23Mar2026 1,000,000 7,694,440 0.05
Zhongsheng Group (Reg) (Reg S) 5.98%
30Jan2028 6,700,000 52,235,461 0.36
UNLISTED DEBT SECURITIES
FEEHRSIES
UNITED STATES DOLLAR 5T 175,273,082 1.23
Aust & Nz Banking Group Ser Regs Var
18Jun2036 3,200,000 25,508,983 0.18
Melco Resorts Finance Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
5.625% 17Jul2027 1,400,000 10,977,614 0.08
US Treasury Bills 0% 04Dec2025 18,000,000 138,786,485 0.97
TOTAL INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
BRAUAAMNET 14,097,836,345 98.17
OTHER NET ASSETS
Hith g & r=E 262,537,676 1.83
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS AS AT 30TH JUNE 2025
BE_T_AFSAZHHAESE 14,360,374,021 100.00
TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS, AT COST
BRAREROTE TRMUMAIT 12,880,250,749
Note: Investments are accounted for on a trade date basis.
A RATURZE AR
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Investment Portfolio Movements (Unaudited)
AEEE D (REHIT)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECAEAATHAILEE

Holdings
e E]
Country/Territory Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
ER X RAE 20 L I8R5y
LISTED EQUITIES
LR
AUSTRALIA 2
ANZ Banking Group Ltd - 236,854 -
BHP Group Ltd 51,567 1,101,475 -
Brambles Ltd Ord Npv - 97,251 -
Cochlear Limited - 10,211 -
Coles Group Ltd Ord Npv 76,017 217,744 -
CSL Limited - 26,548 -
Incitec Pivot Ltd Ord Npv - 1,141,842 -
James Hardie Industries SE Receipt Npv - 52,005 -
National Australia Bank Ltd - 73,163 -
Newmont Corp Chess Depositary Interests (1
Cdi Reps 1 Com Shrs) - 67,026 -
Resmed Inc Chess Depositary Interests (10 Cdi
Reps 1 Ord Shs) - 189,045 -
Rio Tinto Limited Ord Npv 14,985 179,851 -
Stockland 123,357 - -
Wesfarmers Ltd Ord Npv 44,795 227,392 -
Westpac Banking Corporation 95,407 7,623 -
Woodside Energy Group Ltd Ord Npv - 366,438 -
CHINA F[E
Contemporary Amperex Technology Co Ltd
Szhk Ord CNY1 - 35,300 -
Fu Jian Anjoy Foods Co Ltd CC Ord CNY1 52,100 52,100 -
LB Group Co Ltd-A Szhk Ord CNY1 - 1,958,900 -
Midea Group Co Ltd - 182,000 -
Sany Heavy Industry Co Ltd Ord CNY1 CC - 571,500 -
Sieyuan Electric Co Ltd-A Ord CNY1 166,500 - -
Zhejiang Sanhua Co Ltd-A Ord CNY1 Szhk - 553,500 -
HONG KONG &#
AIA Group Ltd 54,400 275,800 -
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd Ord
USD.000003125 43,200 205,500 -
BOC Hong Kong Holdings Ltd Ord Npv - 1,142,000 -
BYD Co Ltd 55,000 72,500 69,000
China Construction Bank H Shs Ord CNY1 2,830,000 - -
China Mengniu Dairy Co Ltd - 1,431,000 -
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd H Shs Ord CNY1 99,500 99,500 -
China Pacific Insurance Gr Co Ltd H Shs - 1,329,200 -
China Petroleum and Chemical Corporation-H
Ord CNY1 - 4,082,000 -
China Resources Beer Holdings Ord Npv 194,000 104,500 -
China Resources Land Ltd HKDO.1 - 479,000 -
China Tower Corp Ltd Ord CNY1 3,842,000 - -
CLP Holdings Limited 1,116,500 140,500 -
Fortune REIT Npv - 4,987,000 -
Fuyao Glass Industry Group-H Shrs Ord CNY1 118,000 223,600 -
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IRAA ST (REHETT) (82)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
e E]
Country/Territory Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
ER X RAETE 0 L QL ki
LISTED EQUITIES (Continued)
LHRRE (4)
HONG KONG (Continued)
& (5)
Geely Automobile Holdings Ltd 296,000 - -
Guangdong Investment Ltd Ord HKDO0.5 - 3,764,000 -
H World Group Limited Ord HKD.00001 - 705,000 -
HK Electric Investments - Ss - 5,034,000 -
HKT Trust & Hkt Ltd Ord HKD0.0005 - 2,635,000 -
Hong Kong and China Gas Co Ltd 9,421,000 3,870,000 -
Hong Kong Exchanges And Clearing Ltd Ord
HKD1 6,300 - -
HSBC Holdings Plc - 133,200 -
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China H
Shs Ord CNY1 4,389,000 8,447,000 -
Jiangsu Hengrui Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd Ord
CNY1 12,200 - -
Kuaishou Technology Ord USD.0000053 211,000 - -
Lenovo Group Ltd 978,000 - -
Li Ning Co Ltd Ord HKDO.1 - 883,500 -
Link REIT 1,332,200 - -
Meituan Ord HKD.00001 132,700 279,600 -
Midea Group Co Ltd Ord CNY1 217,400 - -
PICC Property and Casualty Company Limited
H Shares 4,616,000 - -
Samsonite International Ord USDO0.01 - 856,800 -
Sands China Ltd Ord USDO0.01 294,400 618,000 -
Shenzhou International Group Ord HKDO.1 374,100 - -
Techtronic Industries Co Ltd - 251,500 -
Tencent Hldgs Ltd HKD0.0002 - 250,300 -
Tencent Music Ent - Class A Ord USD.000083 135,500 - -
Trip.Com Group Ltd Ord USD0.00125 51,600 6,750 -
Tsingtao Brewery Co Ltd ‘H’ Shares 234,000 - -
Xiaomi Corp Ord HKD0.0000025 144,800 - -
Zhejiang Sanhua Intelligent Controls Co Ltd
Ord CNY1 80,500 - -
Zijin Mining Group Co Ltd H Shares - 2,942,000 -
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Holdings
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ER X RAE BN L LIRS

LISTED EQUITIES (Continued)

LHRRE (4)

INDIA EPE
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ord INR5 21,022 5713 -
Bank of Baroda Limited 574,578 - -
Bharat Electronics Ltd - 853,352 -
Bharti Airtel Ltd Ord INR5 (Demat) (Nse) 22,395 152,017 -
Britannia Industries Ltd Ord INR1 - 27,065 -
Cipla Ltd Ord INR2% - 265,764 -
Coforge Ltd 54,501 - -
Coforge Ltd Ord INR10 8,239 8,239 -
Dabur India Ltd Ord INR1 - 413,363 -
Embassy Office Parks REIT 1,133,902 - -
Godrej Properties Ltd Ord INR5 46,504 - -
HCL Technologies Ltd 42,406 165,136 -
HDFC Bank Limited Ord INR1 14,252 141,901 -
Hero Motocorp Ltd 32,147 - -
Hero Motocorp Ltd Ord INR2 31,759 - -
India Grid Trust - 1,580,216 -
Indusind Bank Ltd Ord INR10 - 317,972 -
Infosys Ltd Ord INR5 127,008 68,041 -
Interglobe Aviation Ltd - 21,438 -
Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd Ord INR5 6,269 55,256 -
Nexus Select Trust REIT 600,328 - -
NHPC Ltd Ord INR10 1,467,264 - -
NTPC Ltd Ord INR10 - 1,104,915 -
PB Fintech Ltd 43,185 - -
Power Grid Corp of India Ltd Ord INR10 - 994,101 -
Reliance Industries Ltd Ord INR10 - 258,791 81,187
SBI Life Insurance Co Ltd - 235,818 -
Shriram Finance Ltd Ord INR2 189,999 - -
Tata Motors Ltd Ord INR2 - 70,015 -

INDONESIA ENIfE
Bank Mandiri Persero Tbk Pt Ord IDR250 - 14,912,600 -
Bank Negara Indonesia Ord IDR7500 3,770,400 3,770,400 -
Bank Rakyat Indonesia Persero TBK Ord

IDR50 10,837,600 8,640,200 -

Telkom Indonesia Persero TBK Ord IDR50 39,669,300 25,460,100 -
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Holdings
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Country/Territory Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits

EZR X RAETE 0 L QL ki

LISTED EQUITIES (Continued)

LEHRE (450)

JAPAN B7s
ABC-Mart Inc 4,500 32,700 -
AGC Inc 200 15,700 -
Aica Kogyo Co Ltd Ord Npv 1,700 24,200 -
Air Water Inc 1,800 53,500 -
Aisin Corp 27,000 40,200 -
Anritsu Corp 500 45,800 -
Asahi Group Holdings Limited Ord Npv 39,400 58,800 -
Bridgestone Corp Ord Npv 100 10,800 -
Brother Industries Ltd Ord Npv 19,100 19,100 -
C Uyemura & Co Ltd Ord Npv 4,000 12,900 -
DTS Corporation Ord Npv 100 9,600 -
Espec Corp Ord JPY 400 31,200 -
EXEO Group Inc 500 43,100 -
Fuji Machine Manufacturing Co Ord JPY 500 40,100 -
Hanwa Co Ltd Npv 200 17,100 -
Hi-Lex Corp Ord JPY Npv 200 17,400 -
Inaba Denki Sangyo Co Ltd Ord JPY Npv 1,500 18,900 -
Inabata & Co Ltd Ord JPY Npv 300 25,400 -
Itochu Corp Ord Npv 400 30,800 -
Japan Post Holdings Co Ltd Ord Npv 700 59,500 -
Krosaki Harima Corp Ord Npv 400 34,400 -
Meitec Corp Ord Npv 400 31,500 -
Mitsubishi Chemical Group Corporation Ord

Npv 1,700 140,200 -

Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Company Inc 17,800 36,100 -
Mitsubishi Research Institut Ord Npv 100 9,600 -
Nichias Corp Ord JPY 1,400 36,100 -
Nichiha Corp Ord Npv 300 23,100 -
Nippon Gas Co Ltd Ord Npv 4,700 43,800 -
Nippon Telegraph and Telephone Corp 10,900 870,100 -
Nishio Rent All Co Ltd Ord Npv 200 19,100 -
Nissan Chemical Corp Ord Npv 16,100 16,100 -
Nisshin Group Holdings Co Ltd 500 42,000 -
Nitto Denko Corporation 45,000 51,500 -
Obara Group Inc Ord Npv 200 15,800 -
Okamura Corp Ord Npv 400 33,000 -
Okinawa Cellular Telephone Co Ord Npv 300 23,600 -
Open Up Group Inc Ord Npv 4,800 29,600 -
Orix Corporation 6,600 48,500 -
Otsuka Corporation Npv 2,500 35,900 -
San-A Co Ltd Ord Npv 20,100 20,100 -
Santen Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 500 38,200 -
Shibuya Kogyo Co Ltd Ord Npv 17,500 17,500 -
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Holdings
e E]
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ER X RAETE 0 L QL ki
LISTED EQUITIES (Continued)
LHRRE (4)
JAPAN (Continued)
B (40
Shikoku Kasei Holdings Corp Ord 0 30,400 30,400 -
Shin-Etsu Chemical Company Limited Com
Npv 4,800 4,800 -
Sra Holdings Ord Npv 200 15,900 -
Starts Corp Inc Ord JPY Npv 2,500 31,600 -
Sumitomo Forestry Co Ltd Ord Npv 2,700 21,100 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group Inc Ord Npv 68,500 108,100 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Group Ord Npv 40,700 40,700 -
Suzuki Motor Corporation Ord Npv 55,500 55,500 -
T and D Holdings Inc 33,400 57,100 -
Taihei Dengyo Kaisha Ltd Ord Npv 7,900 7,900 -
Taiyo Yuden Co Ltd 300 23,400 -
Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 200 20,500 -
Takeuchi Mfg Co Ltd 100 12,200 -
Takuma Co Ltd 500 44,600 -
The Yokohama Rubber Company Limited Ord
Npv 27,100 27,100 -
Tocalo Co Ltd Ord Npv 42,000 42,000 -
Tokio Marine Holdings Inc Ord Npv 500 45,200 -
Tokyo Metro Co Ltd Ord Npv 9,600 9,600 -
Topre Corp Ord Npv 21,600 21,600 -
Toyota Motor Corp 900 78,600 -
Ulvac Inc Ord Npv 13,100 13,100 -
Yamaha Motor Company Limited Ord Npv 700 60,100 -
MALAYSIA B3EFEIE
Public Bank Bhd Ord MYR1 8,979,300 2,750,300 -
NEW ZEALAND #f8=
Contact Energy Ltd - 554,087 -
Spark New Zealand Ltd Ord Npv - 407,884 -
PHILIPPINES JEf#R
Ayala Land Inc - 3,129,300 -
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CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
e E]
Country/Territory Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
ER X RAETE 0 L QL ki
LISTED EQUITIES (Continued)
LHRRE (4)
SINGAPORE #ifini
Capitaland Integrated Commercial Trust REIT
Ord Npv 494,865 3,009,600 -
Capland Intcom T Rts (Sep2024) 494,865 494,865 -
Frasers Centrepoint Trust REIT Npv 2,796,320 2,005,000 -
Frasers Centrepoint Trust Rights (Apr2025) 452,620 452,620 -
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corp Ltd Ord
SGDO0.5 202,800 438,900 -
Singapore Telecommunications Ltd Ord Npv 1,691,000 513,800 -
United Overseas Bank Ltd 102,600 92,400 -
SOUTH KOREA &%
Hana Financial Holdings Ord Npv - 95,203 -
Hanwha Aerospace Co Ltd Ord KRW5000 1,430 - -
HD Hyundai Electric Co Ltd Ord KRW5000 10,404 1,638 -
Hyundai Motor Company Limited - 4,940 -
Hyundai Rotem Company Ltd Ord KRW5000 9,681 2,266 -
Kia Corp Ord KRW5000 - 28,188 -
LG Chemical Ord KRW5000 - 1,657 -
LG H&H Co Ltd Ord KRW5000 - 2,220 -
Lotte REIT Co Ltd Ord Npv - 697,332 -
Lotte Reit Co Ltd Rts Nov2024 92,620 92,620 -
Samsung Biologics Co Ltd Ord KRW 2500 1,722 - -
Samsung Electronics Co Ltd Ord KRW100 95,259 203,661 -
Samsung Fire and Marine Insurance Co Ltd 6,741 - -
SK Hynix Inc Ord KRW5000 - 26,051 -
SK Telecom Co Ltd - 79,841 -
TAIWAN &i%
ASE Technology Holding Co Ltd Ord TWD10 1,217,000 - -
Asustek Computer Inc 125,000 114,000 -
CTBC Financial Holding Co Ltd 1,890,000 3,636,000 -
Delta Electronics Inc 116,000 211,000 -
Hon Hai Precision Ind Co Ltd Ord TWD10 276,000 1,072,000 -
Mediatek Inc 60,000 374,000 -
Quanta Computer Inc 296,000 - -
Taiwan Semiconductor Mfg Co Ltd - 1,946,000 -
Wiwynn Corp Ord TWD10 20,000 2,000 -
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CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
HEEE
Country/Territory Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
ER X RAE BN L LIRS
LISTED EQUITIES (Continued)
LHRRE (4)
THAILAND ZE
Bangkok Bank Pcl Ord THB10 - 484,900 -
Bangkok Dusit Medical Services Pcl Ord THB1 - 4,059,100 -
Land and Houses Pcl Ord Nvdr THB1 - 4,573,200 -
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA %(E
ICICI Bank Limited Sponsored Adr (1 Adr
Represents 2 Ordinary Shares) - 152,969 -
Makemytrip Ltd Ord Npv - 4,742 -
Sea Ltd - Adr (1 Adr Reps 1 Ord Shrs) 4,428 - -
LISTED INVESTMENT FUNDS
LhREES
HONG KONG &i#
ABF Pan Asia Bond Index ETF 143,000 - -
SINGAPORE #ifini
Nikko Asset Management Asia Ltd-Nikko
AMSGD Investment Grade Corporate Bond
ETF 23,000,000 - -
UNITED KINGDOM Z[E
Blackrock Asset Management Ireland Ltd -
iShares Gold Producers UCITS ETF 1,580,000 1,580,000 -
Blackrock Inc - iShares J.P. Morgan EM Local
Govt Bond UCITS ETF 1,200,000 - -
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA %(E
Blackrock Fund Advisors-iShares MSCI Taiwan
ETF 670,000 - -
Blackrock Fund Advisors-iShares
Semiconductor ETF - 89,000 -
Invesco Investment Management Ltd-Invesco
Markets Plc ETF 200,000 630,000 -
UNLISTED INVESTMENT FUNDS
FELHREEE
HONG KONG &i#
Schroder Umbrella Fund II - Schroder China
Asset Income Fund - USD Class I Acc - 2,283,127 -
LUXEMBOURG S#E
Schroder International Selection Fund - Asian
Equity Yield USD Class I Acc - 749,276 -
Schroder Investment Management Europe Sa
- Schroder Investment Fund - Flexible Cat
Bond 222,804 - -
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AL TD) (REHIT) (82)

For the Year ended 30th June 2025

ZECRFAA=FHILFE

Holdings
HEEE
Currency Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
5 RAE BN L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES
LSS
AUSTRALIAN DOLLAR 855
Ausnet Services Holdings Ser Mtn Var
12Feb2055 3,340,000 3,340,000 -
Scentre Group Trst 1 Ser Mtn (Reg) Var
10Sep2054 3,410,000 - -
EURO KX7T
Fortune Star Bvi Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 3.95%
020ct2026 3,500,000 - -
Hong Kong Ser Gmtn 3.125% 10Jun2033 2,631,000 2,631,000 -
Indonesia (Rep of) (Reg) 3.65% 10Sep2032 2,000,000 - -
Republic of Korea 2.875% 03Jul2032 1,540,000 1,540,000 -
HONG KONG DOLLAR #7T
Link Cb Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 4.5% Conv
12Dec2027 19,000,000 19,000,000 -
RENMINBI AR
Far East Horizon Ltd Ser Emtn 4.25%
14Feb2028 30,700,000 11,850,000 -
Huafa 2024 Co (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 21,000,000 8,000,000 -
Swire Propert Mtn Fin Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
3.1% 03Sep2027 15,000,000 - -
SINGAPORE DOLLAR #fili5T
AIA Group Ltd Ser Emtn 3.58% 11Jun2035 4,750,000 - -
Barclays Plc Var Perp 31Dec2049 10,500,000 4,500,000 -
HSBC Holdings Plc Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp 31Dec2049 2,000,000 - -
Huarong Finance 2017 Co (Reg) (Reg S) 3.8%
07Nov2025 5,000,000 - -
Keppel Infra Trust Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp 31Dec2049 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
Prudential Funding Asia Ser Emtn (Reg) 3.8%
22May2035 2,500,000 - -
Standard Chartered Plc Ser.Var Perp
31Dec2049 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
Straits Trading Co Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 3.25%
Conv 13Feb2028 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
STT GDC Pte Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 2,000,000 2,000,000 -
Toronto-Dominion Bank (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
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£ RAETE 0 L QL ki
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR 37T
AAC Technologies Holding (Reg) (Reg S) 3%
27Nov2024 - 4,876,000 -
AAC Technologies Holding (Reg) (Reg S) 3.75%
02Jun2031 1,000,000 - -
Adani Green Energy UP Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
6.7% 12Mar2042 - 2,899,000 -
Al Candelaria Spain Slu Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
5.75% 15Jun2033 - 2,232,000 -
AIA Group Ltd Ser Gmtn (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 2,000,000 1,500,000 -
AIA Group Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) 5.4%
30Sep2054 6,000,000 - -
AIA Group Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 3.2%
16Sep2040 - 8,585,000 -
AIA Group Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 5.375%
05Apr2034 - 1,210,000 -
AIA Group Ltd Ser Regs (Regs) 4.5%
16Mar2046 1,500,000 3,000,000 -
Airport Authority HK Ser Regs 4.875%
15Jul2030 5,847,000 5,847,000 -
Airport Authority HK Ser Regs 5.125%
15Jan2035 3,528,000 3,528,000 -
Al Rajhi Sukuk Ltd Ser Emtn Var Perp
31Dec2049 6,200,000 6,200,000 -
Aldar Properties Pjsc Var 15Apr2055 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
Alibaba Group Holding (Reg) 4% 06Dec2037 6,000,000 - -
Alibaba Group Holding (Reg) 4.5% 28Nov2034 - 3,700,000 -
Alibaba Group Holding 2.7% 09Feb2041 - 1,269,000 -
Alibaba Group Holding 3.15% 09Feb2051 - 2,000,000 -
Alibaba Group Holding Ser Regs (Reg) 5.625%
26Nov2054 1,000,000 - -
Alibaba Group Holding Ser Regs 5.25%
26May2035 3,000,000 - -
ANZ Banking Group Ser Regs (Reg) Var Perp
29Dec2049 - 5,000,000 -
APA Infrastructure Ltd 5.75% 16Sep2044 2,130,000 2,130,000 -
APA Infrastructure Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S)
5.125% 16Sep2034 3,945,000 3,945,000 -
Asahi Mutual Life Insura (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 5,500,000 - -
ASB Bank Limited Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
17Jun2032 - 4,000,000 -
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Holdings
e E]
Currency Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
£ RAETE 0 L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
%5t (8)
Aust & NZ Banking Group Ser Regs (Reg S)
2.57% 25Nov2035 - 1,000,000 -
Aust & Nz Banking Group Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
30Sep2035 8,856,000 4,856,000 -
Azure Power Energy Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
3.575% 19Aug2026 615,000 2,365,000 -
Baidu Inc (Reg) 2.375% 23Aug2031 - 1,000,000 -
Bangkok Bank PCL Var 23Sep2036 3,000,000 2,000,000 -
Bank Mandiri Pt Ser Emtn 4.9% 24Mar2028 1,609,000 1,609,000 -
Bank Negara Indonesia (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 12,200,000 - -
Bank of China Ser Regs 5% 13Nov2024 - 3,000,000 -
Bank of East Asia Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 13Mar2027 - 1,551,000 -
Bank of East Asia Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 15Mar2027 - 700,000 -
Bank of East Asia Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 29May2030 - 3,000,000 -
Barclays Plc (Reg) Frn 13Sep2027 - 4,000,000 -
Barclays Plc Var 02Nov2026 - 1,456,000 -
Biocon Biologics Global Ser Regs 6.67%
090ct2029 3,500,000 3,500,000 -
Blossom Joy Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 - 4,463,000 -
BP Capital Markets Plc (Reg) Var Perp
31Dec2049 9,000,000 4,000,000 -
BP Capital Markets Plc Var Perp 31Dec2049 1,250,000 - -
Busan Bank Ser Gmtn (Reg) (Regs) 3.625%
25Jul2026 - 2,255,000 -
CA Magnum Holdings Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
5.375% 310ct2026 1,000,000 3,500,000 -
Cathaylife Singapore (Reg) (Reg S) Var
05Sep2039 1,791,000 1,791,000 -
CDBL Funding (Regs) 4.25% 02Dec2024 - 6,000,000 -
Champion Path Holdings (Reg) (Reg S) 4.5%
27)an2026 6,000,000 - -
China Cinda Fin 2014 Ii (Reg) (Reg S) 5.2%
05Dec2029 4,000,000 - -
China Cinda Finance 2015 Ser Regs 4.25%
23Apr2025 - 2,759,000 -
China Govt Intl Bond Ser Regs 4.25%
20Nov2029 970,000 970,000 -
China Great Wall Vi (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 - 922,000 -
China Honggiao Group 7.05% 10Jan2028 1,949,000 - -
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Holdings
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£ RAE BN L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
£ ()
China Honggiao Group Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 7.75%
27Mar2025 - 2,870,000 -
China Honggiao Group Ltd 6.925% 29Nov2028 1,758,000 - -
China Mengniu Dairy (Reg) (Reg S) 2.5%
17Jun2030 - 379,000 -
China Modern Dairy Holdings (Reg) (Reg S)
2.125% 14Jul2026 2,742,000 - -
China Oil & Gas Group (Reg) (Reg S) 4.7%
30Jun2026 - 1,477,000 -
China Resources Land Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) Var Perp 31Dec2049 - 4,000,000 -
CLP Power HK Financing Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 2.5% 30Jun2035 - 3,516,000 -
CMB International Leasin Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 2% 04Feb2026 - 1,772,000 -
CN Ping An Insur Oversea Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 2.85% 12Aug2031 - 8,000,000 -
CNAC HK Finbridge Co Ltd (Reg S) 5.125%
14Mar2028 - 3,400,000 -
CNAC HK Finbridge Co Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 3.7%
22S5ep2050 - 1,500,000 -
CNAC HK Finbridge Co Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 4.75%
19Jun2049 - 2,754,000 -
Coastal Emerald Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 6.5% Perp
31Dec2049 - 4,000,000 -
Commonwealth Bank Aust Ser Regs (Reg S)
4.316% 10Jan2048 - 4,127,000 -
Commonwealth Bank Aust Ser Regs (Reg S)
5.837% 13Mar2034 - 7,901,000 -
Contempry Ruidng Develop (Reg) (Reg S)
1.875% 17Sep2025 - 2,000,000 -
Dai-Ichi Life Holdings Ser Regs Var Perp
31Dec2049 8,673,000 - -
DBS Group Holdings Ltd Ser Gmtn (Reg) (Reg
S) Var 10Mar2031 - 4,497,000 -
DBS Group Holdings Ltd Ser Gmtn (Reg) (Reg
S) Var Perp 31Dec2049 - 8,000,000 -
Elect Global Inv Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 4.85% Perp
31Dec2049 - 2,000,000 -
Elect Global Inv Ltd Var Perp 31Dec2049 2,034,000 - -
Empresa De Los Ferrocarr Ser Regs (Reg S)
3.068% 18Aug2050 - 1,235,000 -
Far East Horizon Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
5.875% 05Mar2028 5,224,000 - -
Far East Horizon Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
6.625% 16Apr2027 2,000,000 - -
Fec Finance Ltd (Reg S) Var Perp 31Dec2049 2,550,000 - -
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LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
£ ()
Fortune Star Bvi Ltd (Reg) (Regs) 5.95%
190ct2025 5,546,000 5,546,000 -
Fortune Star Bvi Ltd 8.5% 19May2028 1,776,000 1,000,000 -
Fukoku Mutual Life Insur (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 6,000,000 1,000,000 -
FWD Group Holdings Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 7.635% 02Jul2031 1,500,000 - -
FWD Group Holdings Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 8.4% 05Apr2029 - 1,000,000 -
FWD Group Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg S) Var Perp
29Dec2049 2,050,000 - -
GACI First Investment (Reg) (Reg S) 5.375%
29Jan2054 2,500,000 2,500,000 -
GC Treasury Centre Co Ser Regs (Reg S) 2.98%
18Mar2031 - 1,000,000 -
Geely Automobile (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 1,200,000 7,860,000 -
Globe Telecom Inc (Reg) (Reg S) 2.5%
23Jul2030 - 4,000,000 -
Globe Telecom Inc (Reg) (Reg S) 3% 23Jul2035 - 2,000,000 -
Great Eastern Life Assur Ser Emtn Var Perp
31Dec2049 6,000,000 6,000,000 -
Greenko Dutch Bv Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
3.85% 29Mar2026 - 3,000,000 -
Greenko Solar Mauritius Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
5.55% 29Jan2025 - 5,504,000 -
Greensaif Pipelines Bidc Ser Regs (Reg S)
6.129% 23Feb2038 2,500,000 2,500,000 -
GS Caltex Corp Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 4.5%
05Jan2026 - 1,998,000 -
GZ Mtr Fin BVI Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) 1.507%
17Sep2025 - 5,978,000 -
GZ Mtr Fin BVI Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) 2.31%
17Sep2030 - 6,000,000 -
Haitong Intl Securities (Reg) (Reg S) 3.125%
18May2025 - 4,590,000 -
Haitong Intl Securities (Reg) (Reg S) 3.375%
19Jul2024 - 3,000,000 -
Halcyon Agri Corp Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 - 3,500,000 -
Hanwha Life Insurance Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 04Feb2032 - 5,000,000 -
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Investment Portfolio Movements (Unaudited) (Continued)

IRAA ST (REHETT) (82)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
e E]
Currency Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
£ RAE 0 L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
£ ()
Hanwha Life Insurance Var 24Jun2055 1,298,000 - -
Hanwha Totalenergies (Reg S) 5.5% 18Jul2029 - 1,819,000 -
HDFC Bank Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 - 3,000,000 -
Health and Happiness H&H (Reg S) 13.5%
26Jun2026 2,000,000 2,800,000 -
Health and Happiness H&H (Reg) 9.125%
24Jul2028 3,217,000 - -
HKT Capital No 2 Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) 3.625%
02Apr2025 - 4,000,000 -
HongKong Land Finance Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 2.25% 15Jul2031 - 2,180,000 -
HPHT Finance 21 Ii Ltd (Reg S) (Br) 1.5%
17Sep2026 - 3,739,000 -
HSBC Holdings Plc (Reg) Frn 14Aug2027 - 2,349,000 -
HSBC Holdings Plc Frn 13May2031 2,209,000 2,209,000 -
HSBC Holdings Plc Ser * Var Perp 31Dec2049 2,500,000 - -
HSBC Holdings Plc Var 03Nov2033 3,000,000 - -
Huarong Finance 2019 Ser Emtn (Reg S) 3.25%
13Nov2024 - 1,000,000 -
Huarong Finance II Ser Emtn (Reg) (Regs) 5.5%
16Jan2025 - 6,000,000 -
Hyundai Capital America Ser Regs (Reg S) 3.5%
02Nov2026 - 8,000,000 -
Hyundai Capital America Ser Regs (Reg S) 5.8%
01Apr2030 - 4,000,000 -
Hyundai Capital America Ser Regs Frn
27Mar2030 1,073,000 - -
Hyundai Motor Manu Indo Ser Emtn (Reg)
(Reg S) 1.75% 06May2026 - 443,000 -
India Clean Energy Hldg Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.5% 18Apr2027 4,500,000 - -
India Green Power Hold Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4% 22Feb2027 - 5,000,000 -
Indian Railway Finance Ser Regs (Reg S)
3.249% 13Feb2030 - 2,000,000 -
Indofood Cbp Sukses Makm (Reg) (Reg S)
3.398% 09Jun2031 - 2,850,000 -
Indofood Cbp Sukses Makm (Reg) (Reg S)
3.541% 27Apr2032 - 6,067,000 -
Indonesia (Rep of) (Reg) 5.65% 11Jan2053 - 2,000,000 -
Indonesia (Rep Of) 5.15% 10Sep2054 2,000,000 2,000,000 -
Indonesia (Rep of) 5.25% Ser Regs 17Jan2042 - 5,600,000 -
Indonesia (Rep of) Ser Regs 8.5Pct 120ct2035 - 2,000,000 -
Igiyi Inc 6.5% Conv 15Mar2028 2,800,000 - -
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Investment Portfolio Movements (Unaudited) (Continued)

IRAA ST (REHETT) (82)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
e E]
Currency Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
£ RAE 0 L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
£ ()
JD.com Inc 4.125% 14Jan2050 - 2,405,000 -
Johnson Electric Holding (Reg) (Reg S) 4.125%
30Jul2024 - 2,840,000 -
Joy Trsr Assets HId (Reg) (Reg S) 2.75%
17Nov2030 - 743,000 -
JSW Infrastructure Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.95% 21Jan2029 - 2,250,000 -
Kookmin Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 2.5%
04Nov2030 - 5,000,000 -
Kookmin Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 - 1,000,000 -
Korea Ocean Business Co 4.625% 09May2030 1,707,000 1,707,000 -
Krakatau Posco Pt (Reg) (Reg S) 6.375%
11Jun2027 3,500,000 - -
Kyobo Life Insurance Co Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
Perp 31Dec2049 - 3,000,000 -
Lenovo Group Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) 5.831%
27)an2028 - 6,796,000 -
LG Chem Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 1.25% Conv
18Jul2028 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
LG Energy Solution Ser Regs (Reg S) 5.5%
02Jul2034 - 3,000,000 -
LG Energy Solution Ser Regs Frn 02Apr2030 3,431,000 - -
Li & Fung Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) 4.5%
18Aug2025 600,000 - -
LLPL Capital Pte Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
6.875% 04Feb2039 1,811,000 - -
Macquarie Bank Ltd 4.875% 10Jun2025 - 5,027,000 -
Macquarie Group Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
07Dec2034 - 1,667,000 -
Medco Bell Pte Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
6.375% 30Jan2027 - 1,231,000 -
Medco Oak Tree Pte Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
7.375% 14May2026 1,500,000 5,613,000 -
Mega Advance Investments Ltd SER Regs
6.375 PCT 12/05/2041 1,492,000 - -
Meiji Yasuda Life Insura Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
11Sep2054 12,500,000 - -
Meituan (Reg) (Reg S) 0% Conv 27Apr2027 - 10,000,000 -
Meituan Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 2.125%
280ct2025 - 1,500,000 -
Meituan Ser Regs 4.5% 02Apr2028 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
Meituan Ser Regs 4.625% 020ct2029 2,998,000 2,998,000 -
Melco Resorts Finance 4.875% 06Jun2025 - 3,000,000 -
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Investment Portfolio Movements (Unaudited) (Continued)

IRAA ST (REHETT) (82)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
e E]

Currency Investments
£ RAE

Additions
BN

Disposals

D

Bonus/Splits
LIRS

LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
LRSI (47)

UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
it (480)

Melco Resorts Finance Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
5.375% 04Dec2029

Melco Resorts Finance Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
7.625% 17Apr2032

Melco Resorts Finance Ser Regs (Regs) 5.75%
21Jul2028

Mgm China Holdings Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S)
5.25% 18Jun2025

Minmetals Bounteous Finance (Reg) (Reg S)
Var Perp 31Dec2049

Minor International Pcl (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049

Mirae Asset Securities (Reg) (Reg S) 5.5%
31Jul2027

Mirae Asset Securities (Reg) (Reg S) 5.875%
26Jan2027

MISC Capital Two Labuan Ser Regs (Reg S)
3.625% 06Apr2025

Mitsubishi UFJ Fin Grp (Reg) Var Perp
31Dec2049

Mitsubishi UFJ Fin Grp Var 12Sep2025

Mizuho Financial Group Frn 08Jul2031

Mongolian Mining Corp Ser Regs 8.44%
03Apr2030

MTR Corp Ci Ltd Ser Emtn Var Perp 31Dec2049

MTR Corp Ltd Ser Emtn 5.25% 01Apr2055

Muang Thai Life Assuranc (Reg) (Reg S) Var
27Jan2037

Muthoot Finance Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) 7.125%
14Feb2028

Nan Fung Treasury III (Reg) (Reg S) 5% Perp
31Dec2049

Nanshan Life Pte Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 5.45%
11Sep2034

Nanyang Commercial Bank (Reg) (Reg S) Var
06Aug2034

National Australia Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 02Aug2034

Network I2I Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049

Network I2I Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp 31Dec2049

Nippon Life Insurance Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
13Sep2053

5,650,000

1,500,000

3,700,000

1,611,000

2,397,000
2,300,000
3,562,000
6,118,000
2,000,000

3,600,000

1,000,000

5,000,000

5,200,000

1,500,000

1,383,000

4,090,000

4,000,000

1,611,000
3,950,000
3,030,000

600,000

1,600,000
2,397,000

6,118,000

974,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

6,135,000

10,500,000

6,425,000
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Investment Portfolio Movements (Unaudited) (Continued)

IRAA ST (REHETT) (82)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
HEEE
Currency Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
£ RAE 0 L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
£ ()
Nippon Life Insurance Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
21Jan2051 - 3,750,000 -
NWD Finance (BVI) Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 - 6,600,000 -
NWD Mtn Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 8.625% 08Feb2028 3,092,000 3,092,000 -
NWD Mtn Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S) 4.5%
19May2030 - 1,466,000 -
Oversea-Chinese Banking Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
10Sep2030 - 5,000,000 -
Panther Ventures Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 3.5% Perp
31Dec2049 - 1,000,000 -
Perenti Finance Pty Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
7.5% 26Apr2029 - 733,000 -
Perusahaan Penerbit Sbsn Ser Regs 5.65%
25Nov2054 4,000,000 - -
Petronas Capital Ltd 4.5% 18Mar2045 300,000 300,000 -
Petronas Capital Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.55% 21Apr2050 1,102,000 1,102,000 -
Philippines (Rep of) (Reg) 5.5% 17)an2048 - 2,762,000 -
Posco Ser Regs (Reg S) 5.875% 17Jan2033 - 695,000 -
Posco Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 4.375%
04Aug2025 - 5,094,000 -
Power Finance Corp Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) 6.15%
06Dec2028 - 1,700,000 -
Prosus Nv Ser Regs (Reg S) 4.987% 19Jan2052 2,800,000 - -
Prosus Nv Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 3.68%
21Jan2030 4,000,000 - -
Prosus Nv Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 3.832%
08Feb2051 2,500,000 - -
QBE Insurance Group Ltd (Reg) (Regs) Var
2Dec2044 - 7,000,000 -
QBE Insurance Group Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg S)
Var Perp 29Dec2049 - 3,000,000 -
Rakuten Group Inc Ser Regs (Reg S) 11.25%
15Feb2027 - 4,200,000 -
Rakuten Group Inc Ser Regs (Reg S) 9.75%
15Apr2029 - 2,253,000 -
Rakuten Group Inc Ser Regs (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 2,500,000 - -
Rakuten Group Inc Ser Regs (Reg) Var Perp
31Dec2049 1,418,000 - -
Rec Limited Ser Gmtn (Reg) (Reg S) 2.25%
01Sep2026 - 2,800,000 -
Reliance Industries 6.25% 190ct2040 - 500,000 -
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Investment Portfolio Movements (Unaudited) (Continued)

IRAA ST (REHETT) (82)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
HEEE
Currency Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
£ RAE BN L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
£ ()
Reliance Industries Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
3.625% 12Jan2052 1,000,000 - -
Resorts World/Rwlv Cap Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.625% 16Apr2029 6,000,000 3,500,000 -
Rlgh Finance Bermuda Ltd 6.75% 02Jul2035 3,223,000 - -
Sael Ltd Group Issuers Ser Regs (Reg S) 7.8%
31Jul2031 1,073,000 1,073,000 -
Sands China Ltd Ser Wi (Reg) 3.8% 08Jan2026 - 2,000,000 -
Sands China Ltd Ser Wi (Reg) 5.125%
08Aug2025 - 2,000,000 -
Santos Finance Ltd Ser Emtn (Br) (Reg S)
4.125% 14Sep2027 - 9,000,000 -
Saudi Arabian Oil Co Ser Regs (Reg S) 5.25%
17Jul2034 2,002,000 2,002,000 -
Saudi Arabian Oil Co Ser Regs (Reg S) 5.875%
17)ul2064 2,170,000 2,170,000 -
Scentre Group Trust 2 Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
245ep2080 - 12,000,000 -
Sekisui House Co (Reg) (Reg S) 5.1%
230ct2034 4,594,000 4,594,000 -
Shinhan Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 4%
23Apr2029 - 2,324,000 -
Shinhan Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 5.75%
15Apr2034 4,000,000 - -
Shinhan Bank Ser Regs 3.75% 20Sep2027 - 2,000,000 -
Shinhan Bank Ser Regs 3.875% 24Mar2026 - 14,982,000 -
Shriram Finance Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) 6.15%
03Apr2028 8,774,000 - -
Shriram Transport Fin Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.15% 18Jul2025 2,000,000 4,000,000 -
Sinochem Offshore Capita Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 2.25% 24Nov2026 - 4,152,000 -
Sinochem Offshore Capita Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg
S) 2.375% 23Sep2031 - 7,200,000 -
Sinopec Grp Dev 2018 Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
3.68% 08Aug2049 - 3,000,000 -
Sinopec Grp Overseas Dev Ser Regs (Reg)
(Regs) 4.25% 03May2046 - 2,000,000 -
SK Hynix Inc Ser Regs (Reg S) 6.375%
17)an2028 - 1,205,000 -
SK Hynix Inc Ser Regs (Reg S) 6.5% 17Jan2033 - 1,295,000 -
SK Hynix Inc Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 1.5%
19Jan2026 - 2,409,000 -
SK Hynix Inc Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 2.375%
19Jan2031 - 2,000,000 -
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Investment Portfolio Movements (Unaudited) (Continued)

IRAA ST (REHETT) (82)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
HEEE
Currency Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
£ RAE BN L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
£ ()
SMBC Aviation Capital Fi Ser Regs (Reg S) 5.7%
25Jul2033 - 1,000,000 -
SMIC SG Holdings Pte Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg S)
5.375% 24Jul2029 6,174,000 6,174,000 -
Standard Chartered Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 8% 30May2031 5,000,000 - -
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg S)
6.187% 06Jul2027 - 3,537,000 -
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
09Jan2029 - 5,919,000 -
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
12Jan2028 - 4,000,000 -
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
15Mar2033 - 2,000,000 -
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg S) Var
16Nov2028 - 2,590,000 -
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 18Feb2036 5,000,000 - -
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 30Jan2026 - 3,500,000 -
Standard Chartered Plc Ser Regs Var Perp
31Dec2049 3,000,000 - -
Star Energy Co Issue Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.85% 140ct2038 - 2,000,000 -
Studio City Co Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) 7%
15Feb2027 - 2,000,000 -
Studio City Finance Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
6.5% 15Jan2028 1,000,000 - -
Studio City Finance Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Regs)
5% 15Jan2029 3,000,000 - -
Sumitomo Life Insur Ser Regs (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 9,700,000 2,000,000 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Finl Grp (Reg) 5.836%
09Jul2044 1,819,000 1,819,000 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Finl Grp (Reg) Var Perp
31Dec2049 - 4,000,000 -
Summit Digitel Infrastr Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
2.875% 12Aug2031 - 7,500,000 -
Sunny Optical Tech (Reg) (Reg S) 5.95%
17)ul2026 - 2,000,000 -
TCL Technology Invest (Reg) (Reg S) 1.875%
14Jul2025 - 1,483,000 -
Tencent Holdings Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) 3.24%
03Jun2050 - 2,567,000 -
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Investment Portfolio Movements (Unaudited) (Continued)

IRAA ST (REHETT) (82)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
e E]
Currency Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
£ RAE 0 L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
£ ()
Tencent Holdings Ltd Ser Regs (Reg S) 3.94%
22Apr2061 - 2,400,000 -
Tencent Holdings Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Regs)
3.925% 19Jan2038 4,000,000 - -
Tencent Music Ent Grp (Reg) 2% 03Sep2030 3,000,000 - -
Thai Oil Pcl (Regs) 4.875% 23Jan2043 3,276,000 1,809,000 -
Thaioil Treasury Center Ser Regs (Regs)
4.875% 23Jan2043 - 1,000,000 -
ThaiOil Trsry Center Ser Regs (Reg S) 2.5%
18Jun2030 - 2,000,000 -
ThaiOil Trsry Center Ser Regs (Reg S) 3.75%
18Jun2050 - 2,000,000 -
Thaioil Trsry Center Ser Regs 5.375%
20Nov2048 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
Tongyanglifeinsuranceco Var 07May2035 5,000,000 - -
Treasury Bill 0% 04Sep2025 18,000,000 - -
Treasury Bill 21Aug2025 15,000,000 - -
Treasury Bill 28Nov2025 12,000,000 - -
Ultratech Cement Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
2.8% 16Feb2031 - 2,000,000 -
United Overseas Bank Ltd Ser Gmtn (Reg) (Reg
S) Var 16Mar2031 - 5,000,000 -
United Overseas Bank Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) Var 070ct2032 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
United Overseas Bank Ltd Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) Var 140ct2031 - 3,228,000 -
UPL Corp Ltd (Reg S) 4.625% 16Jun2030 - 1,200,000 -
UPL Corp Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 4.5% 08Mar2028 1,000,000 1,800,000 -
US Treasury Bill 0% 07NOV2024 4,400,000 4,400,000 -
US Treasury Bill 0% 10Jul2025 30,000,000 - -
US Treasury Bills 0% 230ct2025 24,500,000 - -
Varanasi Aura Nh-2 Toll Ser Regs 5.9%
28Feb2034 1,445,000 - -
Wens Foodstuff Group (Reg) (Reg S) 2.349%
290ct2025 2,000,000 - -
Westpac Banking Corp (Reg) Var 24Jul2034 - 700,000 -
Westpac Banking Corp (Reg) Var Perp
29Dec2049 2,000,000 - -
Westpac Banking Corp Ser Gmtn (Reg) 5.618%
20Nov2035 5,954,000 - -
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IRAA ST (REHETT) (82)
For the Year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

Holdings
e E]
Currency Investments Additions Disposals Bonus/Splits
£ RAE 0 L LIRS
LISTED DEBT SECURITIES (Continued)
WSS ()
UNITED STATES DOLLAR (Continued)
£ ()
Wheelock Mtn Bvi Ltd Ser Emtn (Reg) (Reg S)
2.375% 25)an2026 - 7,000,000 -
Woodside Finance Ltd 5.7% 19May2032 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
Woori Bank (Reg S) 5.125% 06Aug2028 - 943,000 -
Woori Bank Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp
31Dec2049 12,370,000 - -
Xiaomi Best Time Intl (Reg) (Reg S) 0% Conv
17Dec2027 4,400,000 4,400,000 -
Xiaomi Best Time Intl Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
2.875% 14Jul2031 - 8,500,000 -
Xiaomi Best Time Intl Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.1% 14Jul2051 - 7,350,000 -
Yan Gang Ltd (Reg) (Reg S) 1.9% 23Mar2026 - 2,000,000 -
Zhongan Online P&C Insur (Reg) (Reg S)
3.125% 16Jul2025 - 5,000,000 -
Zhongsheng Group (Reg) (Reg S) 3%
13Jan2026 - 6,400,000 -
Zhongsheng Group (Reg) (Reg S) 5.98%
30Jan2028 9,705,000 3,005,000 -
UNLISTED DEBT SECURITIES
FE LTRSS
AUSTRALIAN DOLLAR 3#5%
Nsw Electricity Networks Ser Mtn Var
11Mar2055 2,230,000 2,230,000 -
UNITED STATES DOLLAR 37T
Aust & Nz Banking Group Ser Regs Var
18Jun2036 3,200,000 - -
US Treasury Bills 0% 04Dec2025 18,000,000 - -
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

ERITTETRMNIFE CREHIT)

As at 30th June 2025

BE—E D ENA=FH

(a) Futures

(a) HA%R

Futures are contractual obligations to buy
or sell financial instruments on a future
date at a specified price established in an
organised market. The futures contracts
are collateralised by cash or marketable
securities; changes in the futures
contracts’ value are settled daily with the
exchange. Futures are settled on a net
basis.

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the
futures with UBS AG, London Branch as
shown below:

As at 30th June 2025
BE—_T-HFA=1+H

HERSEIXSHNERTIA » FEHAR
HIHRRARRE—BLIEENNIEEAH
SEHEM~ R - BERSATAENENIES
ERIER > PRENEZEHEREHERS
FR{EEE o HRESLUSEIEELEH o

BE_Z_AF,B=1+H > xEEFET
UBS AG, London Branch#p#s :

Underlying assets
P

Financial assets: £RIA ©
KOSPI2 INX FUT 11/09/2025 KOSPI 200 Index
MSCIAC AX) NTR 19/09/2025 MSCI AC Asia ex Japan Index
MSCI TAIWAN USD30/07/2025 MSCI Taiwan Index

NASDAQ 100 E-MINI 19/09/2025

Financial liabilities; £REfAf :

MSCI CHINA FUTURE 19/09/2025
US 2YR NOTE (CBT) 30/09/2025

Micro E-mini Nasdag-100 Index

MSCI China Index
2-Year US Treasury note

Notional

market value Fair value

Contract BNE ARiE
size HK$ Position HK$
BEHE B to1e) B
250,000 453853572  Long k& 18,083,182
100 273677690  Long K& 3,936,681

100 146,700,800  Long K 172,621

20 521,164,836  Long K& 15,998,862
38,191,346
50 142,030,050 Llong k& (1,318,800)
2000  (898,141,194) Short 556 (3,634,515)
(4,953,315)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

S E L FENA=+H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IEERINCEY
Foreign exchange forward contracts are mERINC AN RIEE TN R B HIHEKIEE M
contractual obligations to buy or sell BELIMDERTIE ©

foreign currencies at a specified rate
established in over-the-counter markets.

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the BHE_Z-HEAA=1tHEXEEFERS
outstanding foreign exchange forward 33FHBarclays Bank PLCEYZHIINC A4Y ¢

contracts with Barclays Bank PLC as
shown below:

Fair value
Foreign exchange PRNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
mEINC B FI#R BX(E BT
Financial liabilities: &R f% :
Buy USD and Sell SGD 11th September 2025 USD %7t.1,943,987 (228,320)
EETTENINET ZZZRFAA+H SGD #rini72,500,000
Buy USD and Sell SGD 11th September 2025 USD %7t7,773,547 (932,020)
EETTENINET ZZEZRFEAA+H SGD #An3710,000,000
Buy USD and Sell CNH 25th September 2025 USD %7t.1,822,984 (36,044)
EETEART ZZZRFAARZHEH CNH A E13,000,000
(1,196,384)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

FE_RFENA=FH

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IZHRIMNCELY (87)

(Continued)

BE_Z-AEAA=1+HEXEEFEX
S3fF HBank of America N.A., London
BranchBUiZHEAINC &4Y -

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the
outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts with Bank of America N.A,,
London Branch, as shown below:

Fair value
Foreign exchange ARNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
BHINCEY LGl BXE BT
Financial liabilities: SR8 1R -
Buy USD and Sell SGD 16th July 2025 USD %7t44,739,927 (18,980,669)
EETUERIRT “ECREEA+SH SGD #AN3%760,000,000
Buy USD and Sell SGD 16th July 2025 USD %7t67,109,890 (28,471,004)
EETUERRTT “ECREEA+H SGD #AN3%7£90,000,000
Buy USD and Sell SGD 16th July 2025 USD %7t67,109,890 (28,471,004)
EETUERETT “ECREEA+H SGD #AN3%7£90,000,000

(75,922,677)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

FE_RFENA=FH

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IZHRIMNCELY (87)

(Continued)

BHE_ZE-_HEAA=Z1THEETESHFERS
SFTFHBNP Paribas SA, London Branchfy
mHRANC Y -

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the
outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts with BNP Paribas SA, London
Branch, as shown below:

Fair value
Foreign exchange ARNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
EESNCES 2#R BX(E BT
Financial asset: £RIA :
Buy JPY and Sell USD 16th July 2025 JPY HI[E13,000,000,000 5,980,732
EZHEEET ZZTRELA+AH USD 789,387,522
Buy KRW and Sell USD 16th July 2025 KRW #537550,000,000,000 8,044,810
EETAET ZZTRELA+AH USD 736,057,890
Buy SGD and Sell USD 16th July 2025 SGD #ins7t240,000,000 21,426,884
EHIMRTTEET ZZCREEA+AH USD %71185,912,482
35,452,426
Financial liabilities; £Rf11% :
Buy USD and Sell JPY 16th July 2025 USD %£7t.89,017,896 (8,867,535)
EETARR “ZTRFtEA+AH JPY B 13,000,000,000
Buy USD and Sell KRW 16th July 2025 USD 734,463,047 (20,545,087)
EETTAFTT “ZTRFEA+AH KRW #57550,000,000,000
(29,412,622)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)

ERTTETANIFE REHT) (87)

As at 30th June 2025
EZERFENA=FH

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IZHRIMNCELY (87)

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the
outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts with Goldman Sachs Intl,
London Branch, as shown below:

Foreign exchange
forward contracts Maturity date
BHINCEY LGl

Financial assets: £F84

Buy USD and Sell PHP 16th July 2025
TETEFRERR “ZCRELATAA

BEZ-AHAFEA=1tHXEEFERS
S$F A Goldman Sachs Intl, London Branch
HIERRINCE L ¢

Fair value
ARME
Notional value HK$
BXfE BT
USD %£7t.29,637,347 2,768,750
PHP JEfEHKZ1,650,000,000
2,768,750
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

BE—EHFENA=+H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IZHRIMNCELY (87)

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the
outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A,,
London Branch, as shown below:

BEZ_RFSA=+THAEESFHAERS
X$3F/9)PMorgan Chase Bank N.A., London

BranchBUiZHEAINC &4Y -

Fair value
Foreign exchange ARNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
EHINCEL H#R BXfE BT
Financial assets: SRIAF
Buy EUR and Sell USD 21st July 2025 EUR B%75100,000 56,034
EMITEET ZECRFLACTH— USD %75110,406
56,034
Financial liabilities: £ 511 :
Buy USD and Sell EUR 21st July 2025 USD 3£7t3,428,986 (3,527,569)
EETHERT ZECRFELACT— EUR 753,300,000
(3,527,569)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

FE_RFENA=FH

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IZHRIMNCELY (87)
(Continued)
As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the BEZ-AHAFEA=1tHXEEFERS
outstanding foreign exchange forward XfF}IMorgan Stanley and Co Intl, London
contracts with Morgan Stanley and Co Intl, BranchBJIERSNC &4 :

London Branch, as shown below:

Foreign exchange

forward contracts Maturity date
EHINCEL H#R
Financial asset: £RIAR

Buy SGD and Sell USD 11th September 2025
TR TTASETT “2CRFAA+TR

Financial liabilities: &Rt f% :

Buy USD and Sell TWD 16th July 2025
EETEMAT “ZCRELATAA

Notional value

BXE

SGD #fh03%7t2,000,000
USD %7%1,560,597

USD %7127,673,745
TWD #f&900,000,000

Fair value
ARME
HK$
BT

141,173

141,173

(24,872,173)

(24,872,173)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)

ERTTETANIFE REHT) (87)

As at 30th June 2025

BE—EHFENA=+H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the
outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts with Royal Bank of Canada as

shown below:

(b) IEERINCELY (48)

BE_T_RFAB=+HAESFERS
fFFHRoyal Bank of CanadafyiZiisbCE

9

Fair value
Foreign exchange ARNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
EESNCES 2#R BX(E BT
Financial asset: £RA
Buy SGD and Sell USD 11th September 2025 SGD #n#72,300,000 118,869
EHIMETTEETT ZZZREAAT—H USD %7t1,800,225
118,869
Financial liabilities; £Rf11% :
Buy USD and Sell SGD 11th September 2025 USD %7t.3,863,080 (1,267,365)
EETTEIINETT “ZETREABR+—H SGD #fh047t5,100,000
Buy USD and Sell CNH 25th September 2025 USD £7t2,116,022 (53,124)
EETEARD “ETRFARZTERA CNH AK™15,100,000
Buy USD and Sell CNH 15th December 2025 USD %£75987,380 (18,428)
ZETEART ZZTRFEAATEA CNH AEfi7,000,000
(1,338,917)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

FE_RFENA=FH

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IZHRIMNCELY (87)
(Continued)
As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the BEZ-AHAFEA=1tHXEEFERS
outstanding foreign exchange forward XfF7Standard Chartered Bank, London
contracts with Standard Chartered Bank, BranchBUiZHEAINC &4Y -

London Branch, as shown below:

Fair value
Foreign exchange ARNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
BHINCEY H#R BXE BT
Financial asset; £BIA :
Buy PHP and Sell USD 16th July 2025 PHP 3E2E#KZ1,650,000,000 3,950,727
TFRRERTGET “2CREEA+RA USD %71.28,781,446
Buy TWD and Sell USD 16th July 2025 TWD #&900,000,000 4,291,535
THEmRET “2CREEA+RA USD %37%.30,299,256
8,242,262
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

BE—EHFENA=+H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IZHRIMNCELY (87)

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the
outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts with The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,
Hong Kong Branch, as shown below:

BE_ZE_AFAAZTHTEERAER
Z%IFHThe Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong
BranchBiZHERINC &L ©

Fair value
Foreign exchange PRNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
mEINC B FIHAE BNE BT
Financial assets; SRIAF
Buy AUD and Sell USD 21st July 2025 AUD #751,112 22
ERTEET ZECRELACTH— USD %7726
Buy AUD and Sell USD 21st July 2025 AUD 2751,596,337 90,714
ERTTEET ZECRELACTH— USD %7%1,034,991
Buy AUD and Sell USD 21st July 2025 AUD #7519,308 830
ERTTEETT ZECRELATH— USD %7512,552
Buy AUD and Sell USD 21st July 2025 AUD #75263,918,981 14,997,500
ERITEETT ZECRELATH— USD £7t171,112,927
Buy AUD and Sell USD 21st July 2025 AUD 273,097,504 133,127
ERITEETT ZECRELATH— USD %312,013,743
Buy AUD and Sell USD 21st July 2025 AUD 751,844 1,487
ERTTEET ZECRELACTH— USD %7t33,799
Buy AUD and Sell USD 21st July 2025 AUD #7:78,423 5,330
ERTTEET ZECRELATH- USD %7t50,735
HEETNESERGES 168



Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

FE_RFENA=FH

(b) IEERINCELY (48)

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts

(Continued)

Fair value

Foreign exchange PRNE

forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$

THNCEY 1G]] BXE BT

Financial assets (Continued):
SEA ()

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AE1,071 3
IARMERT “ECRFtAC+-H USD 372149

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AEf1,585 3
IARMERT “ECRFEACT-H USD 75221

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH ARf1,829,705,936 1,021,621
EARMEET S 2 o = By el = USD %71.255,705,159

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AE™M 101,123 189
IARMERT “ECRFEAC+-H USD %7t14,115

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH ART19,874,260 18,307
EARMEET S 2 o = By el = USD %71.2,776,550

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH ART2,145 5
IARMERT “ECRFEAC+-H USD %7299

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH ART2,298 9
EIARMERT “ECRFEAC+-H USD %7t320

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH ART2,652 10
EIARMERT “ECRFEAC+-H USD %7t370

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AEi2,739,521 229
EIARMERT “ECRFEAC+-H USD %72383,019
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)

ERTTETANIFE REHT) (87)

As at 30th June 2025
BE—ERhEFEANA=F+H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts

(Continued)

(b) IEERINCELY (48)

Fair value

Foreign exchange PRNE

forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$

mHINCEY 1G]] BXE BT

Financial assets (Continued):
SRAT (8)

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AEf2,821 8
IARMERT “ECRFtAC+-H USD %72393

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AEif2,854 7
IARMERT “ECRFEACT-H USD %72398

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AEf2,854 1
IARMERT “ECRFtAC+-H USD %7399

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AET219,701,696 122,671
EARTHEER S 2 o = By el = USD %7t30,703,763

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH ART3,439 3
IARMERT “ECRFEAC+-H USD 371480

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AE™342,697 753
EIARMERT “ECRFEAC+-H USD 37t47,821

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH ART824 2
IARMERT “ECRFtAC+-H USD %7215

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AEf186,930 49
EIARMERT “ECRFEAC+-H USD %7512,149

Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AR9,800 21
IARMERT “ECRFEAC+-H USD %7t1,368
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)

ERTTETANIFE REHT) (87)

As at 30th June 2025
BHE_E_FFNF=1H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts
(Continued)

(b) IEERINCELY (48)

Fair value
Foreign exchange PRNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
MO 24 5IHH BV B
Financial assets (Continued):
SEA ()
Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AEif19,988 9
IARTEET “ZCREtAC+-H USD %751,395
Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH A& 916,898 512
IARTEET “ZCREtAT+-H USD %75128,138
Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH ART973 1
IARMERT “ECRFEACT-H USD %7T136
Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AEf198,500 184
IARTEET “ZCREtAT+-H USD %7513,749
Buy GBP and Sell USD 21st July 2025 GBP 31§%19,785,242 2,159,643
LEERET “ZCREtAT+-H USD 371.26,840,046
Buy GBP and Sell USD 21st July 2025 GBP 38%#237,495 16,121
TEHEET “ECRFtAC+H USD %7t323,427
Buy GBP and Sell USD 21st July 2025 GBP 3%2632,621 69,053
FHEEET “ZCREtAT+-H USD %71858,194
Buy GBP and Sell USD 21st July 2025 GBP 3%#89,358 8,838
TEEEET “ECRFtAC+H USD %75121,337
Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7t21,882 22
IETEART ZZCRFtAZ+H CNH AKT156,476
Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7557,625 57
IETEARD “ZCREtAT+-H CNH AET412,076
18,647,341
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)

EMETETAIFE (REHIT) ()
As at 30th June 2025
BE—EHFENA=+H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts

(Continued)

(b) IEERINCELY (48)

Fair value
Foreign exchange PRNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
EHINCEY FI#R BX{E B
Financial liabilities: &5 f :
Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AE3,850 -
IARMEERT ZECRFEERAT- USD %7t538
Buy CNH and Sell USD 21st July 2025 CNH AR99 -
IARMBET “ECRFEERAT— USD %714
Buy GBP and Sell USD 21st July 2025 GBP 22,909 (68)
EEEEET “ECRFEERAT- USD %7t3,995
Buy GBP and Sell USD 21st July 2025 GBP 29,550 (276)
RHEEEETT =t ¥ = of = s o USD %7t40,533
Buy GBP and Sell USD 21st July 2025 GBP 8,866 (232)
EEEEET ZECREEAZ+H-H USD %5t12,181
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025 USD %731,045,048 (6,616)
EETHERT “ZECRFEEAZ+H-H AUD #751,595,336
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025 USD %7%1,760,615 (129,320)
EETERT “ECRFEEAZH-H AUD #752,710,668
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025 USD %7t11,651 (1,743)
EETERT “ECRFEEAZH-H AUD B37518,111
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025 USD %7%138,908 (8,917)
EETERT “ECRFEEAZH-H AUD #35t213,615
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025 USD %7%139,653 (2,061)
EETHERT “ECRFEEAZH-H AUD #37t213,418
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)
(Continued)

ERTTETANIFE REHT) (87)

As at 30th June 2025
BHE_E_FFNF=1H

(b)

Foreign exchange forward contracts
(Continued)

Foreign exchange

forward contracts Maturity date
THNCEY )]
Financial liabilities (Continued):
SRk (%)
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025
EZETERT “ZCREtAT+-H
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025
ELETERT “ZCREtAT+-H
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025
EETEEAT S 25 o= iy =
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025
ELETHRT “ZCREtAT+-H
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025
EZETERT “ZCREtAZ+-H
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025
EETEET S 2 = iy =
Buy USD and Sell AUD 21st July 2025
EZETERT “ZCREtAT+-H
Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025
IETEART “ZCREtAT+-H
Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025
IETEART S 2 = iy =

(b) IEERINCELY (48)

Fair value
ARME
Notional value HK$
BX(E BT
USD %7t2,241 (125)
AUD 87t3,443
USD %72,546 (306)
AUD #773,943
USD %7t21,220 (1,562)
AUD #732,672
USD %75214,030 (3,113)
AUD #75327,072
USD %75297,299 (16,562)
AUD 7#75456,701
USD %7t38,005 (1,185)
AUD J&7558,201
USD £75736,072 (38,501)
AUD 387%1,130,241
USD %7t1,249 (18)
CNH AK™8,953
USD £75102,504 (2,802)
CNH AR™M735,652
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)

ERTTETANIFE REHT) (87)

As at 30th June 2025
BE—ERhEFEANA=F+H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts

(Continued)

(b) IEERINCELY (48)

Fair value

Foreign exchange PRNE

forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$

mHINCEY 1G]] BXE BT

Financial liabilities (Continued):
SRR (5)

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7t11,749 (29)
EETTEART “ETREEAZ+-H CNH AEfi84,051

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %£75135,231 (1,661)
EETTEART “ETREEAZ+-H CNH AKT968,672

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %£75138,153 (1,792)
EETTEART “ETREERZ+-H CNH AKif1989,694

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %£75140,792 (2,698)
EETTEART “ETREERZ+-H CNH AKfi1,009,390

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %£75143,071 (1,856)
EETTEART “ETREtRZ+—H CNH AKif1,024,919

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %75161,301 (2,752)
EETTEART S 2 o = By el = CNH AK1,156,119

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %75167,286 (2,055)
EETTEART S 2 o = By el = CNH AKifi1,198,283

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %£71.293,341 (4,985)
EETTEART “ETREtRZ+-H CNH AKf2,102,494

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %75301,961 (5,787)
EETTEART S 2 o = By el = CNH AKf2,164,870
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

BHE_E_FFNF=1H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IEERINCEL (57)
(Continued)
Fair value

Foreign exchange PRNE

forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$

mHINCEY 1G]] BXE BT

Financial liabilities (Continued):
SRR (5)

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7t31,636 (540)
EETTEART “ETREEAZ+-H CNH AR226,752

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %£7t475,248 (7,599)
EETTEART “ETREERZ+-H CNH AKifi3,405,854

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7552,642 (1,439)
EETTEART “ETREERZ+-H CNH AK377,805

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %75t7,223 (18)
EETTEART “ETREtAZ+-H CNH AE51,677

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7t71,488 (1,959)
EETTEART “ETREtAZ+-H CNH AK513,059

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7t74,743 (1,101)
EETTEART S 2 o = By el = CNH AKf535,561

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7576,510 (402)
EETTEART S 2 o = By el = CNH AKf547,557

Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7t80,137 (2197)
IETEARD “Z2RFHAC+-A CNH AE&™M575,136
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

BHE_E_FFNF=1H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IEERINCEL (57)
(Continued)
Fair value
Foreign exchange PRNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
mHINCEY HHH BXfE B
Financial liabilities (Continued):
SRR (5)
Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %782,121 (1,396)
EETAART “ETREtRZ+-H CNH AKif588,591
Buy USD and Sell CNH 21st July 2025 USD %7820 4
EETEART “ETREERZ+-H CNH AEf5,870
Buy USD and Sell GBP 21st July 2025 USD %7t51,130 (6,398)
TERTTEEE “Z2RFHAC+-A GBP %$%37,903
Buy USD and Sell GBP 21st July 2025 USD %7t61,921 (2,925)
TERTTEEE “Z2RFHAC+-A GBP 545,454
Buy USD and Sell GBP 21st July 2025 USD %7t63,185 (6,995)
TERTTEEE “Z2RFHAC+-A GBP 546,755
Buy USD and Sell GBP 21st July 2025 USD %7813 (113)
LERTTEEE “Z2RFTAC+-A GBP 35604
(270,108)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

FE_RFENA=FH

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts (b) IZHRIMNCELY (87)
(Continued)
As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the BEZZ-HAFAAB=1THXEEZFER
outstanding foreign exchange forward ZXtFHThe Hongkong and Shanghai
contracts with The Hongkong and Banking Corporation Limited, Singapore
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, BranchBiZHERINC &L ©
Singapore Branch, as shown below:
Fair value
Foreign exchange PRNE
forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$
THNCEY 1G]] BXE BT
Financial assets: £F4
Buy THB and Sell USD 16th July 2025 THB %%1,000,000,000 3,784,429
ERBIEET “ZCREtRAtRE USD %7530,312.216
3,784,429
Financial liabilities: £&51{% :
Buy USD and Sell CNH 16th July 2025 USD %7t41,004,876 (7,250,086)
IETEART “ZCREtAtRE CNH AET300,000,000
Buy USD and Sell THB 16th July 2025 USD 371.29,364,264 (11,213,692)
EETERK “ZCREtAtRE THB %#1,000,000,000
(18,463,778)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)

EMETETAIFE (REHIT) ()
As at 30th June 2025
BE—EHFENA=+H

(b) Foreign exchange forward contracts

(Continued)

As at 30th June 2025, the Fund held the
outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts with UBS AG, London Branch, as

shown below:

(b) IEERINCELY (48)

BHE_ZE-_HEAA=Z1THEETESHFERS
FFEHUBS AG, London BranchB9izERsNT

/54

Fair value

Foreign exchange ARNE

forward contracts Maturity date Notional value HK$

EHINCEL ZIHAE BX(E BT

Financial liabilities: £&af f% :

Buy USD and Sell AUD 5th August 2025 USD %£7t2,151,122 (359,860)
EETERT “EZRE\REH AUD ;873,350,000

Buy USD and Sell CNH 25th September 2025 USD %7t1,659,122 (107,907)
EETHARD “ETRFARZTERA CNH AE11,900,000

(467,767)
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Details in Respect of Financial Derivative Instruments (Unaudited)

(Continued)
ERMETETANFE (REHIT) (£87)
As at 30th June 2025

BHE_E_FFNF=1H

(c) Options (c) HAMY
At 30th June 2025, the Fund held the BHE_E_RAERA=Z1THRTESHFEXRS
options with UBS AG, London Branch, as FFMUBS AG, London BranchBIHAR&
shown below: £y .
Notional value Fair value
BXE RAME
Options Maturity date HK$ HK$
HAR EIHAE BT BT
Financial Assets: SRI&~ :
CALL HSCEI FUT OPTIONS
19/09/2025 9200 19th September 2025 47,092,320 28,050,000
ZZETRFENARB+AE

28,050,000
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Information on Exposure Arising from Financial Derivative

Instruments (unaudited)

BEXERMITE TR ENRPLABNZER (REHIT)

For the year ended 30th June 2025
ZECRFEANA=1HIEFE

The following table shows the lowest, highest
and average gross exposure arising from the
use of financial derivative instruments for any
purpose as a proportion to the Fund's total
net asset value for the year ended 30th June
2025:

Lowest gross exposure B{& &K faHEIE
Highest gross exposure &= &4 X R EE
Average gross exposure TS KX LR
The following table shows the lowest, highest
and average net exposure arising from the
use of financial derivative instruments as a

proportion to the Fund's total net asset value
for the year ended 30th June 2025:

Lowest net exposure S {&/X G HIEEEN
Highest net exposure &= X FLHIE AR

Average net exposure TR QEIE S5

TREVN _ZE_HFAA=+THLEFERTER
BNz EMITETANRE « &5 THEMER
AR AR EMSRERMLL

2025
ZETRE
% of net
asset value

SARFEBRNDE
90.80%
324.19%

152.34%

TREVN-_ZF-HFAB=ZTHLEFENTETA
R « REMTIHREEE R SAESH
AEFERMLE

2025
ZETRE
% of net
asset value

R EFERRL
10.58%
44.48%

21.35%
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Holdings of Collateral (Unaudited)
FRiFERE# M CREHIT)

As at 30th June 2025

BHE_E_BFNF=1H

% of net asset
Nature of the Credit value covered
collateral rating  Rating  Maturity Currency by collateral ~ Value of the
Collateral provider gl &% agencies  tenor denomination  IEIRREES collateral
RAEREXIF {374 W RN EIHER THER AEEEAT BERNE
HK$
B
Goldman Sachs Intl, Cash Collateral N/A N/A N/A usb 0.04 5,102,500
London Branch NEHRm NER  AER TER ES
Standard Chartered Bank, Cash Collateral N/A N/A N/A usb 0.07 10,048,000
London Branch NEERm ER  FER  TER ESH

0.1 15,150,500

Custody/Safe Keeping Arrangement

RE RERH
Proportion of collateral
Amount of collateral posted by the scheme
Custodians of Collateral received/held HREHEFRT
ERREEA WER, FE R IR IR RS R IRITHKF P o EE B
HK$
BT %
Segregated accounts 37t
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Branch 15,150,500 100%
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Performance Table (Unaudited)

b4k (R
For the year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFENAE=FHIEEE

2025 2024 2023
—ECIE —ETNE 2=
Net assets &#7{E HKS$ %7514,360,374,021 HKS$ %7516,570,289,722 HK$ %7t20,274,230,849

Net asset value per unit SAEEAFE

HKD Class A Accumulation FBTARFIRIMAER HKS$ %75174.3807 HK$ %75164.1664 HKS$ B75147.4192
HKD Class A Distribution ETtAXFIKERE HK$ %7£83.3719 HK$ #7c83.7127 HK$ #7579.8307
HKD Class C Accumulation EECEBIRRHER HKS #75192.9455 HK$ %75180.3334 HK$ %75160.7655
HKD Class C Distribution B CRME HE HKS #7592.2794 HK$ 7#7591.9881 HK$ %787.0881
HKD Class X Accumulation BtXEHIEAAE HK$ %75174.0309 HK$ %75163.8404 HK$ #7£147.1331
HKD Class X Distribution ATTXERIMERT HK$ %75125.1704 HK$ %75125.6824 HK$ %75119.8545
RMB Class M Accumulation ABTMERIZRHR RMB AE#102.0221 - -
RMB Class M Distribution ARAMESIKEHER RMB AE199.2885 - -
USD Class A Accumulation ZETtAZXRIZRRE US$ %7117.2982 US$ £7116.3738 US$ £7114.6486
USD Class A Distribution ETTAZRIKEMT US$ 782707 US$ %718.3498 US$ %7t7.9330
USD Class C Accumulation E7tCRAIZRMAH US$ £517.1177 US$ %7516.0861 US$ %£7514.2872
USD Class C Distribution EcCRAIMEHE US$ £718.8197 US$ %718.8398 US$ £738.3378
USD Class I Accumulation 7t RFMHER US$ %7118.3849 US$ £717.1557 US$ 72151299
USD Class I Distribution EtIRFMEHT US$ 75110938 US$ 7511.0411 US$ 75103408
USD Class X Accumulation ETXEFIZRAE US$ 75172502 US$ 71163287 US$ %£7514.6053
USD Class X Distribution ETEXERIKERE US$ E78124172 US$ %7512.5360 US$ 72119102
AUD Hedged Class A Distribution Bcxt AL RIS 1A% AUS$ 7574638 AU$ 7575373 AUS 27571843
AUD Hedged Class C Distribution BreiRC X5 EHE AU$ #757.9724 AUS$ 7579925 AU$ 7575600
RMB Hedged Class A Distribution AR HAZSIKE HE RMB AR76.5664 RMB ART77.6320 RMB ART73.6791
RMB Hedged Class C Distribution AR ARCEFIREHH RMB ART81.0695  RMB AR78.1420 -
RMB Hedged Class M Accumulation ARTITAMERIRFAE RMB AKT1344780  RMB AK130.8040  RMB AKfi120.0397
RMB Hedged Class M Distribution ARTXAMERIMS AT RMB AERT99.9525 - -
GBP Hedged Class A Accumulation EEXT AL RTAE GBP %$11.5576 GBP 11,0022 GBP %%9.8890
GBP Hedged Class A Distribution EEXT FAXRIME T GBP %%7.7843 GBP #%57.8810 GBP 337.4856
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Performance Table (Unaudited) (Continued)
AkiGR (K| (80)

For the year ended 30th June 2025
CECRFEANA=A1HIEFE

PERFORMANCE RECORD FOR THE PAST 10 YEARS/YEAR OF INCEPTION
BE+HF BRI EEZISTR

HKD Class A Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
BITARF BhfR=EABN SHTREREEN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
ESpE KEHET ESRE KEHET
HK$ 7T HK$ #7T HKS$ #7T HKS$ 7T
20255585 174.9438 86.5762 152.5841 73.8084
2024 ZEZI0E 164.9892 84.5550 139.9776 74.2975
2023Z2FZ= 157.6987 87.5640 135.4883 76.3688
2022 :22: 175.2012 105.2748 152.4378 87.7722
2021 28 E 175.3150 107.6054 148.3878 92.3064
2020 ZE°%F 164.6586 107.6833 125.6571 80.5490
2019 22—N& 161.2431 107.1413 142.9249 97.8865
2018 ZF—)\F 156.0361 111.1475 144.5942 102.6624
2017 Z5—t#F 146.29 107.47 132.20 99.66
2016 Z2—"F 135.62 105.16 122.25 96.04
HKD Class C Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
BITCES Shfis=AeN SHTEREEN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
ESGE KEHT ESGE BEHET
HK$ 7T HK$ 7T HK$ #E7T HK$ 7T
2025 ZE°5F 193.5532 95.3215 168.5537 81.5612
2024 ZE e 181.2013 92.8953 153.0084 81.2418
2023ZFZ= 171.4504 95.2323 147.0284 82.9117
2022 :SZ: 188.4431 113.2254 165.0113 95.0444
2021 28— 188.2143 115.3923 158.3864 98.7704
2020 ZE°%F 175.1304 114.1257 133.8234 85.8131
2019 28—N& 170.8102 113.5354 150.6831 103.2351
2018 ZF—)\F 163.6002 116.5706 150.9937 108.0034
2017 Z5—t#F 152.74 112.04 137.41 103.62
2016 Z2—7"F 140.58 108.31 126.32 99.27
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Performance Table (Unaudited) (Continued)
AkiGR (K| (80)

For the year ended 30th June 2025

CECHENA=FHIFFEE

PERFORMANCE RECORD FOR THE PAST 10 YEARS/YEAR OF INCEPTION (CONTINUED)
BE+HE BRIIEEZIEHER (4)

HKD Class X Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
BITXES SHT&E=IAGN SHTREREN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
R KEHE ERHM W EHE
HK$ 7t HK$ #7t HK$ BT HK$ BT
205 "E"FF 174.5926 129.9815 152.2851 110.8122
2024 “E_UE 164.6616 126.9471 139.7085 111.5468
2023 %"= 157.3882 131.4646 135.2172 114.6566
2022 ZEZZ 174.8360 158.0548 152.1257 131.7771
2021 ZFZ E 174.9385 161.5539 148.0571 138.5847
2020 ZE"FF 164.2859 161.7552 125.3707 120.9327
2019 “E—NEF 160.9740 160.9562 142.8836 154.8867
RMB Class M Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
ARMMER] SHEzEAEN SHTRERRN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
R KEHE ERHM R EHET
RMB AR RMB AR™ RMB AR RMB AR
2025 "E"FF 102.4936 101.3570 93.0929 91.6635
USD Class A Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
ETTALS) SHEzEIAEN SHEFEREN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
R KEMHE ERHHM R EHET
US$ &7t US$ =7t US$ =7t US$ %7t
2025 "E"HEF 17.3542 8.6812 15.3191 7.4106
2024 “E_ME 16.4626 8.4373 13.9360 73974
2023-F"= 15.6860 8.7103 13.4402 7.5761
2022 :%::E 17.5466 10.5539 15.1215 8.7072
2021 B —F 17.6095 10.8091 14.9031 9.2695
2020 ZE-FF 16.5064 10.7557 12,6162 8.0879
2019 ZB—-h& 16.0719 10.6793 14.1930 97206
2018 Z&E—\& 15.5424 11.0723 14.4143 10.1864
20177 ZB—t& 14.60 10.78 13.27 10.00
2016 ZZ—"F 13.61 10.57 1217 9.56

MEET NS ERGEEE 184



Performance Table (Unaudited) (Continued)
Wénk (GRE®ETT) (47)

For the year ended 30th June 2025

CECRENA=FHILEE

PERFORMANCE RECORD FOR THE PAST 10 YEARS/YEAR OF INCEPTION (CONTINUED)
BE+HE BRIIEEZIEHER (4)

USD Class C Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
EnCER BhfiR=EABN SHHREREEN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
ESpE KEHET ESE KEHET
US$ &7t US$ 5t US$ &7t US$ &7t
2025 "F°58F 17.1718 9.2086 15.1347 7.889%
2024 ZEZI0E 16.1701 8.9307 13.6240 7.7930
2023Z2FZ= 15.2522 9.1267 13.0441 7.9245
Py —— 16.8790 10.9372 14.6395 9.0850
2021 ZEZ—5 16.8895 11.1688 14.2272 9.5571
2020 ZE°%F 15.7008 10.9833 12.0165 83023
2019 22—N& 15.2260 10.9038 13.3816 9.8775
2018 ZF—)\F 14.5735 11.1889 13.4612 10.0577
2017 Z5—t#F 13.63 10.79 1233 10.03
2016 Z2—7"F 12.62 10.43 11.25 10.22
USD Class I Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
ESRES] Shfim=AaN SRRREREEN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
ESTGE KEHT ESGE WEHET
US$ £t US$ £t US$ £t US$ £t
2025 ZE°5HF 18.4416 11.5237 16.2293 9.9082
2024 ZE e 17.2420 11.1524 14.4606 9.6873
2023ZFZ= 16.1039 11.2857 13.7476 9.7824
202222 17.6363 13.3772 15.3917 11.1854
2021 28— 17.6289 13.6206 14.7566 11.6339
2020 ZE°%F 16.2284 13.247 12.4362 10.0636
2019 28—N& 15,6751 13.1495 13.7118 11.8565
2018 ZF—\F 14.8534 13.3584 13.6661 12.3645
2017 Z5—t#F 13.83 12.81 1247 11.87
2016 Z2—7"F 12.30 1272 11.21 11.30
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Performance Table (Unaudited) (Continued)
AkiGR (K| (80)

For the year ended 30th June 2025

CECHENA=FHIFFEE

PERFORMANCE RECORD FOR THE PAST 10 YEARS/YEAR OF INCEPTION (CONTINUED)
BE+HE BRIIEEZIEHER (4)

USD Class X Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
ETTXER BhfR=EABN SHTREREEN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
ESpE KEHET ESRE KEHET

US$ &7t US$ &5t US$ &7t US$ &7t
20255585 17.3063 13.0335 15.2776 11.1259
2024 ZEZI0E 16.4174 12,6674 13.8960 11.1061
2023Z2FZ= 15.6388 13.0772 13.3988 11.3744
2022 :22: 17.4938 15.8451 15.0753 13.0726
2021 Z2°—%F 17.5558 16.2283 14.8575 13.9164
2020 ZE°%F 16.4546 16.1497 12.5771 12.1422
2019 22—N& 16.0357 16.0362 14.1890 15.3578
AUD Hedged Class A Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
RITXRARS] shfiesAEn SHTREREEN

Distribution Units Distribution Units
KEHET KEHET
AUS it AUS$ 87t

2025 "E°5F 7.8277 6.6843
2024 ZE e 7.6105 6.6888
2023ZFZ= 7.9052 6.8917
2022 ZEZZ 9.6729 7.9343
2021 Z2°—F 9.9270 8.5424
2020 ZF°%F 10.0087 7.4834
2019 28—N& 9.9319 9.0619
2018 ZF—)\F 10.3302 9.4942
2017 Z5—t#F 10.10 9.36
2016 ZF—7F 9.93 8.98
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Performance Table (Unaudited) (Continued)
AkiGR (K| (80)

For the year ended 30th June 2025

CECHENA=FHIFFEE

PERFORMANCE RECORD FOR THE PAST 10 YEARS/YEAR OF INCEPTION (CONTINUED)
BE+HE BRIIEEZIEHER (4)

AUD Hedged Class C Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
BT ACER) BhfmEABN BRTREREN
Distribution Units Distribution Units
KEHET KEHET
AU$ Bt AUS$ Bt
2025 "F"58F 83167 7.1278
2024 ZEZI0E 8.0685 7.0579
2023Z2FZ= 8.2898 7.2162
2022 :22: 10.0392 8.2856
2021 28 E 10.2746 8.8167
2020 Z2°%F 10.2277 7.6928
2019 28—N& 10.1474 9.2224
2018 ZE—)\F 10.8572 9.6408
2017 25—t 10.12 9.40
2016 Z2—"F 9.79 9.58
RMB Hedged Class A Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
AR HAZS Shfis=AaN BRTREREEN
Distribution Units Distribution Units
KEHET KEHET
RMB AET RMB AR
2025 "F°5F 80.4428 68.7846
2024 ZE e 783441 68.7688
2023ZFZ= 81.6561 71.0090
2022 ZEZZ 99.4043 82.0231
2021 Z2°—F 101.9289 87.4045
2020 ZF°%F 101.6019 76.2649
2019 28—N& 100.9089 92.1900
2018 ZF—\F 105.2661 96.8289
2017 Z5—tfF 102.04 96.65
2016 ZF—F 100.05 90.46
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Performance Table (Unaudited) (Continued)
Wénk (GRE®ETT) (47)
For the year ended 30th June 2025
CECRENA=FHILEE

PERFORMANCE RECORD FOR THE PAST 10 YEARS/YEAR OF INCEPTION (CONTINUED)
BE+HE BRIIEEZIEHER (4)

RMB Hedged Class C Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
ARTIHCEF ShHfs=IAGMN SHTREREN
Distribution Units Distribution Units
W EHE KEHE
RMB AR RMB AR™
2025 "E"HE 81.3406 72.7107
2024 ZE_M&E 78.8430 68.8844
RMB Hedged Class M Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
AR HFMES SHEz=IAEN SH#EFEREN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
R SRk RO K255

RMB AR RMB AR RMB AR RMB AE™
2025 "F"HE 137.1013 100.7762 119.9219 89.7764
2024 “EZME 131.6184 - 113.2012 -
2023 "% "= 130.1313 - 112.3960 -
2022 _F_— 1441439 - 126.8019 -
2021 25 =—-&% 144.2129 - 119.9005 -
2020 _E"E& 132.3450 - 101.3816 -
2019 ZE—N&E 128.7072 - 113.6921 -
2018 ZF—\& 123.1782 - 113.6151 -
2017 28—t #F 114,99 - 102.19 -
2016 ZE—"& 103.95 - 91.79 -
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Performance Table (Unaudited) (Continued)
Wénk (GRE®ETT) (47)

For the year ended 30th June 2025

CECRENA=FHILEE

PERFORMANCE RECORD FOR THE PAST 10 YEARS/YEAR OF INCEPTION (CONTINUED)
BE+HE BRIIEEZIEHER (4)

GBP Hedged Class A Highest issue price per unit Lowest redemption price per unit
HEIRAZER] SHER=IANEN SHAREREN
Accumulation Units Distribution Units Accumulation Units Distribution Units
ERHG KEHE ERHmT WEHT
GBP %% GBP %% GBP #% GBP %%
205 “F°HE 11.6206 8.1857 10.2436 6.9760
2024 —E U 11.0619 7.9619 9.3925 6.9817
2023 %= 10.6345 8.2299 9.1584 7.1704
2022 2%=C 12.0418 10.0380 10.3440 8.2621
201 ZE-—F 12.0969 10.2783 10.2137 8.8189
2020 ZT-FF 11.3698 10.3347 8.6751 7.7225
2019 ZF—NEF 11.2243 10.2466 10.0425 9.3516
2018 ZE—)\&F 11.1581 10.6505 10.3688 9.7831
2017 25—t 10.60 10.32 9.65 9.63
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